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MATURITY SCHEDULE 

Due Principal Interest 
(June 1) Amount Yield C U S I P ~  

26970N AU4 
26970N AV2 
26970N AWO 
26970N AX8 
26970N AY6 
26970N A23 
26970N BA7 
26970N BE5 
26970N BC3 
26970N BDI 
26970N BE9 
26970N BF6 
26970N BG4 
26970N BH2 
26970N BJ8 

$3,360,000 4.375% Term Bond Maturing on June 1,203 1, Price 96.461% CUSIP' 26970N BP4 

t The above-referenced CUSIP number(s) have been assigned by an independent company not affiliated with 
the parties to this bond transaction and are included solely for the convenience of the holders of the Series 201 1 
~ o n d s .  None of the City, the Trustee, or the Underwriter is responsible for the selection or uses of such CUSIP 
numbers, and no representation is made as to its correctness on the Series 201 1 Bonds or as indicated above. The 
CUSlP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the Series 201 I Bonds as a 
result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of such maturity or 
as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhancement by investors 
that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities. 

(c) Priced to call on June 1,202 1 .  



The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City, DTC, the Insurer and other sources that 
are believed to be reliable. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, 
and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made thereafter shall under any circumstances create 
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City, or in any other information contained herein 
since the date hereof. 

No dealer, broker, salesman or any other person has been authorized by the City, or the Underwriter to give 
any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Official Statement, in connection 
with the offering contained herein, and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied 
upon. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be 
any sale of the Series 2011 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such offer, 
solicitation or sale. 

All inquiries relating to this Official Statement and the offering contemplated herein should be directed to 
the Underwriter. Prospective investors may obtain additional information from the Underwriter or the City which 
they may reasonably require in connection with the decision to purchase any of the Series 201 I Bonds from the 
Underwriter. 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute "forward- 
looking statements" within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, 
Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the United 
States Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such 
as "plan," "expect," "estimate," "project," "budget" or other similar words. Forward-looking statements are 
included in the Official Statement under the captions "THE SERIES 201 1 PROJECT," "THE SYSTEM," 
"ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS," and "HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA DEBT SERVICE 
COVERAGE." The forward-looking statements in this Oficial Statement are subject to risks and uncertainties that 
could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by such statements. Readers are 
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement: 

The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and 
as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts 
and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or 
completeness of such information. 

The yields at which the Series 201 1 Bonds are offered to the public may vary from the initial reoffering 
yields on the inside front cover page of this Official Statement. In connection with this offering, the Underwriter 
may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect market prices of the Series 20 1 1 Bonds. Such 
transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time. 

The City maintains a website; however, the information presented there is not a part of this Official 
Statement and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision with respect to the Series 201 1 Bonds. 

THE SERIES 201 1 BONDS WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, 
AS AMENDED, OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAW AND WILL NOT BE LlSTED ON ANY STOCK OR 
OTHER SECURITIES EXCHANGE. THE SERTES 2011 BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR 
DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMTSSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES 
COMMISSION, NOR HAS THE SECURlTlES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE 
SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 

Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. ("AGM) makes no representation regarding the Series 201 1 Bonds or 
the advisability of investing in the Series 201 1 Bonds. In addition, AGM has not independently verified, makes no 
representation regarding, and does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official 
Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect to the 
accuracy of the information regarding AGM supplied by AGM and presented under the heading "BOND 
INSURANCE" and "APPENDIX G-SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY." 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT RELATING TO 
$1 1,085,000 

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY, UTAH 
GAS AND ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS 

SERIES 2011 

This introduction is only a brief description of (i) the Series 201 1 Bonds, as hereinafter defined, (ii) the 
security and source of payment for the Series 201 1 Bonds, (iii) certain information regarding Eagle Mountain City, 
Utah (the "City"), (iv) the hereinafter described Series 201 1 Project, (v) the City's natural gas system (the "Gas 
System"), and (vi) the City's electric power system (the "Electric System" and together with the Gas System, the 
"System"). The information contained herein is expressly qualified by reference to the entire Official Statement. 
Investors are urged to make a full review of the entire Official Statement as well as of the documents summarized or 
described herein. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined are defined in "APPENDIX B- 
EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE below. 

See also the following appendices attached hereto: APPENDIX A-BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010; APPENDIX B- 
EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE; APPENDIX C--GENERAL TNFORMATION 
REGARDING THE CITY AND UTAH COUNTY, APPENDIX &FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL; 
APPENDIX E-FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING; APPENDIX F-PROVISIONS 
REGARDING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM and APPENDIX G-SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND 
INSURANCE POLICY. 

This Uflcial Statement contains 'ffonuard-looking statements" within the meaning of the%federal securities 
laws. These forward-looking statements include, among others, statements concerning expectations, belief, 
opinion, future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar expressions concerning matters that 
are not historical *facts. The forward-looking statements in this OfJicial Statement am subject to r isk  and 
uncertainlies that could cause actual results to d18er materially from those expressed in or implied by such 
statements. 

The Series 201 1 Bonds 

This Official Statement, including the cover page, introduction and appendices, provides information in 
connection with the issuance and sale by the City of its $1 1,085,000 Gas and Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 201 1 
(the "Series 201 1 Bonds"), initially issued in book-entry form only. The Series 201 1 Bonds will mature in the 
amounts and bear interest at the rates set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. The Series 201 1 
Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption as described herein. See "THE SERIES 201 1 
BONDS" herein. 

The Project and Uses of Proceeds 

Proceeds of the Series 201 1 Bonds will be used to (a) finance the acquisition of property for rights of way 
and the construction of a substation, power lines, and related improvements (collectively, the "Series 201 1 Project"), 
(b) acquire a reserve fund surety for deposit to a debt service reserve fund, and (c) pay costs of issuance related to 
the Series 201 1 Bonds. See "ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS herein. 

The City 

The City was incorporated on December 3, 1996. The City covers approximately 52.7 square miles and is 
located approximately 30 miles northwest of Provo City and approximately 40 miles southwest of Salt Lake City. 
At the time the City was incorporated, it consisted primarily of agricultural land, had no commercial area and had a 
population of approximately 175 people. The City has experienced steady development and estimates that it is 



approximately 15% built-out and anticipates reaching full build-out in the next 50 years with a population of 
approximately 225,000. The City estimates that its population in 2010 was approximately 24,000. For more 
information with respect to the City, see "EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY," "APPENDIX A- BASIC FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010," and 
"APPENDIX C 4 E N E R A L  INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY AND UTAH COUNTY" herein. 

The System 

The Gas System includes a 6-inch high pressure gas line from the Kern River Gas Tap located in the 
southern area of the City. The gas is delivered to the City's distribution system under a transportation contract with 
the Kern River Pipeline Company. The Gas System currently serves approximately 5,524 equivalent residential 
units (ERUs). The City's current distribution system has the capacity to serve approximately 25,000 ERUs. The 
total capacity of the 6-inch high pressure gas line is approximately 50,000 ERUs. See "THE SYSTEM-The Gas 
System" herein. 

The Electric System consists of a 138 kilovolt ("kV") transmission line, 138kV interconnection substation, 
138-12.47Y17.2kV substation, and 12.47Yl7.2kV distribution system. The Electric System presently includes 
approximately 150 miles of I38kV overhead transmission and 12.47Yl7.2kV overhead and underground 
distribution. The City's 138kV overhead transmission line is connected to a PacifiCorp 138kV overhead 
transmission line at the interconnection substation. 

The Electrical System currently supplies up to 21 megawatts ("MW") during the summertime. The City's 
current substation is capable of reliably supplying up to 33 MW. The existing transmission line and interconnection 
substation have the capacity to handle up to 170 MW. See "THE SYSTEM-The Electric System" herein. 

As part of the Series 201 1 Project, the City will construct a new substation in the southern portion of the 
City and a new 138kV transmission line. See "THE SERIES 201 1 PROJECT." 

Authority for the Series 2011 Bonds 

The Series 201 1 Bonds are being issued pursuant to (i) the Local Government Bonding Act, Title I I, 
Chapter 14, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the "Act"); (ii) a General lndenture of Trust dated as of 
September 1, 2005 (the "General Indenture"), as heretofore amended and supplemented, between the City and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"); (iii) a Second Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of 
August 1, 201 1 (the "Second Supplemental Indenture" and together with the General Indenture, the "Indenture"); 
(iv) Resolutions of the City Council of the City (the "City Council") adopted on May 3,201 1 and August 2,201 1 
(together, the "Resolution"); and (v) other applicable provisions of law. 

Security and Sources of Payment 

The Series 201 1 Bonds will be payable from and secured solely by a pledge and assignment of the Net 
Revenues of the System and moneys on deposit in the funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the Indenture 
(except the Rebate Fund). The Revenues of the System will be applied to pay the System's Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses before being applied to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds. See "SECURITY FOR 
THE BONDS" herein. The Series 201 1 Bonds are secured on a lien parity with the Outstanding Parity Bonds (as 
defined below) and any additional bonds, notes or other obligations (the "Additional Bonds") which may be issued 
from time to time under the Indenture. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS" herein. 

The Series 2011 Bonh arc speciul limited obligations of the Cily payable solely from the Net Revenues of 
the System (except to the extent paid out of moneys attributable to Bond proceed7 or other fundr created under the 
Indenture and held by the Trustee (except the Rebate Fund) or the income from the temporary investment thereoj. 
The Series 2011 Bonds will not he a general obligation of the City, the State of Utah or any agency, instrumentality 
or political subdivision there($ Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, the State of Utah or 
any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereqf will he assigned or pledged,for payment of the Series 



201 1 Bondr. The Indenture does not pledge any properties of the System. 'I'HE C17'Y WILL N07'  MORTGAGE OR 
GRANT A SECURITY INTERES'T IN THE SYSTEM TO SECURE PAYMENT OF THE SERIES 201 1 BONDS. 

Bond Insurance 

The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds when due will be guaranteed 
under a municipal bond insurance policy (the "Policy") to be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Series 
201 1 Bonds by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. (referred to herein as "AGM" or the "Insurer"). See "BOND 
INSURANCE" herein. 

Outstanding Parity Bonds 

The City has previously issued its Gas and Electric Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (the "Outstanding Parity 
Bonds"), which are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $19,275,000. Said Bonds were 
issued to finance certain improvements to the System and refund certain prior obligations. The Outstanding Parity 
Bonds are payable from and secured by the Net Revenues on a parity with the Series 201 1 Bonds. See "SECURITY 
FOR THE BONDS" herein. 

Additional Bonds 

The Indenture permits the issuance of Additional Bonds secured by the Net Revenues on a parity with the 
Series 201 1 Bonds and Outstanding Parity Bonds, but requires that the City provide certain certificates and opinions 
as a condition to the issuance of Additional Bonds. Included in these conditions is the requirement that the Net 
Revenues for the most recent Bond Fund Year were not less than 125% of the sum of the Aggregate Annual Debt 
Service Requirement on Bonds then outstanding and the Additional Bonds proposed to be issued. See "SECURITY 
FOR THE BONDS-Additional Bonds" herein. Tbe Series 201 1 Bonds, the Outstanding Parity Bonds, and any 
Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture are referred to collectively herein as the "Bonds." 

Registration, Denominations, Manner of Payment 

The Series 201 1 Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds and, when initially issued, will be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York 
("DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 201 1 Bonds. Purchases of Series 201 1 Bonds will be 
made in book-entry form only in the principal amount of $5,000 minimum denominations and integral multiples of 
$5,000 (collectively, "Authorized Denominations"); through brokers and dealers who are, or who act through, DTC 
Participants. Beneficial Owners of the Series 201 1 Bonds will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of bond 
certificates so long as DTC or a successor securities depository acts as the securities depository with respect to the 
Series 20 1 1 Bonds. 

Principal of and interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds (interest payable on each June 1 and December 1, 
commencing June 1, 2012) shall be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Corporate Trust Services, Salt Lake 
City, Utah, as Paying Agent, to the Registered Owners of the Series 201 1 Bonds. So long as DTC is the Registered 
Owner, it will, in turn, remit such principal and interest payments to its Participants, for subsequent disbursements to 
the Beneficial Owners of the Series 201 1 Bonds as described under the caption "THE SERIES 201 1 BONDS- 
Book-Entry Only System" below. 

Transfer or Exchange 

So long as the book-entry system is in effect, Beneficial Owners may transfer their interests in the Series 
201 1 Bonds through the book-entry system. In the event the book-entry system is discontinued, the Series 201 1 
Bonds may be transferred or exchanged as described below. See "THE SERIES 201 1 BONDS4enera17' below. 



Tax-Exempt Status 

Federal Income Tax. In the opinion of Ballard Spahr LLP, Bond Counsel to the City, interest on the Series 
201 1 Bonds is excludable from gross income for purposes of federal income tax, assuming continuing compliance 
with the requirements of the federal tax laws. interest on the Series 2011 Bonds is not a preference item for 
purposes of either individual or corporate federal alternative minimum tax ("AMT7'); however, interest paid to 
corporate holders of the Series 201 1 Bonds may be indirectly subject to AMT under circumstances described under 
"TAX MATTERS" herein. 

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences relating to ownership or 
disposition of or the accrual or receipt of interest on the Series 20 1 1 Bonds. 

State Income Tax. Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under currently existing laws, interest on the 
Series 201 1 Bonds is exempt from State of Utah individual income taxes. See "TAX MATTERS" herein. 

Conditions of Delivery, Anticipated Date, Manner, and Place of Delivery 

The Series 201 1 Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as, and if issued and received by George K. 
Baum & Company, as underwriter (the "Underwriter"), subject to the approval of legality by Ballard Spaht LLP, 
Bond Counsel to the City, and certain other conditions. Certain matters relating to disclosure will be passed upon by 
Ballard Spahr LLP, Disclosure Counsel to the City. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the City by its 
counsel, Parsons, Kinghorn, Harris, Salt Lake City, Utah. See "LEGAL MATTERS" below. It is expected that the 
Series 201 1 Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery to DTC or its agent on or about August 18, 
201 1. 

Basic Documentation 

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to 
change. Brief descriptions of the City, the System, the Series 201 1 Bonds, and the Indenture are included in this 
Official Statement. Such descriptions do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All references herein to the 
Indenture are qualified in their entirety by reference to such document, and references herein to the Series 201 1 
Bonds are qualified in their entirety by reference to the form thereof included in the Indenture and the information 
with respect thereto included in the aforementioned document, copies of which are available for inspection at the 
principal office of the Trustee on or after the delivery of the Series 201 1 Bonds. During the period of the offering of 
the Series 201 1 Bonds, copies of the preliminary form of such documents will be available from the "contact 
persons" as indicated below. Also see "APPENDIX B-EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVlSIONS OF THE 
INDENTURE." 

Bondholders' Risks 

The purchase of the Series 20 1 1 Bonds involves a degree of risk. Certain of the risks associated with the 
purchase and ownership of the Series 201 1 Bonds are discussed herein. For a description of certain risks associated 
with the Series 201 1 Bonds, see "BONDHOLDERS' RISKS" below. Potential purchasers of Series 201 1 Bonds are 
encouraged to read the Official Statement in its entirety to gain an appreciation of the risk involved in purchasing the 
Series 20 1 1 Bonds. 

Contact Persons 

The chief contact person for the City concerning the Series 201 1 Bonds is: 

John Hendrickson 
City Administrator 

1650 East Stagecoach Run 
Eagle Mountain, Utah 84005 

Telephone: (80 1 ) 789-6600 Fax: (801 ) 789-6650 



Additional requests for information may be directed to the City's financial advisor at the following: 

Laura D. Lewis 
Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. 

41 North Rio Grande, Suite 101 
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101 

Telephone: (801) 596-0700 Fax: (801) 596-2800 

Additional Information 

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given them in the Indenture. 
See "APPENDIX B-EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE-Definitions." 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, 
are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or 
agreement between the City and the purchasers or owners of any of the Series 201 1 Bonds. The statements of the 
City herein are not to be construed as statements by any member of the City Council of the City or any employee of 
the City. 

THE SERIES 2011 BONDS 

General 

The Series 201 1 Bonds will be dated the date of their issuance and will mature on June 1, of the years and 
in the amounts as set forth on the inside front cover page of this Official Statement. 

The Series 201 1 Bonds shall bear interest from their date at the rates set forth on the inside front cover page 
of this Official Statement. Interest on the Series 2011 Bonds is payable on June 1, 2012, and semiannually 
thereafter on June 1 and December 1 of each year (each in "Interest Payment Date"). Interest on the Series 201 1 
Bonds shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. U.S. Bank National Association, 
Corporate Trust Department, Salt Lake City, Utah, is the Bond Registrar, Paying Agent and Trustee for the Series 
201 1 Bonds under the lndenture (in such respective capacities, the "Bond Registrar," "Paying Agent" and 
"Trustee"). 

The interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds so payable, and punctually paid and duly provided for, on any 
Interest Payment Date will be paid to the Registered Owner (initially DTC) thereof at the close of business on the 
Regular Record Date for such interest, which shall be the fifteenth day (whether or not a Business Day) immediately 
preceding such lnterest Payment Date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for shall forthwith 
cease to be payable to the Registered Owner of any Series 201 1 Bonds on such Regular Record Date, and may be 
paid to the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such 
defaulted interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice thereof to be given to such Registered Owner not less than ten 
days prior to such Special Record Date. 

The Series 2011 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds, initially in book-entry form, in the 
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (an "Authorized Denomination"), not exceeding the 
amounts of each maturity. 

Upon surrender for transfer of any Series 201 1 Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, 
duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer in form satisfactory to the 
Trustee and duly executed by, the Registered Owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing, the City shall 
execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees, a new Series 201 1 
Bond or Series 201 1 Bonds of the same Series and the same maturity for a like aggregate principal amount as the 
Series 201 1 Bond surrendered for transfer. Series 201 1 Bonds may be exchanged at the principal corporate trust 
office of the Trustee for a like aggregate principal amount of Series 201 1 Bonds of the same maturity. The 



execution by the City of any Series 201 1 Bond of any authorized denomination shall constitute full and due 
authorization of such denomination, and the Trustee shall thereby be authorized to authenticate and deliver such 
Series 201 1 Bond. The City and the Trustee shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Series 201 1 Bond 
(i) during the period from and including any Regular Record Date, to and including the next succeeding Interest 
Payment Date, (ii) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to any Special Record Date, to 
and including the date of the proposed payment pertaining thereto, (iii) during the period from and including the day 
fifteen days prior to the mailing of notice calling any Series 201 1 Bonds for redemption, to and including the date of 
such mailing, or (iv) at any time following the mailing of notice calling such Series 20 1 I Bond for redemption. 

The City, the Registrar and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose name each Series 
201 1 Bond is registered on the registration books kept by the Registrar as the holder and absolute owner thereof for 
the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price thereof and interest due 
thereon and for all other purposes whatsoever, and neither the City, nor the Registrar nor the Paying Agent shall be 
affected by any notice to the contrary. Payment of or on account of either principal of or interest on any Series 201 1 
Bond shall be made only to or upon order of the Registered Owner thereof or such person's legal representative, but 
such registration may be changed as provided in the Indenture. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to 
satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 201 I Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

The Trustee shall require the payment by the Bondholder requesting exchange or transfer of Series 201 1 
Bonds of any tax or other governmental charge and by the City of any service charge of the Trustee as Registrar 
which are required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer and such charges shall be paid before such 
new Series 20 1 1 Bond shall be delivered. 

Book-Entry Only System 

The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC") will act as securities depository for the 
Series 201 1 Bonds. The Series 201 1 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds registered in the name of Cede 
& Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC. One fully registered Series 201 1 Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Series 201 1 Bonds, 
in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. See "APPENDIX F- 
PROVISIONS REGARDING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM," herein. 

Redemption Provisions 

Optional Redemption. The Series 201 1 Bonds maturing on or prior to June 1,  2021 are not subject to 
redemption prior to maturity. The Series 20 1 1 Bonds maturing on or after June 1,2022 are subject to redemption at 
the option of the City on June 1, 2021, and on any date thereafter prior to maturity, in whole or in part, from such 
maturities of parts thereof as may be selected by the City at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal 
amount of the Series 20 11 Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. 

Mandatow Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 201 1 Bonds maturing on June 1,  203 1 are subject to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption by the Trustee at a price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued 
interest to the redemption date on the dates and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Mandatory Sinking 
Fund Redemption Date 

(June 1 ) 

2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031' 

Sinking Fund 
Reauirements 

$6 1 5,000 
645,000 
670,000 
700,000 
730,000 

t Stated Maturity. 



Upon redemption of any Series 20 1 1 Bonds maturing on June 1,  203 1, other than pursuant to a mandatory 
sinking fund redemption, the principal amount so redeemed shall be credited toward a part or all of any one or more 
such Mandatory Sinking Fund amounts for the Series 201 1 Bonds maturing on June 1,203 1 in such order as shall be 
determined by the City. 

Selection for Redemption. Except for redemption pursuant to mandatory sinking fund requirements above, 
if fewer than all Series 20 1 1 Bonds are to be redeemed, the particular maturities of such Series 20 1 I Bonds and the 
principal amount of such maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the City. If fewer than all of the Series 201 1 
Bonds of any one maturity called for redemption, the particular units of Series 201 1 Bonds to be redeemed shall be 
selected by the Trustee in such manner as the Trustee in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate. The portion 
of any Series 201 1 Bond of a denomination of more than an Authorized Denomination to be redeemed will be in the 
principal amount of an Authorized Denomination or any integral multiple thereof, and in selecting portions of such 
bonds for redemption, each such bond shall be treated as representing that number of Series 201 1 Bonds of an 
Authorized Denomination which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such Series 201 1 Bonds by the 
minimum Authorized Denomination. 

Notice of Redemption. So long as the Series 201 1 Bonds are in book-entry only form, the Paying Agent 
shall notify DTC of an early redemption not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for 
redemption, and shall provide such information as required by the Indenture. 

THE SERIES 2011 PROJECT 

Proceeds of the Series 201 1 Bonds will be used to finance improvements to the System, including the 
acquisition of property for rights of way and the construction of a new substation in the southern portion of the City, 
a new 138kV transmission line, and related improvements. With the completion of the new southern substation, the 
distribution system will be able to supply an additional 33 MW for a total distribution system capacity of 66 MW. 
Completion of the 138kV transmission line will provide a redundant source of power delivery to the City in case of 
equipment failure or damage to the existing 138 kV line. Overall, the Series 201 1 Project will provide redundancy 
to and improve reliability of the System and accommodate future growth and economic development. See "THE 
SYSTEM below. 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The sources and uses of funds in connection with the issuance of the Series 201 1 Bonds are estimated to be 
as follows: 

Sources: 

Par Amount of Series 201 1 Bonds ............................................................................ $11,085,000.00 . . 
Or~glnal Issue Net Premium .............................................................................................. 25 1.857.40 

Total Sources .............................................................................................. $1 1.336.857.40 
Uses: 

Acquisition/Construction Fund ................................................................................. $1 1,000,000.00 
........................................................................................................... Costs of ~ssuance'" 336-857.40 

Total Uses ................................................................................................... $1 1.336J57.40 

Including underwriter's discount, legal fees, printing fees, surety reserve and bond insurance premiums, 
and other miscellaneous costs of issuance. 



DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE ON THE BONDS 

The following table sets forth the debt service schedule for the Series 201 1 Bonds and the Outstanding 
Parity Bonds. 

Series 201 1 Outstanding 
Bonds Parjiy Bonds 

Period Ending Annual 
(June 30) Principal interestii' Princiaal & interest(') Debt ~ervice"' 

2012 $720,000 $337,365 $1,603,599 $2,660,963 
2013 605,000 407,556 1,652,680 2,665,236 
2014 565,000 393,944 1,703,055 2,66 1,999 
2015 530,000 382,644 1,753,255 2,665,899 
2016 485,000 370,719 1,805,055 2,660,774 
2017 445,000 359,806 1,856,688 2,66 1,494 
2018 405,000 342,006 1,9 14,688 2,66 1,694 
2019 420,000 325,806 1,916,938 2,662,744 
2020 445,000 304,806 1,915,938 2,665,744 
2021 470,000 282,556 1,9 12,075 2,664,63 1 
2022 490,000 259,056 1,915,075 2,664,13 1 
2023 505,000 241,906 1,914,325 2,66 1,23 1 
2024 525,000 223,600 1,914,825 2,663,425 
2025 540,000 197,350 1,9 16,325 2,653,675 
2026 575,000 175,750 1,912,350 2,663,100 
2027 615,000 147,000 - 762,000 
2028 645,000 120,094 - 765,094 
2029 670,000 91,875 - 761,875 
2030 700,000 62,563 - 762,563 
203 1 730.000 3 1,938 - 761,938 
Total $ll.OX5.000 %5.058.340 $!2.2,@6821 $43,7UQ 

' Amounts have been rounded. Totals may not foot due to rounding. 
(Source: Financial Advisor.) 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

Pledge of the Indenture 

The Series 20 1 1 Bonds, the Outstanding Parity Bonds, and any other Bonds hereafter issued pursuant to the 
Indenture are secured equally and ratably by a pledge of (i) the Net Revenues, (ii) all moneys in funds and accounts 
held by the Trustee under the Indenture (except the Rebate Fund), and (iii) all other rights granted under the 
Indenture. The Series 201 1 Bonds are special limited obligations of the City and are payable exclusively from the 
Net Revenues, moneys, funds and accounts held under the lndenture. As defined under the Indenture, "Net 
Revenues" means the Revenues after provision has been made for the payment therefrom from Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses. 

"Revenues" means all revenues, fees, impact fees (to the extent legally pledged by the City with respect to 
gas and electric improvements financed with Bond proceeds), income, rents and receipts received or earned by the 
City from or attributable to the ownership and operation of the System (including proceeds of business interruption 
insurance), together with all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of investments in the related funds 
thereof. 

"Operation and Maintenance Expenses" means all expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the 
operation and maintenance of the System, whether incurred by the City or paid to any other entity pursuant to 
contract or otherwise, necessary to keep the System in efficient operating condition, including the cost of required 
audits, payment of promotional and marketing expenses and real estate brokerage fees, payment of premiums for 



required insurance, fees, premiums and expenses of any debt service reserve fund guarantees or other credit 
enhancement on the Bonds, rebatable arbitrage on the Bonds and, generally all expenses, exclusive of depreciation 
(including depreciation related expenses of any joint venture) and, any in-lieu of tax transfers to City funds and 
interest expense for interfund loans from City funds, which under generally accepted accounting practices are 
properly allocable to operation and maintenance; however, only such expenses as are reasonably and properly 
necessary to the efficient operation and maintenance of the System shall be included. 

Neither the *faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Cify is pledged us securily for the Series 201 1 
Bondr. The Series 201 1 Bonds do not constitute general obligations of the Ciry or of any other entity or body, 
municipal, state or otherwise. The Indenture does not pledge any ,Q.rtern properties. 

For a description of the System, rates and charges for services provided by the System and moneys 
available for use in connection with the System, see "THE SYSTEM" and "THE SYSTEM-Rates" herein. 

Debt Service Reserve 

The Indenture establishes a Debt Service Reserve Requirement and an account in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund with respect to the Series 201 1 Bonds. Initially the Debt Service Reserve Requirement for the Series 201 1 
Bonds will be $1,019,865.62 and will be funded with the Reserve Policy. The Reserve Policy constitutes a Reserve 
Instrument under the Indenture. The Series 201 1 Bonds will only be delivered upon the issuance of such Reserve 
Policy. The premium on the Reserve Policy is to be fully paid at or prior to the issuance and delivery of the Series 
201 1 Bonds. 

The account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund for the Series 20 1 1 Bonds secures only the Series 201 1 
Bonds and may not be drawn upon to pay debt service on any other Series of Bonds outstanding under the Indenture. 
In connection with the issuance of Additional Bonds under the Indenture, the City shall establish an account in the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund for such Additional Bonds and shall fund such account in an amount equal to the Debt 
Service Reserve Requirement for said Additional Bonds. Additional Bonds will be secured by a separate account in 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

In the event funds on deposit in the account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund for the Series 201 1 Bonds 
are needed to make up any deficiencies in the Bond Fund for the Series 201 1 Bonds, amounts available in such 
account shall be transferred to the Bond Fund for such purposes and the City will be required to restore the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund for the Series 201 1 Bonds from Net Revenues within one year with twelve substantially equal 
payments. 

Funds on deposit in the accounts in Debt Service Reserve Fund in excess of the amount required to be 
maintained therein will be transferred to the Bond Fund at least once each year. Moneys held in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund shall be invested, at the direction of the City, in Qualified Investments. 

Flow of Funds 

All Revenues shall be accounted for and maintained by the City separate and apart from all other accounts 
of the City and which shall be expended and used by the City only in the manner and order of priority specified 
below: 

(a) First, to pay all Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the System as the same become 
due and payable; 

(b) Second, to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds outstanding 
under the Indenture; 

(c) Third, to the extent the Debt Service Reserve Requirement is not funded with a Reserve 
Instrument or Instruments, to make all payments to the account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund and, as 



applicable, to the Reserve Instrument Fund in the amount required by the Indenture to be on deposit 
therein; 

(d) Fourth, to deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund any amount required by the 
Indenture, if any, to accumulate therein the Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement (which Repair 
and Replacement Fund is not required to be funded in connection with the issuance of the Series 201 1 
Bonds); 

(e) Any excess Net Revenues remaining afier making the foregoing deposits are to be used 
for (i) the redemption of Bonds for cancellation prior to maturity by depositing the same into the Bond 
Fund, (ii) the refinancing, refunding, or advance rehnding of any Bonds, or (iii) for any other lawful 
purpose; and 

(f) The Net Revenues remaining after the foregoing deposits and transfers and not required 
to be used for remedying any defaults in the payments previously made into the funds described above may 
be used at any time for any lawful purpose. 

Rate Covenant 

So long as any Bonds or any Repayment Obligations are Outstanding, the rates, including connection fees, 
for all services supplied by the System to all customers within or without the boundaries of the City when combined 
with other Revenues, shall be sufficient to pay the Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the System, and to 
provide Net Revenues for each Bond Fund Year of not less than 125% of the Aggregate Annual Debt Service 
Requirement for such Bond Fund Year plus an amount sufficient to fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund in the time, 
rate and manner specified in the Indenture; provided, however, that such rates must be reasonable rates for the type, 
kind and character of the service rendered. There shall be no free gas or electric service, and such rates shall be 
charged against all users of the System, including the City. The City agrees that should its annual financial 
statements disclose that during the period covered by such financial statements the Net Revenues were not at least 
equal to the above requirement, the City shall request that a Qualified Engineer make recommendations as to the 
revision of the rates, charges and fees and that the City, on the basis of such recommendations, will revise the 
schedule of rates, charges and fees insofar as is practicable and further revise Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
so as to produce the necessary Net Revenues as required in the Indenture. 

"Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement" means the total Debt Service (including any Repayment 
Obligations) for any one Bond Fund Year (or other specific period) on all Series of Bonds Outstanding or any 
specified portion thereof. 

The rates and charges imposed by the City are not subject to approval or regulation by any governmental 
entity or agency within the State of Utah (the "State7'). For a discussion of the rates and charges imposed by the City 
with respect to the System and for a comparison of rates and charges imposed by other municipalities located near 
the City, please see "THE SYSTEM-Rates" herein. 

Outstanding Parity Bonds 

The City has previously issued the Outstanding Parity Bonds which are currently outstanding in the 
aggregate principal amount of $19,275,000. Said Bonds were issued to finance certain improvements to the System 
and refund certain prior obligations. The Outstanding Parity Bonds are payable from and secured by the Net 
Revenues on a parity with the Series 20 1 1 Bonds. 

Additional Bonds 

The City is permitted to issue Additional Bonds secured by the Net Revenues in accordance with the terms 
of the Indenture. See "APPENDIX B-EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE- 
Additional Bonds." The City does not have any current plans to issue any Additional Bonds within the next three 
years. 



BOND INSURANCE 

Bond Insurance Policy 

Concurrently with the issuance of the Series 201 1 Bonds, Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp. ("AGM" or 
the "insurer") will issue its Municipal Bond Insurance Policy for the Series 201 1 Bonds (the "Policy"). The Policy 
guarantees the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds when due as set forth in the 
form of the Policy included as APPENDIX G to this Official Statement. 

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New York, 
California, Connecticut or Florida insurance law. 

The Insurer 

AGM is a New York domiciled financial guaranty insurance company and a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Assured Guaranty Municipal Holdings Inc. ("Holdings"). Holdings is an indirect subsidiary of Assured Guaranty 
Ltd. ("AGL"), a Bermuda-based holding company whose shares are publicly traded and are listed on the New York 
Stock Exchange under the symbol "AGO." AGL, through its operating subsidiaries, provides credit enhancement 
products to the U.S. and global public finance, infrastructure and structured finance markets. No shareholder of 
AGL, Holdings or AGM is liable for the obligations of AGM. 

AGM's financial strength is rated "AA+" (negative outlook) by Standard and Poor's Ratings Services, a 
Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC business ("S&P) and "Aa3" (negative outlook) by Moody's Investors 
Service, Inc. ("Moody's"). An explanation of the significance of the above ratings may be obtained from the 
applicable rating agency. The above ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold any security, and such 
ratings are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agencies, including withdrawal initiated at the 
request of AGM in its sole discretion. Any downward revision or withdrawal of any of the above ratings may have 
an adverse effect on the market price of any security guaranteed by AGM. AGM does not guarantee the market 
price of the securities it insures, nor does it guarantee that the ratings on such securities will not be revised or 
withdrawn. 

Current Financiul Strength Halings 

On August 8, 201 1, S&P published a Research Update in which it affirmed the "AA+" financial strength 
rating of AGM. At the same time, S&P revised the rating outlook on AGM to negative from stable. Reference is 
made to the Research Update, a copy of which is available at www.standardandpoors.com, for the complete text of 
S&P's comments. 

On January 24, 2011, S&P published a Request for Comment: Bond Insurance Criteria (the "Bond 
Insurance RFC") in which it requested comments on its proposed changes to its bond insurance ratings criteria. In 
the Bond Insurance RFC, S&P notes that it could lower its financial strength ratings on existing investment-grade 
bond insurers (including AGM) by one or more rating categories if the proposed bond insurance ratings criteria are 
adopted, unless those bond insurers (including AGM) raise additional capital or reduce risk. Reference is made to 
the Bond Insurance RFC, a copy of which is available at www.standardandpoors.com, for the complete text of 
S&P's comments. 

On December 18, 2009, Moody's issued a press release stating that it had affirmed the "Aa3" insurance 
financial strength rating of AGM, with a negative outlook. Reference is made to the press release, a copy of which 
is available at www.moodys.com, for the complete text of Moody's comments. 

There can be no assurance as to any further ratings action that Moody's or S&P may take with respect to 
AGM. 

For more information regarding AGM's financial strength ratings and the risks relating thereto, see AGL's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1, 2010, which was filed by AGL with the 



Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on March 1,20 1 1, AGL's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarterly period ended March 31, 201 1, which was filed by AGL with the SEC on May 10, 201 1, and AGL's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,201 1, which was filed by AGL with the SEC 
on August 9,20 1 1. 

At June 30, 201 1, AGM's consolidated policyholders' surplus and contingency reserves were 
approximately $3,050,613,849 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately $2,254,726,646, in 
each case, in accordance with statutory accounting principles. 

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Rqference 

Portions of the following documents filed by AGL with the SEC that relate to AGM are incorporated by 
reference into this Official Statement and shall be deemed to be a part hereof 

the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 ,  2010 (which was filed by 
AGL with the SEC on March 1,201 1); 

the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 201 1 (which was 
filed by AGL with the SEC on May 10,201 1); and 

the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 201 1 (which was filed 
by AGL with the SEC on August 9,201 1). 

All information relating to AGM included in, or as exhibits to, documents filed by AGL pursuant to Section 
13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the filing of the last document referred to above and before the termination 
of the offering of the Series 201 1 Bonds shall be deemed incorporated by reference into this Official Statement and 
to be a part hereof from the respective dates of filing such documents. Copies of materials incorporated by reference 
are available over the internet at the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov, at AGL's website at 
http://www.assuredguaranty.com, or will be provided upon request to Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.: 3 1 West 
52nd Street, New York, New York 100 19, Attention: Communications Department (telephone (21 2) 826-0 100). 

Any information regarding AGM included herein under the caption "BOND INSURANCE-The Insurer" 
or included in a document incorporated by reference herein (collectively, the "AGM Information") shall be modified 
or superseded to the extent that any subsequently included AGM Information (either directly or through 
incorporation by reference) modifies or supersedes such previously included AGM Information. Any AGM 
Information so modified or superseded shall not constitute a part of this Official Statement, except as so modified or 
superseded. 

AGM makes no representation regarding the Series 201 1 Bonds or the advisability of investing in the 
Series 20 1 1 Bonds. In addition, AGM has not independently verified, makes no representation regarding, and does 
not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement or any information or 
disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect to the accuracy of the information 
regarding AGM supplied by AGM and presented under the heading "BOND INSURANCE." 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Official Statement, including the Appendices hereto and the following, contain forward-looking 
statements. Although the City believes in making any such forward-looking statement its expectations are based on 
reasonable assumptions, any such forward-looking statement involves uncertainties and is qualified in its entirety by 
reference to the following important factors, among others, that could cause the actual results of the City to differ 
materially from those contemplated in such forward-looking statements: 



prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including those of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission ("FERC"); 

power costs and availability, including the continued development and financial stability of owners, of 
merchant power plants in the State; 

weather conditions and other natural phenomena; 

unanticipated population growth or decline and changes in market demand and demographic patterns; 

changes in business strategy, development plans or vendor relationships; 

competition for retail and wholesale customers; 

access to adequate transmission facilities to meet changing demands; 

unanticipated changes in interest rates, commodity prices or rates of inflation; 

unanticipated changes in operating expenses and capital expenditures; 

commercial bank market and capital market conditions; and legal and administrative proceedings and 
settlements. 

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and the City 
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on 
which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to 
time and it is not possible for the City to predict all of such factors, nor can it assess the impact of each such factor 
or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materially from those 
contained in any forward-looking statement. 

THE SYSTEM 

General 

The City owns and operates the Electric System and the Gas System which together constitute the System. 
Set forth below is a description of both the Electric System and the Gas System. As stated elsewhere in this Official 
Statement, the Net Revenues generated from the operation ofthe System are pledged to pay principal of and interest 
on the Bonds. 

The Electric System 

Facilities. The Electric System consists of a 138kV transmission line, 138kV interconnection substation, 
138-12.47Y17.2kV north substation, and 12.47Y17.2kV distribution system. The Electric System presently includes 
approximately 150 miles of 138kV overhead transmission and 12.47Yl7.2kV overhead and underground 
distribution. Most of the existing distribution system is installed underground. The City's I38kV overhead 
transmission line is connected to a PacifiCorp 138kV overhead transmission line at the interconnection substation. 

The Electrical System currently supplies up to 21 MW during the summertime. The City's current 
substation is capable of reliably supplying up to 33 MW. The existing transmission line and interconnection 
substation have the capacity to handle up to 170 MW. 

As part of the Series 201 1 Project, the City will construct a new substation in the southern portion of the 
City and a new 138kV transmission line. With the completion of the south substation, the distribution system will 
be able to supply an additional 33 MW for a total distribution system capacity of 66 MW. Completion of the 138kV 



transmission line will provide a redundant source of power delivery to the City in case of equipment failure or 
damage to the existing 138 kV line. 

Overations. The City currently employs a staff of seven full-time employees to operate and maintain the 
Electric System. The Electric System has received recognition for its innovation in operating and maintaining a 
reliable and efficient power system. It has also received awards such as the Utah Associated Municipal Power 
Systems System Improvements Award 2009, UAMPS Smart Energy Innovation Award 2010, and Intermountain 
Power Superintendant Association 1st Place Safety Award 2009-2010 with no lost time accidents. The City is also a 
member of the American Public Power Association. 

Adam Ferre serves as the City's Energy Division Director. As Energy Division Director, Mr. Ferre 
oversees the management of the System. Mr. Ferre has worked in the City since its incorporation in 1996. As an 
employee of Tasco Engineering, he was part of the team that installed the City's energy utilities in 1997. He has 
been an employee of the City since March 1999. Mr. Ferre attended Utah Valley State College and Northwest 
Lineman College and earned a Journeyman Lineman Degree. He also sits on the board of directors for the Utah 
Association of Municipal Power Systems. 

John Hendrickron is the City Administrator. Mr. llendrickson has over 35 years experience in city 
management, having served in California, Idaho, Wyoming, and Utah. He has served as City Administrator the last 
four years and has helped guide the City's rapid growth and build its infrastructure capabilities to more than double 
their former capacity. He has been involved in the formation of several electrical management organizations 
including UAMPS, Southern Utah Valley Power Authority and the Tri-State Intervention Group. He helped 
negotiate the first power exchange agreement with Bonneville Power Administration in 1981 and has worked with 
several federal power agencies on electrical issues. Mr. Hendrickson has a Bachelor of Science Degree (Zoology) 
and a Master of Public Administration Degree from Brigham Young University. Prior to his city management 
career, Mr. Hendrickson worked for the Central Intelligence Agency, military intelligence, and the Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

Power Supplies. In 2005, the City entered into a power purchase agreement (the "Power Purchase 
Agreement") with Utah Municipal Power Agency (the "Agency"), an interlocal agency made up of various Utah 
municipalities. However, the City is not a member of the Agency. The Agency manages all of the power resources 
of its member cities, the largest of those being Provo, Utah. The total electric resource of the Agency far exceeds 
the demand of its member cities, thereby allowing the Agency to market excess power. The City, through its 
membership with Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems ("UAMPS") has the ability to enter into energy 
purchase agreements with the Agency for the Agency's excess power. As previously stated, the City has availed 
itself of that opportunity by entering into the Power Purchase Agreement. The Power Purchase Agreement is 
currently under negotiation for renewal and extension through June 30, 201 5, with renewal thereafter on a year to 
year basis. The City anticipates all of its current energy requirements will be satisfied pursuant to the Power 
Purchase Agreement and does not anticipate any difficulties finalizing the same. 

The City also has the ability to purchase electric power and energy through its membership in UAMPS, a 
Utah interlocal cooperative and a separate legal entity and a political subdivision of the State. UAMPS currently 
consists of 45 members in eight states and was created pursuant to a July 19, 1998 agreement (the "UAMPS 
Agreement") which includes two separate appendices that provide for different ways to purchase power 
(respectively, "Appendix 1" and "Appendix 2"). Under Appendix I arrangements, UAMPS purchases power for the 
City on the spot market and provides that power to the City over PacifiCorp's system to the City's distribution 
system. Under the arrangements in Appendix 2, the City is able to purchase power at a fixed price and at a rate 
consistent with the cost of power to other power participants in the Intermountain Power Project. Power available 
under Appendix 2 is purchased in blocks for specific periods of time at a fixed rate which is generally lower than the 
spot market purchase rate. Appendix 2 is what allows the City to purchase power from the Agency since that power 
is delivered pursuant to operational arrangements between the Agency and UAMPS. Power purchased from the 
Agency or UAh4PS is wheeled by UAMPS to the City's electric distribution system through facilities owned by 
PacifiCorp pursuant to regulations promulgated under the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") rules. 

Power Pooline. Agreement. UAMPS has entered into power pooling agreements (the "Pooling 
Agreements") with 40 of its 45 members, including the City (collectively, the "Pool Participants") pursuant to which 



UAMPS acts as agent of each Pool Participant for: (1) the scheduling and dispatch of power and energy; (2) the 
purchase of any power and energy required to meet such Pool Participant's electric system loads or to provide 
reserves therefor; (3) the sale of any power and energy available to a Pool Participant which is deemed surplus to 
meet its electric system loads; (4) the utilization of transmission rights and provision of transmission service to 
effect power and energy deliveries to, and sales by, each Pool Participant; (5) the administmtion of payments with 
respect to each Pool Participant's purchase and sale of power and energy and transmission services; and (6) 
conducting power supply and transmission studies and developing of programs for the acquisition or construction of 
power and transmission resources. 

Under the Pooling Agreements, each Pool Participant may purchase from the pool all of its power and 
energy requirements in excess of its purchased or owned resources. Power supplied by the pool is priced according 
to whether the purchase is "planned or "unplanned" within the meaning of the Pooling Agreements. "Planned" 
purchases are those amounts of power andlor energy that a Pool Participant has scheduled through UAMPS at least 
one hour before such power andlor energy is required. Planned purchases are sold on a firm basis with the price 
based upon negotiation at the time the power andlor energy is scheduled. "Unplanned" purchases are those amounts 
of power andlor energy that the Pool Participant required, as determined by the Pool Participant's meter(s), which do 
not come from the Pool Participant's own resources, including planned purchases under the Pooling Agreements. 

Each Pool Participant may participate in the "All-In Cost Pool" that provides for participants to sell surplus 
resources at the all-in cost or purchase their deficit resource needs at an all-in cost from other participants. After all 
of the participants have satisfied their resource needs, any unutilized resource surplus is purchased by the unplanned 
pool and any deficit resource need is purchased from the unplanned pool. In addition to the Power Pool, UAMPS 
operates a power exchange through which its members are able to enter into forward transactions with one another 
or with UAh4PS for the purchase and sale of power and energy. 

The resources presently dedicated to the UAMPS Power Pool consist of power and energy from the 
following resources: (1) the Pool Participants' allocations of Colorado River Storage Project power and energy; (2) 
electric generating facilities owned and operated by certain of the Pool Participants; (3) power and energy generated 
by UAMPS' at generating stations located in San Juan, New Mexico, Hunter, Utah, and Payson, Utah; (4) power 
and energy purchased by UAMPS under long-term firm power purchase contracts with various wholesale suppliers; 
and (5) non-firm contracts with, and market purchases from, power suppliers, marketers and others throughout the 
West. 

Future Additional Sources. The City has decided to participate in the Horse Butte Wind Project of 
UAMPS. The Horse Butte Wind Project consists of UAMPS' right to purchase all of the output of a 57.6 MW wind 
powered electric generating facility located on over 17,000 acres of land in Bonneville County, Idaho, just outside of 
Idaho Falls, Idaho. The Horse Butt Wind Project is currently under construction and UAMPS is acting as the 
developer of the project. Commercial operation of the Horse Butte Wind Project is expected in December 201 1. 

The output of the Horse Butte Wind Project will be sold by UAMPS to members of UAMPS who have 
decided to participate in the project, including the City. The City has committed to acquire 5 MW of power from the 
Horse Butte Wind Project under a power sales contract pursuant to which the City has agreed to make payments to 
UAMPS in respect of all of the costs of the Horse Butte Wind Project on a "take-or-pay" basis and in amounts 
proportionate to the City's entitlement share in the Horse Butte Wind Project. The payment obligations of the City 
under the Horse Butte Wind Project power sales contracts constitute operating expenses of the City's Electric 
System, payable solely from the available revenues of the related system prior to payment of debt service on the 
Bonds. The City expects to pay approximately $1,060,000 per annum for its purchase of power from the Horse 
Butte Wind Project. The purchase of power from this source will decrease purchases from other sources. 

Electric System Customers. The following table sets forth the number and type of customers (reflected in 
ERUs) served by the Electric System for the fiscal years set forth below: 



Fiscal Year 
201 11" 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 

Residential 
5,513 
5,383 
5,161 
4,847 
4,43 8 
3,465 

Commercial 
54 
5 1 
60 
30 
48 
42 

' Estimated; subject to change. 
(Source: The City.) 

Electric Svstem Requirements and Cost. The City's cost to purchase electric power and energy is 
dependent upon its overall and peak demand requirements during each month and the cost per kwh charged by its 
electric power providers. Prior to July 1, 2005, the City purchased its electric power and energy under the UAMPS 
Agreement. The cost to purchase such power was fixed on a per kwh basis during the months of July through 
September each year and varied during the remaining months of the year. Under the Power Purchase Agreement, 
the City's cost to purchase power is fixed on a per kwh basis all year long. Energy is purchased on a calendar- 
month basis while energy is sold on a variable month-to-month basis. Thus, it is not possible to compare the 
monthly amount of energy purchased with the amount sold. The following table sets forth the total energy 
purchased by the City and its cost for such energy for each month indicated for the period ending June 30,2010. , 

Total Energy Peak Total Cost Total Energy No. of Average Cost 
Month Purchased (kwh)  erna and^') kW per kwh Cost ($) Connections per Connection 

Jun- 10 
May-10 
Apr- I0 
Mar- 10 
Feb- 10 
Jan- 1 0 
Dec-09 
NOV-09 
Oct-09 
Sep-09 
Aug-09 
Jul-09 

'I '  Peak Demand equals the highest fifteen minute average demand for the indicated month and is included in 
the Total Energy Purchased. 

(Source: The City.) 

Electric Svstem Sales. The total sales to the Electric System customers for the Fiscal Years ending 
June 30, 2009, 2010, and 2011 (unaudited) amounted to 52,030,849 kwh, 57,713,091 kwh, and 58,023,643 kwh, 
respectively. The revenues from such energy sales for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2009, 2010, and 201 1 
(unaudited) totaled $5,645,855, $5,978,503, and $6,257,045, respectively. The following tables set forth the 
customer sales by class for the fiscal years ending June 30,2009,2010, and 201 1 (unaudited): 



Fiscal Year end in^ June 30.2009 

Residential 
Commercial 
Total: 

Fiscal Year end in^ June 30.2010 

kwh Sales") ~evenues '~ '  
Residential 49,327,593 $5,504,881 
Commercial 5,385,498 473.621 
Total: 54,713,091 $5,978,503 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.201 1'3) 

Residential 
Commercial 
Total: 

( I )  Consumption (kwh Sales) does not include final billings and other billings outside of the City's 
normal billing cycles. 

(2) Revenues are net of any adjustments made to individual accounts (i.e., results of billing disputes) 
which will affect total revenues. No adjustment has been made to kwh consumption to reflect a 
corresponding adjustment to revenues. Therefore, a simple calculation to multiply consumption 
by the rate for energy to arrive at the sales figure will be erroneous. 

(" Figures for fiscal year 201 1 are unaudited and subject to change. 
(Source: The City.) 

Largest Electric Srstem Customers. The following table sets forth the ten largest customers of the Electric 
System for the Fiscal Year ending June 30,201 I .  These customers comprised approximately 11.6% of total billings 
for the period. 

Customer 

The City 
Alpine School District 
Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints 
The Ranches Golf Club 
Rockwell Charter High School 
Holiday Oil 
Maverik Inc. 
Direct Communications 
Willow Springs HOA 
Ranches Academy Charter School 

TOTAL 

(Source: The City.) 

The Gas System 

Type of Customer 

Governmental 
Institutional 
Institutional 
Commercial 
Institutional 
Commercial 
Commercial 
Commercial 
Commercial 
Institutional 

Annual Electrical Billings 

Facilities. The Gas System includes a 6-inch high pressure gas line that serves as a distribution line from 
the Kern River Gas Tap located in the southern area of the City. The City has entered into a contract with the Kern 
River Pipeline Company to provide a constant gas supply to the City. The construction of a tap to the Kern River 
gas line, regulator stations, and 6-inch steel gas line from the tap to the northern portion of the City were financed 
with proceeds of prior bonds and the proceeds of an assessment bond issued in connection with the creation of a 



special improvement district. The Gas System currently serves approximately 5,524 ERUs. The City's current 
distribution system has the capacity to serve approximately 25,000 ERUs. The total capacity of the 6-inch high 
pressure gas line is approximately 50,000 ERUs. 

Gas Supplv. The City entered into a Natural Gas Sales Agreement on June 5, 1998 (the "Natural Gas 
Agreement") with Wasatch Energy Corporation, a gas marketer ("Wasatch"). Wasatch has since been acquired by 
British Petroleum ("BP") and the Natural Gas Sales Agreement was renegotiated in November 20 10. The Natural 
Gas Agreement can be canceled by the City or BP upon 30 days written notice. Pursuant to the Natural Gas Sales 
Agreement, the City and BP will reach agreement on the quantities of natural gas to be purchased and sold during a 
particular period and the purchase price therefor. Historically, the City has purchased gas on a month to month basis 
at a rate in effect for that particular month. 

Natural gas is delivered to the City by way of the Kern River Pipeline pursuant to an Operating Agreement 
dated May 12, 1998 (the "Gas Delivery Agreement") between the City and Kern River Gas Transmission Company 
("Kern River"). The Gas Delivery Agreement remains in full force and effect until such time that either (1) Kern 
River is ordered by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to abandon such facilities or (2) Kern River, at its 
sole discretion, upon 180 days written notice, elects to terminate the Gas Delivery Agreement. Pursuant to the Gas 
Delivery Agreement the City has a flow range consisting of a minimum flow of 50 decathenns ("D'IH") per day at 
1,050 pounds per square inch gauge ("psig") and a maximum flow of 1,600 DTH per day at 650 psig. The 
maximum rate for such transportation is the posted full rate for firm transportation on the Kern River pipeline, plus 
fuel and fees. Such costs, including any discounts, are passed on to the City by BP. 

The cost of natural gas fluctuates from year to year and seasonally during the year. The cost of natural gas 
increases during the winter months. The fluctuations are part of the instability of the gas market due to supply and 
demand forces. The impact of instability can be reduced through the execution of long-term gas supply contracts, 
although such long-term contracts do not allow the purchasers to gain any benefit in the event gas prices decrease. 
Pursuant to the Natural Gas Sales Agreement, the City can establish purchase periods of varying terms. The City 
monitors the gas markets and attempts to establish gas purchase periods pursuant to the Natural Gas Sales 
Agreement at prices that will be beneficial to the users of the Gas System. 

O~erations. The City staff operates and maintains the Gas System. 

Gas System Customers. The following table sets forth the number and type of customers (reflected in 
ERUs) served by the Gas System for the Fiscal Years set forth: 

Fiscal Year Residential Commercial Total 

( I )  Estimated; subject to change. 
(Source: The City.) 

Gas Demand Reauirements and Cost. The City's cost to purchase natural gas is dependent upon its overall 
requirements during each month and the cost per DTH charged by its natural gas provider. Natural gas is purchased 
on a calendar-month basis but sold on a variable month-to-month basis, thus it is not possible to compare the 
monthly amount of natural gas purchased with the amount sold. The following table sets forth the total gas 
purchased by the City and its cost for such gas for each month indicated for the period ending June 30,201 0: 



Month 

Jun- 10 
May- 10 
Apr- 10 
Mar- I0 
Feb-10 
Jan-10 
Dec-09 
Nov-09 
Oct-09 
Sep-09 
Aug-09 
Jul-09 

Total Gas 
Purchased (DTH) 

Total Cost 
Per DTH 

Total Gas 
Cost ($) 

No. of 
Connections 

Average Cost 
per Connection 

(Source: The City.) 

Natural Gas Sales. The total sales to Gas System customers for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2009, 
2010, and 2011 (unaudited) amounted to 381,657 DTH, 441,629 DTH, and 491,507, respectively. The revenues 
from such gas sales for the Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2009, 2010, and 2011 (unaudited) totaled $4,389,328, 
$4,429,397, and $4,798,115, respectively. The following tables set forth the customer sales by class for the Fiscal 
Years ending June 30,2009 and 2010 (customer sales by class are not currently available for Fiscal Year 201 1): 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.2009 

Residential 
Commercial 
Total: 

DTH sales"' 
36 1,934 
20,023 

381,957 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2010 

DTH sales(" ~evenues (~)  
Residential 414,207 $4,199,525 
Commercial 27.422 229,872 
Total: 44 1,629 $4,429,397 

( I '  Consumption (DTH Sales) does not include final billings and other billings outside of the City's 
normal billing cycles. 

('' Revenues are net of any adjustments made. 
Note: The City uses special multipliers for each type of gas meter used in order to determine the amount 

billed and charged. A simple calculation to multiply consumption by the gas rate to arrive at the 
sales figure will be erroneous without the special multiplier. 

(Source: The City.) 



Largest Natural Gas Customers. The following table sets forth the ten largest customers of the Gas System 
for the Fiscal Year ending June 30,201 1. These customers comprised approximately 3.68% of total billings for the 
period. 

Customer Name 

Alpine School District 
Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints 
The City 
Rockwell Charter High School 
Saratoga Springs FM Group 
Ranches Academy 
Solitude Construction 
Rock Creek HOA 
Highland on the Green HOA 
Richmond American Homes 

TOTAL 

Customer Tvue 

lnstitutional 
Institutional 
Governmental 
lnstitutional 
lnstitutional 
lnstitutional 
Commercial 
Commercial 
Commercial 
Commercial 

Sales $ 

$85,132.84 
19,991.40 
17,054.40 
14,528.19 
10,388.45 
6,439.32 
6,289.60 
5,675.01 
5,569.38 
5.164.1 1 

$174.232.70 

(Source: The City.) 

Existing and Future Demand of the System 

Existing Demand vs. Existing Capacity. The following table sets forth information with respect to existing 
demands against existing capacity: 

Utilitv Descri~tion Units Existinp Demand Existing Capacity 

Gas Metric Cubic Feet (Mcf) 2,935 Mcf per day 7,800 Mcf per day 
Electric Kilowatt (kW) 2 1,000 kW 33,000 kW 

(Source: The City.) 

Existine. Demand vs. Future Cawaciw. The following table sets forth information with respect to existing 
demand against future capacity: 

Utilitv Descrivtion Units Existine. Demand Future Capacity 

Gas Metric Cubic Feet (Mcf) 2,935 Mcf per day 7,800 Mcf per day 
Electric Kilowatt (kW) 21,000 kw 66,000 kw 

(Source: The City.) 

Rates 

As described above under "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS-Rate Covenant," the City has covenanted in 
the Indenture that it will establish and continue in effect at all times while Bonds are outstanding, rates and charges 
for System services which are reasonably expected to yield Net Revenues at least equal to 125% of the Aggregate 
Annual Debt Service on all outstanding Bonds. 

Rates and charges for System services are established by the City Council and are not subject to review or 
approval by any federal or state regulatory agency. 

The City adopted its current rate structure on July 1, 2010. The following table sets forth the current rates 
and charges imposed by the City for the services offered by the System. 



Utility Usage Rate Connection Fee Effective Impact Fee 

Electric Base Rate (Res./Com.): $9.00/$25.00 mo. $989.1 O/Connection $2,2 I 5IConnection 
Usage Rate (Res./Com.): $0.0995/$0.0687/kWh 

Gas Base Rate: $16.0O/mo. $1,167.96/Connection $O*/Connection 
Usage Rate: $8.OO/DTH 

* The City is not authorized to charge impact fees for the Gas System according to the Utah Impact Fee Law. 

The City employs a combined billing statement for all of its utilities, including the System. Customer 
accounts are due and payable by the end of the month in which the billing occurred. Customers who do not pay the 
full amount of the bill within the allotted time period are in default and are subject to disconnection and collection of 
the delinquent amounts. 

Each utility invoice not paid when due is considered delinquent and the delinquent customer is provided a 
final account notice the month following the due date. Any unpaid balance from the prior month becomes 
delinquent at the time the next bill is generated, is assessed a $25 late fee, and is sent a notice alerting the user to the 
possibility of a disruption in services if not paid. Customers are invited to contact City staff during the final account 
notice period to arrange a deferred payment schedule which may be approved by the City. Services terminated for 
non-payment of delinquent accounts shall not be reinstated until payment of the delinquent account is received or an 
acceptable deferred payment contract is approved by the City and the initial payment required under the deferred 
payment schedule is received by the City together with the reconnect fee of $50 to reimburse the City for the 
professional services necessary to reinstate the utility service. A deferred payment schedule contract may be entered 
with a delinquent customer, provided that the deferred payment schedule does not extend for a period of more than 
one year, provides for a specific amount to be paid each month together with interest at the rate of 1 % per month. 
Customers who do not comply with the terms of an executed deferred payment schedule contract are subject to 
termination of service after the City provides the final account notice. Service terminated after default on a deferred 
payment contract form shall not be reinstated until the entire past due amount is paid in full. The City may, at its 
discretion, require an additional utility deposit be paid up to an amount equal to two times the average monthly 
billing for the utility service. 

The City reports that less than 2% of its utility receivable accounts become uncollectable. The City's 
utility "shut-off' procedures ensure that most customers' accounts do not become excessively large before they are 
collected. Delinquent accounts are submitted to the City's collection agency at 90 days past due. 



Comparable Rates 

The following table sets forth the gas and electric rates for municipalities located near the City. The rates 
and charges tend to vary from the City's due to several factors, including age of the respective systems and existing 
prior contractual commitments for purchase of these resources at rates that are not currently available. 

ELECTRICAL 

Ci6y - 
Average electric bill based on 791 kwh usape per month 
Spanish Fork - $82.20 
Payson - $101.65 
Provo - $64.40 

Murray - $7 1.2 1 

Nephi - $60.87 
Lehi - $73.80 
Rocky Mountain Power - 
(May-Sep) $74.45; (Oct-Apr) $64.71 

Springville- $87.71 

Eagle Mountain City- $87.73 

Spanish Fork 
Pay son uses 
Provo uses 
Murray 
Nephi 
Lehi 
Kagle Mountain City 
Questar 

Comuarable Fee (Residential) 
Flat fee of $3.50 + $0.08083 per kwh 
Minimum charge of $9.50, then $0.1 165 per kwh 
Base Rate of $5.00 and $0.075 1 for the first 800 kwh 
and $0.08 per kwh thereafter 
Base Rate of $3.25 and $0.0835 for first 600 kwh and 
$0.0935 per kwh thereafter 
Base Rate of $5.50 and $0.07 per kwh 
Base Rate of $4.50 and $0.087612 per kwh 
Base Rate of $3.75 and $0.075292 per kwh 0-400kWh 
(May-Sep), $0.092749 per kwh 401 -600kWh (May- 
Sep), $0.1 15361 per kwh 600+ kwh (May-Sep), 
$0.078009 per kwh (Oct-Apr), + $3.00 base rate 
Base Rate of $1 1.00 and $0.0771 for first 400kHw and 
$0.0943 for 40 1 kHw-1 OOOkWh, and $0.1 I6 for 
1 ooo+kHw. 
$0.0995 per kwh plus a base charge of'$9.00 

uses Questar's rate 
uses Questar's rate 
uses Questar's rate 
uses Questar's rate 
Base Rate of $5.50 per DTH and usage varies month to month 
uses Questar's rate 
$8.00 per DTHplus a base charge of $14.00 
Flat Fee of $5.00 plus $7.37344 per DTH (0-45 DTH), $6.21572 per 
DTH (45+ DTH) - Summer and $8.32615 per DTH (0-45 DTH), 
$7.04763 per DTH (45+ DTH) - Winter 

(Source: The City .) 

Impact Fees 

Under State law, a municipality is allowed to impose impact fees in connection with the operation of public 
utilities. ''Impact fees" are defined to mean a payment of money imposed upon development activity as a condition 
of development approval to mitigate the impact of the new development on public infrastructure. The impact fee 
must be a reasonable charge for the facilities provided. Before imposing an impact fee, a municipality must 
establish an impact fee facilities plan that identifies the demands placed upon existing public facilities by new 
development activity and the proposed means by which the municipality will meet those demands. Municipalities 
may only expend impact fees for (i) system improvements for public facilities identified in the impact fee facilities 
plan, (ii) system improvements for the specific public facility type for which the fee was collected, or (iii) debt 
service on obligations used to finance such system improvements. The impact fees cannot be used to pay operation 
and maintenance expenses of the related public facility. 



In 1998, the City adopted an impact fee ordinance imposing impact fees as a condition of development 
approval for its utilities and for some public facilities, such as streets. The 1998 Impact Fee Ordinance was revised 
in 1999 and re-enacted in February 2000 to significantly reduce impact fees and to require direct developer 
contributions for public facilities in substitution for facilities financed by the City using impact fees. Impact fees on 
telephone and gas public facilities were also eliminated because under the Utah lmpact Fee Act, the City is not 
authorized to charge impact fees for these utilities. The City reviews and revises its impact fee schedule from time 
to time to reflect the growth of development and the cost to pay for future infrastructure in the City and to assure 
that developers pay a fair share of the debt service for new electric facilities in the future. Impact fees can be 
dedicated specifically to debt service on bonds. 

Licenses, Permits and Approvals 

The City reports that it holds all licenses, permits and approvals necessary for the operation of the System. 
The City has applied to the Bureau of Land Management ("BLM") for a permit relating to the construction a new 
transmission line (part of the Series 201 1 Project) that will be constructed on federal land. The City expects to 
receive BLM approval in time to begin construction in the fall of 201 1. 

(The remainder of this page left intentionally blank.) 



Five-Year Financial Summaries of the System 

The following tables set forth a summary of financial information pertaining to the System (i.e. the 
combined total of the gas fund, relating to the Gas System, and electric fund, relating to the Electric System) for the 
fiscal years indicated. While the information for these summaries has been extracted from the City's audited 
financial statements for the years indicated, the summaries have not been audited. 

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 
Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary F u n d s 4 a s  Fund and Electric Fund 
(This summary has not been audited.) 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2009 - 2008 2007 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Due from other funds 

Total current assets 
Noncurrent Assets: 

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 
Land, equipment, buildings and 
improvements 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Deferred bond financing costs 
(net) 

Total noncurrent assets 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities 
Bond interest payable 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Deposits 
Compensated absences 
Bond premium (net) 
Long-term debt 
(net of current portion) 
Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in cap assets, net of 1,262,398 1,449,245 215,455 (730,681) (670,722) 
related debt 
Restricted - impact fees 834,652 275,370 945,022 1,847,471 1,108,449 
Unrestricted 8,611,894 6,665,719 6,642,374 5.570.597 4.930.612 

Total net assets $10.708.944 $8.390334 $7.802-851 $6.687.387 $5.368.339 

(Source: Extracted from the City's audited basic financial statements for the fiscal years 2006 through 2010. This 
summary itself is not audited.) 



EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds--Gas Fund and Electric Fund 
(This summary has not been audited.) 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2g-O 2009 2008 2007 2006 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for services - - - - 

Charges for services pledged as $1 1,285,03 1 $10,035,183 $1 1,208,729 $9,971,417 $7,889,522 
security on revenue bonds 
Other operating income 7.850 30.194 9,201 1,675 - 

Total operating revenues 1 1,292,881 10,065,377 1 1,217,930 9,973,092 7,889,522 

Operating Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 863,65 1 901,631 756,666 526,173 442,075 
Purchased services 7,438,43 1 7,744,225 7,755,170 6,977,092 5,539,108 
Supplies and materials 279,042 295,520 327,3 18 389,798 95,070 
Depreciation and amortization 1,369,811 1,171,493 1,138,004 1,181,668 1,162,687 
Miscellaneous 7.990 1 1.034 4,470 60,503 60,128 

Total operating expenses L958.925 10.123.903 9.981.628 9.135.234 7,299,068 

Operating income 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

Interest revenue 
Impact fees 
Assessments 
Developer reimbursements 
Loss on sale of assets 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 

Total nonoperating revenues 
(expenses) 

Net income (Loss) before contributions 
and transfers 

Capital contributions 1,056,973 159,405 682,637 304,796 108,080 
Operating transfers in 293,735 456,000 240,000 170,000 120,000 
Operating transfers out (30,000) - - - 

Total contributions and transfers 1,320,708 6 15,405 922,637 474,796 228,080 

Change in net assets 2,3 18,611 587,483 1,115,464 1,319,048 (501,358) 
Total net assets - beginning 8.390.333 7.802.85 1 6.687,387 5,368,339 5.869.697 
Total net assets - ending %10.708.944$8.390.334$7.802.851$6.687.387$5.368.339 

(Source: Extracted from the City's audited basic financial statements for the fiscal years 2006 through 2010. This 
summary itself is not audited.) 



Historical and Pro Forma Debt Service Coverage 

The following table sets forth historical and projected debt service coverage for the fiscal years shown. 

Revenues 
Gas revenues 

Historical 

Electric revenues 

Projecred " 

Other operating Income 
Total Revenues 

Exwnditures 
Gas Operating 
Expenses 
Electr~c Operating 
Expenses 

Total Operating 
Expenses 

Net Ooerating Income 
Non Operat~ng 

Revenues 
Interest revenue 
Impact Fees 

Total Nonaperating 
Revenue 

Transfers (net)"' 
Net Income 
Net h o m e  d o u t  
lmpact Fees 

2006 - 2007 2008 2009 2010 1 2011'~' 2012 2013 2014 2015 

~ e b t  Service 
2005 Bonds 652,2 15 966,244 1,426.244 1,465,144 1,512,119 
201 1 Bonds - - - - - - 

Total Debt Service 652,215 966,244 1 , 4 2 6 G  1,465,144 I ,512,119 
Debt Service Coverage 

with Impact ~ e e s [ "  3 . 9 3 ~  3 22x 2 . 3 1 ~  1 42x 2 . 3 6 ~  2 . 2 5 ~  1 33x 1 . 3 4 ~  1 . 3 6 ~  1 . 3 7 ~  

(1)  Assumes an average growth rate in revenues of 3% per annum and an average growth rate in expenses of 3.5% per annum. 
(2) Estimated, based on fiscal year 201 0. 
(3) Includes transfers in for electric usage from water and sewer funds for sewer treatment facility and a one-time transfer out in fiscal year 2010 to help fund work on the 

City mdeo arena 
(4) Net income with impact fees divided by total debt service. 
(Source: The City for revenue and expense figures: Financial Advisor for all other numbers.) 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Revenues 

The City's audited financial statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2010 and the auditors' report 
thereon in APPENDIX A of this Official Statement contain a Management Discussion and Analysis in connection 
with the annual financial report of the City. 

The operating results of the System reflect the results of past operations and are not necessarily indicative 
of results of operations for any future period. Future operations will be affected by factors relating to changes in 
rates, fuel and other operating costs, utility industry regulation and deregulation, environmental regulation, 
economic growth of the community, population, weather and other matters, the nature and effect of which cannot at 
present be determined. See "FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS." 

All revenues of the City are accounted for within the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, or Enterprise 
Funds. The General Fund includes governmental services such as municipal administration, law enforcement and 
emergency services, planning and building services, streets maintenance, parks and recreation, and various 
community and cultural programs. The Special Revenue Funds consist of four separate Special Improvement 
Districts (SIDs), which were created to fund certain City infrastructure and landscaping needs through special 
assessments of property owners within each of the SIDs. The Enterprise Funds account for the public utility 
operations of the City, including water, sewer, electric power, natural gas energy, and telecommunications services. 

General Fund. Revenues in the General Fund increased approximately 63% from FY 2005 to FY 2006, 
increased approximately 28.5% from FY 2006 to FY 2007, decreased approximately 26% from FY 2007 to FY 
2008, and decreased approximately 2% from FY 2008 to FY 2009. The decrease in revenue from FY 2007 to FY 
2008 was due mainly to decreases in licenses and permits as well as the fact that impact fees are now recorded as 
Non-major Governmental Revenue. In FY 2009, charges for services and Intergovernmental revenue increased 
while taxes, licenses and permits decreased. General Fund revenues increased approximately 7.5% from FY 2009 to 
FY 2010. That increase was due to revenue stream increases across the board. The City anticipates General Fund 
revenue growth to remain constant for the next one or two years. This reflects the stabilization of the national 
economy and the effect that should have on development and building activity in the city which mirrors the national 
trend. 

The City has experienced an increase in sales tax revenue as well as road fund revenue received from the 
State. Property tax revenue is expected to decrease as a percentage of total General Fund revenue as new residential, 
and to a lesser extent, commercial property suffers affects from the current economic conditions. 

Special Revenue Funds. The City received $4,166,034 in special assessments and other related 
miscellaneous revenue in FY 2005, and $7,606,561 in FY 2006, $7,198,224 in FY 2007, $585,043 in FY 2008, 
$419,457 in FY 2009, and $657,738 in FY 2010. This is restricted revenue that is pledged for repayment of special 
assessment bonds. 

At the end of Fiscal Year 201 0, the City had two special assessment bond issues outstanding: $4,224,000 
Town of Eagle Mountain Special Assessment Bonds Series 2006 (SID 2000-1) and the $1,396,000 Eagle Mountain 
City Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2005A (SID 98-1). The Special Assessment Bond 1998-3 was 
paid off during FY 2008. The City may create additional special assessment districts and issue special assessment 
bonds in the future to finance certain infrastructure improvements. 

Enterprise Funds. Operating revenues for the combined Enterprise Funds, which consist of the Water, 
Sewer, Electric, Natural Gas, and Solid Waste Collection, are generated from utility usage charges, connection fees, 
investment earnings, and other miscellaneous sources. Combined Enterprise Fund operating revenue increased 
approximately 27% from FY 2005 to FY 2006, 18% from FY 2006 to FY 2007, 13% from FY 2007 to FY 2008, 
decreased 8.3% from FY 2008 to FY 2009, and increased 13% from FY 2009 to FY 2010. This increase in revenue 
was basically due to the stabilization of the current market conditions have had on residential and commercial 
occupation of property within the city. The City estimates that new utility connections will grow at an average rate 
of approximately 10 connections per month, resulting in combined Enterprise Fund operating revenue growth at a 
comparatively modest rate of about 5% in FY 201 I .  



Electric and Natural Gas Funds Or~eratin~ Revenue and Expenses. Electric Fund operating revenue 
increased, 39% from FY 2005 to FY 2006, and 28% from FY 2006 to FY 2007, 13% from FY 2007 to FY 2008, 
decreased 10% from FY 2008 to FY 2009 and increased 15% from FY 2009 to FY 2010. Natural Gas Fund 
operating revenue increased 39% from FY 2004 to FY 2005,60% from FY 2005 to FY 2006,25% from FY 2006 to 
FY 2007,12.5% from FY 2007 to FY 2008, decreased 10% from FY 2008 to FY 2009, and 9% from FY 2009 to FY 
20 10. The revenue increases from FY 2004 to FY 2009 correspond to an increase from approximately 2,5 1 1 electric 
connections and 2,324 natural gas connections in service at the end of FY 2004 to 5,221 electric and 5,110 gas 
connections in service at the end of FY 2009. The increase from FY 2009 to FY 2010 represents increases in 
connections as well as higher occupation rates due to the stabilization of the national economy. Electric and Natural 
Gas combined revenues are projected to increase about 5% in FY 2010. Revenue growth projections are subject to 
weather conditions and the economy. 

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 

Introduction 

Eagle Mountain City was incorporated December 3, 1996. The City covers approximately 52.7 square 
miles. Prior to incorporation, the City consisted of two residential subdivisions with agriculture being the 
predominant land use. As of the date of its incorporation, the City had an initial population of 175 people. As of 
June 30, 2010, the City's population was approximately 24,000 people. The City estimates that it is currently 15% 
built out and estimates reaching full build-out in the next 50 years with a population of 225,000. The City is located 
in Utah County, 30 miles northwest of Provo City and approximately 40 miles southwest of Salt Lake City, Utah 
and Salt Lake Counties are the two most populated counties in the State. 

Existing and Contemplated Development 

At incorporation, the City had no commercial center. The City now has one business park with real estate 
offices and medical offices. The City has issued 69 building permits year-to-date (as of June 30, 20 1 I). During the 
calendar year 2010, the City issued a total of 209 building permits. 

Utilities 

In addition to the System, the City currently owns and operates the water, sewer and telecommunications 
utilities (each a "Utility" and collectively, the "Utilities") serving the City. The City has completed expansion of 
water, electrical power and natural gas systems to meet the required utility capacity. All Utility facilities are 
maintained and operated by City employees or by independent contractors under management contracts with the 
City. 

Form of Government 

Utah statutes detail the functions to be performed by Utah municipalities. The City is organized under 
general law and governed by a Mayor and five Council members elected for staggered four-year terms. The Mayor 
presides over all meetings. 

Department heads are full-time employees of the City and responsible for day-to-day operations within the 
policy framework of the governing body. Department heads report to the City Administrator. 

The principal powers and duties of Utah municipalities are to maintain law and order, abate nuisances, 
guard public health and sanitation, promote recreation, provide fire protection, and to construct and maintain streets, 
sidewalks, waterworks and sewers. Municipalities may also operate electric, natural gas and telecommunications 
systems. Municipalities also regulate commercial and residential development within their boundaries by means of 
zoning ordinances, building codes and licensing procedures. 

Current members of the legislative body and city administration along with their respective terms in office 
are as follows: 



OfficeIArea Person Expiration of Term 

Mayor 
Councilmember 
Councilmember 
Councilmember 
Councilmember 
Councilmember 
City Administrator 
Assistant City Administrator 
City Recorder 
City Treasurer 
Energy Division Director 

Heather Jackson 
Donna Burnham 
Jon Celaya 
Ryan Ireland 
Nathan Ochsenhirt 
John Painter 
John Hendrickson 
Ifo Pili 
Fionnuala Kofoed 
Gordon Burt 
Adam Ferre 

January 20 14 
January 20 1 2 
January 2012 
January 20 12 
January 20 14 
January 2014 

Appointed 
Appointed 
Appointed 
Appointed 
Appointed 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Fund Structure; Accounting Basis 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or groups of accounts, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund or account group are accounted for by 
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenues and 
expenditures or expenses. The various funds are grouped by type in the combined financial statements. 

Revenues and expenditures are recognized using the modified accrual basis of accounting in all 
governmental funds. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and 
available. "Measurable" means that amounts can be reasonably determined within the current period. "Available" 
means that amounts are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of 
the current period. Revenues on cost-reimbursement grants are accrued when the related expenditures are incurred. 

In proprietary funds, revenues and expenses are recognized using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable, and expenses 
are recognized in the period incurred. See "APPENDIX A-BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201GNotes to the Financial 
Statements-Note 1-Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" below. 

Budget and Appropriation Process 

The budget and appropriation process of the City is governed by the Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act for 
Utah Cities (the "Fiscal Procedures Act"). Pursuant to the Fiscal Procedures Act, the budget officer of the City is 
required to prepare budgets for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds and capital improvement 
funds. These budgets are to provide a complete financial plan for the budget (ensuing fiscal) year. Each budget is 
required to specify, in tabular form, estimates of anticipated revenues and appropriations for expenditures. Under 
the Fiscal Procedures Act, the total of anticipated revenues must equal the total of appropriated expenditures. 

On or before the first regular meeting of the City Council of the City in May of each year, the budget 
oflcer is required to submit to the City Council tentative budgets for all funds for the fiscal year commencing 
July I .  Various actual and estimated budget data are required to be set forth in the tentative budgets. The budget 
officer may revise the budget requests submitted by the heads of City departments, but must file these submissions 
with the City Council together with the tentative budget. The budget officer is required to estimate in the tentative 
budget the revenue from non-property tax sources available for each fund and the revenue from general property 
taxes required by each fund. The tentative budget is then tentatively adopted by the City Council, with any 
amendments or revisions that the City Council deems advisable prior to the public hearing on the tentative budget. 
After public notice and hearing, the tentative budget is adopted by the City Council, subject to further amendment or 
revisions by the City Council prior to adoption of the final budget. 



Prior to June 22 in each year, the final budgets for all funds are adopted by the City Council. The Fiscal 
Procedures Act prohibits the City Council from making any appropriation in the final budget of any fund in excess 
of the estimated expendable revenue of such fund. The adopted final budget is subject to amendment by the City 
Council during the fiscal year. However, in order to increase the budget total of any fund, public notice and hearing 
must be provided. Intra- and inter- department transfers of appropriation balances are permitted upon compliance 
with the Fiscal Procedures Act. 

The amount set forth in the final budget as the total amount of estimated revenue from property taxes 
constitutes the basis for determining the property tax levy to be set by the City Council for the succeeding tax year. 

Employee Work Force and Retirement System 

The City currently employs approximately 75 full-time employees and approximately 31 part-time 
employees for a total employment of approximately 106 employees. The City is a member of the Utah State 
Retirement System and participates in a deferred compensation plan. The City does not currently have any 
unfunded pension liability. See "APPENDIX A- BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010-Notes to the Financial Statements-Note 13- 
Retirement Plan" below. For more information regarding the Utah State Retirement Systems (of which the City is a 
member) and the funding status of its programs, see its annual report at its website www.urs.org. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The City reports that is has no liabilities relating to post-employment benefits. 

Risk Management 

The City provides for its general liability risks through insurance contracts which are issued annually to 
private insurance underwriters. Property insurance is provided by individual policies of insurance. The City 
believes its risk management policies and coverages are normal and within acceptable coverage limits for the type of 
services the City provides. See "APPENDIX A- BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201kNotes  to the Financial Statements Note 12- 
Risk Management" below. 

Investment of Funds 

Investment of Operating Funds: The Utah Monev Management Act. The Utah Money Management Act, 
Title 5 1, Chapter 7, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the "Money Management Act"), governs the 
investment of all public funds held by public treasurers in the State of Utah (the "State"). It establishes criteria for 
investment of public funds with an emphasis on safety, liquidity, yield, matching strategy to fund objectives, and 
matching the term of investments to the availability of funds. The Money Management Act provides a limited list of 
approved investments including qualified in-state and permitted out-of-state financial institutions, approved 
government agency securities and investments in corporate securities carrying "top credit ratings." The Money 
Management Act also provides for pre-qualification of broker dealers by requiring that broker dealers agree in 
writing to comply with the Money Management Act and certify that they have read and understand the Money 
Management Act. The Money Management Act establishes the Money Management Council (the "Money 
Management Council") to exercise oversight of public deposits and investments. The law requires all securities to 
be delivered versus payment to the public treasurer's safekeeping bank. It requires diversification of investments, 
especially in securities of corporate issuers. Not more than 5% of the portfolio may be invested with any one issuer. 
Investments in mortgage pools and mortgage derivatives or any security making unscheduled periodic principal 
payments are prohibited. The Money Management Act also defines the State's prudent investor rules. The Money 
Management Council is comprised of five members appointed by the Governor of the State for terms of four years, 
after consultation with the State Treasurer and with the advice and consent of the State Senate. 



The City is currently complying with all of the provisions of the Money Management Act for all City 
operating funds. A majority of City funds are invested in the Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund (the "Utah 
Treasurer's Fund"), as discussed below. 

The Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund. The Utah Treasurers' Fund is a public treasurers' 
investment fund, established in 1981, and is managed by the Treasurer of the State of Utah. The Utah Treasurers' 
Fund invests to ensure safety of principal, liquidity and a competitive rate of return on short-term investments. All 
moneys transferred to the Utah Treasurers' Fund are promptly invested in securities authorized by the Money 
Management Act. Safe-keeping and audit controls for all investments owned by the Utah Treasurers' Fund must 
comply with the Money Management Act. 

All investments in the Utah Treasurers' Fund must comply with the Money Management Act and rules of 
the Money Management Council. The Utah Treasurers' Fund invests primarily in money market securities 
including time certificates of deposit, top rated commercial paper, treasuries and certain agencies of the U.S. 
Government. The maximum weighted average adjusted life of the portfolio, by policy, is not to exceed 90 days. 
The maximum final maturity of any security purchased by the Utah Treasurers' Fund is limited to three years, 
except for a maximum maturity of five years is allowed for treasury or agency securities whose rate adjusts at least 
annually. 

By law, investment transactions are conducted only through certified dealers, qualified depositories or 
directly with issuers of the securities. All securities purchased are delivered via payment to the custody of the State 
Treasurer or the State Treasurer's safekeeping bank, assuring a perfected interest in the securities. Securities owned 
by the Utah Treasurers' Fund are completely segregated from securities owned by the State. The State has no claim 
on assets owned by the Utah Treasurers' Fund except for any investment of State moneys in the Utah Treasurers' 
Fund. Deposits are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State. 

Securities in the Utah Treasurers' Fund include certificates of deposit, commercial paper, short-term 
corporate notes, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and securities of certain agencies of the U.S. Government. These 
short-term securities must be rated "first tier" ("A-1," "Pl," for short-term investments and "A" or better for long- 
term investments) by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, one of which must be Moody's 
Investors Service, Inc. or Standard & Poor's Ratings Group, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. These 
securities represent limited risks to governmental institutions investing with the Utah Treasurers' Fund. Variable 
rate securities in the Utah Treasurers' Fund must have an index or rate formula that has a correlation of at least 94% 
of the effective Federal Funds rate. 

Investment activity of the State Treasurer in the management of the Utah Treasurer's Fund is reviewed 
monthly by the State's Money Management Council and audited by the State Auditor. 

See "APPENDIX A-BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201GNotes to the Financial Statements-Note 2 A a s h  
Equivalents and Investments." 

Financial Record and Statements 

The City presently maintains its financial records on a July I to June 30 fiscal year basis. See 
APPENDIX A of this Official Statement for a copy of the City's audited financial statements for the fiscal year 
ending June 30'20 10. 

Five-Year Financial Summaries of the City 

The following tables set forth a summary of certain financial information regarding the City and was 
extracted from the City's audited general purpose financial statements for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2006, 
through June 30,2010. The summaries themselves are unaudited. 



(The remainder of this page left intentionally blank.) 
EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 

Statement of Net Assets 
Governmental Activities 

(This summary has not been audited.) 

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable: 

Customers (net of allowance) 
lntergovemmental 
Assessments receivable 
Taxes receivable 

Prepaid expenses 
Internal balances 
Deferred bond cost (net) 
Capital assts (net of depreciation): 

Land 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Equipment and systems 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 

Total Assets 
LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities 

Deposits 
Deferred revenue 
Bond interest payable 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 
NET ASSETS: 

Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 
Restricted for C roads 
Restricted for impact fees 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2009 - - 2008 2007 

(Source: Extracted from the City's audited basic financial statements for the fiscal years 2006 through 
summary itself is not audited.) 

2010. This 



REVENUES 
Taxes 
Licenses & permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Impact fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fund 
(This summary has not been audited.) 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2010 - - 2009 2008 2007 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 3,013,708 3,184,802 3,246,747 2,840,207 
Public safety 3,146,335 3,162,711 2,811,955 2,027,829 
Public works 818,528 1,218,766 1,295,866 761,717 
Planning and zoning 273,129 304,463 346,933 22 1,004 
Community development 1,538,065 894,762 895,471 855,794 

Capital outlay 233.085 - - 1,252.406 
Total expenditures 9.022.850 8.765.504 8396,972 7,958,957 

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures (607,188) (932,002) (61 5,305) 2,827,830 2,858,905 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating transfers in 2,506,726 - - - - 

Operating transfers out (1,338,888) (151.004) J3.350.258) (2,550,698) (375.335) 
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) 1,167,838 ( 15 1.004) (3.350.258) J2.550.698) (375.335) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 560,650 (1,083,006) (3,965,563) 277,132 2,483,570 
Fund Balance - beginning of year 799.400 1.882.406 5,847,969 5.570337 3.087.267 
Fund Balance - end of year $1.360.050 $799.400$1182A06%5.847.969$5.570.837 

(Source: Extracted from the City's audited basic financial statements for the fiscal years 2006 through 2010. This 
summary itself is not audited.) 



Outstanding Municipal Indebtedness of the City 

The following tables set forth the outstanding obligations of the City as of June 30, 201 1 : 

GAS AND ELECTRIC REVENUE BONDS 

Principal Balance 
Series Purpose Original Amount Final Maturity Date Outstanding 

2005 ~ e f u n d i n ~ ( ' )  $21,475,000 June 1,2026 $19,725,000 
201 1 System ~rn~rovernents(~) $1 1,085,000 June 1,203 1 1 1.085.000 

Total Outstanding Gas and Electric Revenue Bonds ............................................................. %30.810.000 

( I )  These obligations are the Outstanding Parity Bonds. 
(2' For purposes of this Official Statement it is assumed that the Series 201 1 Bonds are issued and outstanding. 

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS 

Principal Balance 
Outstanding 

Pumose Original Amount Final Maturitv Date (as of June 30,201 1) 

2007 Refunding $1 6,500,000 July 1,203 1 $15,205,000 
2008 Treatment Plant 6,665,000 November 15,2029 6,587.000 

Total Outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds ............................................................ $22:792.000 

EXCISE TAX ROAD BONDS 

Series Purpose 

2004 Class C Roads 

Principal Balance 
Outstanding 

Original Amount Final Maturity Date (as of June 30,20 1 1) 

$1,226,000 September 1,20 14 $32&2x9 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS 

Principal Balance 
Outstanding 

Purvose Original Amount Final Maturitv Date (as of June 30,201 1) 

2004A SID 1998-1 $6,295,000 May 1,2013 $1,081,000 
2006 SID 2000-1 8,840,000 February 1,202 1 3.529.000 

Total Outstanding Special Assessment Bonds ....................................................................... $4.610.QQO 

No Defaulted Bonds 

The City has never failed to pay principal and interest when due on any of its bonds, notes or other 
financial obligations. 

Future Debt Plans 

The City does not presently contemplate the issuance of additional Bonds in the next three years. However, 
the City reserves the right to issue additional bonds as its needs may require. 



BONDHOLDERS' RISKS 

The purchuse of the Series 2011 Bonds involves certain investment risks that are discussed throughout this 
Oflcial Statement. No prospective purchaser of the Series 201 1 Bonds should make a decision to purchase any of 
the Series 201 1 Bonds without first reading and considering the entire Official Statement, including all Appendices, 
and making an independent evaluation of all such information. Certain of those investment risks are described 
below. The list of risks described below is not intended to be definitive or exhaustive and the order in which the 
following factors are presented is not intended to reflect the relative importance of any such risks. 

General 

The Series 201 1 Bonds are payable from and secured by a pledge and assignment of Net Revenues from 
the System and moneys on deposit in the funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the Indenture. Future 
economic and other conditions, the demand for gas and electric services within the City and the surrounding areas, 
economic and employment trends and events, demographic changes, changes in governmental regulations and 
policies and other factors may adversely affect the future financial condition of the System, and, consequently, the 
availability of Net Revenues. No assurance can be made that the Net Revenues of the System will be realized 
by the City in amounts sufficient to pay debt service on the Series 2011 Bonds when due. 

Operation of the System 

In order for the City to make timely payment of the principal and interest requirements of the Series 201 1 
Bonds and to meet its other obligations under the Indenture, it will be necessary for the City to manage, operate and 
maintain the System in an efficient and economical manner that is consistent with prudent utility practice. The City 
is exempt from regulation by the Utah Public Service Commission but the operation of the System is subject to the 
requirements of various governmental rules and regulations and the System must be operated in compliance with 
these requirements. In the event that the System is not operated or is not capable of operation as required by the 
provisions of such governmental rules and regulations, the City may be subject to certain penalties. 

In addition, the System is a relatively new enterprise and has a limited history of operation. The City 
believes that the System will be operated in a manner that will allow it to pay Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
for the System, as well as debt service on the Series 201 1 Bonds. However, due to the lack of operational history, 
certain factors affecting the System such as dependability, efficiency, useful life of components and costs of 
operation are unknown. 

To the extent the System develops operational problems, Operation and Maintenance Expenses may need 
to be reduced or rates for the System may need to be increased to produce sufficient Revenues unless other sources 
of funds are obtained. In the event that Revenues need to be increased for the continued operation of the System 
(and to pay debt service on the Series 201 1 Bonds), it may be necessary to increase rates for the System. The City 
has covenanted in the Indenture that it will ensure that the rates, including connection fees, for all services supplied 
by the System to all customers within or without the boundaries of the City when combined with other Revenues, 
shall be sufficient to pay the Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the System, and to provide Net Revenues for 
each Bond Fund Year of not less than 125% of the Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement for such Bond 
Fund Year plus an amount sufficient to fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund in the time, rate and manner specified in 
the Indenture; provided, however, that pursuant to State law such rates must be reasonable rates for the type, kind 
and character of the service rendered. Furthermore, the City may decide not make any rate increases due to 
political, feasibility or other concerns. 

Electric and Gas Prices 

The sources of electric power and natural gas are limited and their availability can be further restricted by a 
variety of factors, including production activities, political decisions and environmental factors. As scarce 
resources, their prices are affected by supply and demand. The supply and demand nature of the electric and gas 
markets can and do cause those markets to fluctuate from time to time, sometimes quite significantly. The City 
cannot predict whether such prices will increase in the future. An increase in the cost of natural gas or power could 



negatively impact upon Net Revenues of the City and may affect the City's ability to pay debt service on the Series 
201 1 Bonds. 

Destruction of the System 

The Indenture requires that the City, in its operation of the System, maintain insurance in such amounts and 
to such extent as is normally carried by other municipalities operating public utilities of the same size and type. In 
the event of any loss or damage, the lndenture requires that the proceeds of any insurance shall be used first for the 
purpose of restoring or replacing the property lost or damaged. Any remainder is to be paid into the Bond Fund. 
However, there can be no assurance that the proceeds of such insurance will be sufficient to restore or replace the 
lost or damaged property. 

Damage to or destruction of the System may prevent the City from providing gas and electric service to 
some or all of its customers. In such event, the Net Revenues may decrease. 

Changes in the Electrical Utility Industry 

General. The electric utility industry has been, and in the future will be, affected by a number of factors 
that will have an impact on the business, affairs and financial condition of both public and private electric utilities, 
including the City's Electric System. 

One of the most significant of these factors is the effort on both the national and local levels to restructure 
the electric utility industry from a heavily regulated, vertically integrated monopoly to an industry in which there is a 
separation of control between generation and transmission and open competition for power supply service on both 
the wholesale and retail level. 

In addition, such factors include, among others (i) effects of compliance with rapidly changing 
environmental, safety, licensing, regulatory and legislative requirements, (ii) changes resulting from conservation 
and demand-side management programs on the timing and use of electric energy, (iii) changes that might result from 
a regional or national energy pool, (iv) increasing competition from independent power producers, marketers and 
brokers, (v) "self generation" by certain industrial and commercial customers, (vi) issues relating to the ability to 
issue tax-exempt obligations, (vii) changes from projected future load requirements, (viii) increases in costs, and (ix) 
shifts in the availability and relative costs of different fuels. Any of these factors (as well as other factors) could 
have an effect on the financial condition of any given electric utility and likely will affect individual utilities in 
different ways. 

Enerrrv Policv Act of 2005. On August 8, 2005, the Energy Policy Act of 2005 (the "2005 Energy Policy 
Act") was signed into law. The Energy Policy Act of 2005 provides incentives for traditional energy production as 
well as newer, more efficient energy technologies, and conservation. The 2005 Energy Policy Act provides for, 
among other things: (i) the repeal of the Public Utility Holding Company Act ("PUHCA"), although some 
responsibilities under PUHCA are transferred to FERC and state regulatory commissions; (ii) a grant to FERC of 
authority to site transmission facilities if states are unwilling or unable to approve siting; (iii) a directive to FERC to 
permit incentive rate policies as a means to encourage transmission expansion; (iv) revisions to the Public Utility 
Regulatory Policies Act; (v) the establishment of service obligation protections for native load customers of utilities 
in certain areas of the country; (vi) the creation of limited FERC jurisdiction over interstate transmission assets of 
municipal utilities, cooperatives and federal utilities, to permit FERC to order those entities to provide transmission 
services on rates and terms comparable to those that the entities charge and provide to themselves; (vii) the 
establishment of mandatory electric reliability rules for all market participants and the creation of a self regulatory 
reliability organization, subject to oversight by FERC; and (viii) the provision of certain tax incentives to encourage 
expansion of transmission facilities and improvement of environmental standards. As directed by the 2005 Energy 
Policy Act, FERC has adopted many of the applicable implementing regulations. 

FERC continues to issue regulations and decisions interpreting and implementing the various provisions of 
the 2005 Energy Policy Act. The City is not able to predict at this time the effects, if any, that the 2005 Energy 
Policy Act or the adoption of such regulations will have on the City or the System. 



Utah Leeislative Activities. In March 2008 the Utah Legislature adopted Senate Bill 202-Energy Resource 
and Carbon Emission Reduction Initiative ("S.B. 202'7, which provides that 20% of a municipal electric utility's or 
electrical corporation's adjusted retail electric sales beginning in 2025 come from renewable energy resources or 
renewable energy certificates, if cost effective. S.B. 202 does not provide for any incremental targets or goals 
before 2025, but does require reports concerning a municipal electric utility's progress in acquiring qualifying 
resources. S.B. 202 does not require an electric utility to (i) substitute renewable energy resources for existing 
energy sources, including existing power purchase contracts and generation units or (ii) enter into any additional 
power sales contracts or any other arrangement for the sale or disposition of electricity that such electric utility 
would not otherwise enter into. The financial and operational impact, if any, on the City and the System resulting 
from, the adoption of S.B. 202 is not known at this time. 

In recent legislative sessions, the Utah Legislature has considered and adopted several other bills and 
resolutions relating to various energy policy matters, including economic development incentives for alternative 
energy projects, encouragement of municipally-owned utilities to consider participating in renewable energy 
projects and encouragement of the State of Utah to withdraw from the Western Climate Initiative. During the 201 1 
general session, the Utah Legislature passed House Joint Resolution 19, which expressed the Legislature's 
opposition to the EPA's regulation of greenhouse gases without Congressional approval. 

The financial and operational impact, if any, on the City and the System resulting from the bills and 
resolutions adopted by the Utah Legislature is not known at this time. 

Need For City To Expand Utilities 

In order to meet current projections in population growth, it will be necessary for the City to expand not 
only the System, but its water and sewer utilities as well. The City anticipates that the costs of any such expansions 
could be paid from a variety or combination of sources including debt instruments, developer contributions, growth 
moneys, impact fees or revenues produced from the respective utilities. In the event the City could not obtain 
moneys from the aforementioned sources or other sources to pay for expansions to the City's utilities, it is unlikely 
that such expansions would be undertaken and development and growth within the City would be adversely affected. 

NO DEFAULTED OBLIGATIONS 

General 

The City has never failed to pay principal of or interest on its financial obligations when due. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

The financial statements of the City as of June 30, 2010 and for the year then ended, included in this 
Official Statement, have been audited by Gilbert & Stewart ("Gilbert & Stewart"), Provo, Utah, Certified Public 
Accountants, as stated in their report in APPENDIX A of this Official Statement. Gilbert & Stewart has not been 
asked to consent to the use of its name and audited financial report of the City for fiscal year ended June 30,201 0, in 
this Official Statement. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The City has undertaken for the benefit of the Owners and the Beneficial Owners of the Series 201 1 Bonds 
to provide certain annual financial information and operating data to the Municipal Security Rulemaking Board (the 
"MSRB") and the City has undertaken for the benefit of the Owners and Beneficial Owners of the Series 2011 
Bonds to provide notice of certain material events to the MSRB all in order to assist the Underwriter in complying 
with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Rule"). See APPENDIX E attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference for a form of the Continuing Disclosure that will be executed and 
delivered by the City. 



A failure by the City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure will not constitute an event of default under 
the Indenture and owners of the Series 2011 Bonds are limited to the remedies described in the Continuing 
Disclosure. See "Appendix E-FORM OF CONTINUING DlSCLOSURE UNDERTAKTNG." A failure by the 
City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be 
considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the 
Series 201 1 Bonds in the secondary market. Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability 
and liquidity of the Series 201 1 Bonds and their market price. 

The City reports that for the last five years it has been in compliance with all disclosure undertakings. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Absence of Litigation 

Parsons, Kinghorn, Harris will issue an opinion dated the date of closing, that will state, among other things 
that there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or any other litigation or investigation at law or in equity, before or 
by any court, public board or body, which is pending or threatened, (a) challenging the creation, organization, or 
existence of the City; (b) the titles of its officers to their respective offices; (c) seeking to restrain or enjoin the 
issuance, sale, or delivery of the Series 201 1 Bonds; (d) directly or indirectly contesting or affecting the proceedings 
or the authority by which the Series 201 1 Bonds are issued; (e) the validity of the Series 201 1 Bonds or the issuance 
thereof or (f) which if determined adversely to the City would have a materially adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the City or its ability to meet the debt service requirements on the Series 201 1 Bonds. 

General 

All legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Series 201 1 Bonds are subject to the 
approval of Ballard Spahr LLP, Bond Counsel to the City. Certain matters relating to disclosure will be passed upon 
by Ballard Spahr LLP, Disclosure Counsel to the City. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City by 
Parsons, Kinghorn, Harris, Salt Lake City, Utah. The approving opinion of Bond Counsel will be delivered with the 
Series 201 I Bonds. A form of the opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in APPENDIX D of this Oficial Statement. 

TAX MATTERS 

Federal Income Tax. In the opinion of Ballard Spahr LLP, Bond Counsel to the City, interest on the Series 
201 1 Bonds is excludable from gross income for purposes of federal income tax under existing laws as enacted and 
construed on the date of initial delivery of the Series 201 1 Bonds, assuming the accuracy of the certifications of the 
City and continuing compliance by the City with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Interest 
on the Series 201 1 Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of either individual or corporate federal 
alternative minimum tax ("AMY); however, interest on Series 201 1 Bonds held by a corporation (other than an S 
corporation, regulated investment company, or real estate investment trust) may be indirectly subject to federal 
AMT because of its inclusion in the adjusted current earnings of a corporate holder. 

Original Issue Premium. Certain of the Series 201 1 Bonds are offered at a premium ("original issue 
premium") over principal amount. Original issue premium is amortizable periodically over the term of a Series 
201 1 Bond through reductions in the holder's tax basis for the Series 201 1 Bond for determining taxable gain or loss 
from sale or from redemption prior to maturity. Amortizable premium is accounted for as reducing the tax-exempt 
interest on the Series 201 1 Bond rather than creating a deductible expense or loss. Bondholders should consult their 
tax advisors for an explanation of the amortization rules. 

Original Issue Discount. Certain of the Series 201 1 Bonds are offered at a discount ("original issue 
discount") equal generally to the difference between public offering price and principal amount. Original issue 
discount on a Series 201 1 Bond accrues as tax-exempt interest periodically over the t e n  of the Series 201 1 Bond. 
The accrual of original issue discount increases the holder's tax basis in the Series 201 1 Bond for determining 
taxable gain or loss from sale or from redemption prior to maturity. Bondholders should consult their tax advisors 
for an explanation of the accrual rules. 



State Of Utah Income Tax. Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds is 
exempt from State of Utah individual income taxes under currently existing law. 

No Further Opinion. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences relating to 
ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series 201 1 Bonds. 

BOND RATINGS 

The Series 201 1 Bonds are expected to be rated "AA+" (negative outlook) by Standard & Poor's Ratings 
Services ("S&P"), a Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC business, with the understanding that upon delivery 
of the Series 201 1 Bonds the Policy insuring the payment when due of principal of and interest on the Series 201 1 
Bonds will be issued by the Insurer. See "BOND INSURANCE herein. S&P has assigned an underlying rating 
(without respect to the Policy) of "A" to the Series 201 1 Bonds. In addition Fitch Ratings ("Fitch) has assigned an 
underlying rating (without respect to the Policy) of "A" to the Series 201 1 Bonds. 

Such ratings reflect only the views of such organizations and any desired explanation of the significance of 
such ratings should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same. The ratings are not a recommendation 
to buy, sell or hold the Series 201 1 Bonds and there is no assurance such ratings will continue for any given period 
of time or that such ratings will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency, if in the 
judgment of such rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such 
ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Series 201 1 Bonds. The City and the Underwriter 
have undertaken no responsibility either to bring to the attention of the Registered Owners or the Beneficial Owners 
of the Series 201 1 Bonds any proposed change in or withdrawal of such ratings or to oppose any such change or 
withdrawal. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. has been employed as an independent financial advisor to the 
City in connection with the delivery of the Series 201 1 Bonds. The financial advisor's fee for services rendered 
with respect to the Series 201 1 Bonds is contingent upon the delivery of such Series 201 1 Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Series 201 1 Bonds are being purchased by George K. Baum & Company, acting as the underwriter 
(the "Underwriter"), pursuant to a Bond Purchase Agreement between the City and the Underwriter (the "Purchase 
Agreement"). The Purchase Agreement provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Series 201 1 Bonds, if 
any are purchased, at a purchase price of $1 1,264,804.90 (representing the par amount of the Series 201 1 Bonds plus 
net original issue premium of $25 1,857.40 and less an underwriting discount of $72,052.50). 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Additional lnformrmtion 

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Utah Constitution, statutes, programs, laws of 
the State of Utah, court decisions and the Indenture, which are contained herein, do not purport to be complete, and 
reference is made to said Constitution, statutes, programs, laws, court decisions and the Indenture for full and 
complete statements of their respective provisions. 

All forecasts, estimates and other statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, 
whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is 
not intended to be construed as a contract or agreement between the City and the purchasers or holders of any of the 
Series 2011 Bonds. The information contained in this Official Statement is presented for the guidance of 
prospective purchasers of the Series 201 1 Bonds described therein. The information has been compiled from 
official sources and, while not guaranteed by the City, is believed to be correct. 



Any statement in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, is 
intended as such and not as representations of fact. 

The appendices attached hereto are an integral part of this Official Statement, and should be read in 
conjunction with the foregoing material. 

The delivery of the Official Statement has been duly authorized by the City. 

EAGLE MOUNTAN CITY 
UTAH COUNJY, UTAH 



APPENDIX A 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2010 



Eagle Mountain City 

1605 East Stagecoach Run 

Eagle Mountain, Utah 84005 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report; 

For the year ended June 30,2010 

Prepared by: 

Finance & Executive Departments 

Gordon Burt, Department Head of Finance 

Paul Jerome, Senior Accountant 

Jason Walker, Management Anaiyst 

Ikani Taumoepeau, Management Intern 



CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN 
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

Letter of Transmittal. ................................................................................ 7 . . .............................................................................. Organlaat~onaf Chart.. 1 1 
.................................................................... Eagle Mountain City Officers.. 12 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditor's Report,. ..................................................................... 1 S 
......................................................... Management's Discussion and Analysis., 17 

Basic Financial Statements: 
Government-wide Financial Statements: 

.......................................................... Statement of Net Assets.. 25 . . .  ........................................................... Statement of Act~vlt~es. .26 
Fund Financial Statements: 

........................................... Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds.. 27 
........................................... Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet.. .28 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
................................. in Fund Balances- Governmental Funds.. -29 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

............................................. to the Statement of Activities.. .30 
............................... Statement of Net Assets- Proprietary Funds.. ..3 1 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
.................................. in Fund Net Assets- Proprietary Funds.. .32 

............................... Statement of Cash Flows- Proprietary Funds.. -33 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

................................................. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.. ..37 
A. The Reporting Entity 
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
D. Cash and Investments 
E. Inter-fund Transactions 
F. Restricted Assets 
G. Capital Assets 
H. Compensated Absences 
I. Taxes 
J. Long-Term Obligations 
K. Fund Equity 



L . Use of Estimates 
11 . Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements ............................ 43 

A . Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and 
the government-wide statement of net assets 

1 . Capital related items 
2. Long-term assets 
3 . Long-term debt transactions 

I3 . Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of 
revenues. expenditures. and changes in fund balances and the government-wide 
statement of activities 

.................................................................... 111 . Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 46 
....................................................................................................... IV . Cash -47 

A . Deposits 
B . Investments 

V . Receivables .............................................................................................. 50 
................................................................ VI . Inter-fund Receivables and Transfers 5 1  

.......................................................................................... . VII Capital Assets 52 
VTIJ . Lease Commitments ................................................................................. S4 
IX-Long-temDebt .......................................................................................... 55  
X . Reserved Fund Balances .......................... ... .............................................. 58 

................................................................................................. XI . Litigation 59 
...................................................................................... XIL Risk Management 59 

XI11 . Retirement Plan ........................................................................................ 59 
................................................................................. XIV.Contingent Liabilities 60 

XV. Golf Course ........... ,, ............................................................................... 60 
................................................................................... XVI.Subsequent Events -61 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
.................................................................................................... General Fund 63 

. ....................................................................... Special Improvement District 200 1 1 64 

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Nomajor Governmental Funds: 
............................................................................ Combining Balanw Sheet .67 

Combining Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes 
................................................................................... h Fund Balances 68 

Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
................................................................................... Capital Projects Fund 69 

.................................... ...... Debt Service Fund .. 70 
................................................................... Special Improvement District 98-1 7 1 
................................................................... Special Improvement District 98-3 72 
................................................................... Special Improvement District 97- 1 73 

Parks Impact Fee ......................................................................................... 74 
.............................................................................. Public Safety Impact Fee 75 



Stonn Water Impact Fee ................................................................................ 76 
Transportation Impact Fee .............................................................................. 77 

Proprietary Funds: 
Combining Statement of Net Assets. .................................................................. 78 
Combining Statement of Revenues. Expenses. and Changes 

In Fund Net Assets .................................................................................. 79 
Combining Statement of Cask Flows.. ................................................................ 80 

STATISTICAL SECTION 

Net Assets by Components.. ......................................................................... +83 
Changes in Net Assets .................................................................................. 84 
Governmental Fund- Fund Balance ................................................................. $6 
Governmental Fund- Changes in Fund Balances. .................................................. 87 
AssessedEstimate Actual Value of Taxable Property.. ........................................... 89 
Property Tax Rates- Direct and Overlapping Governments ...................................... 90 
Principal Property Tax Payers ........................................................................ 91 
Property Tax Levies and Collections ................................................................. 92 
Taxable Sales by Category .......................................................................... '-93 
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rate.. ........................................................... 94 
Sales Tax Revenues .................................................................................... 95 

................................................................................. Charges for Water Fees 96 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type ............................................................... +.*97 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt ............................................ 98 
Legal Debt Margin Information ..................................................................... -99 
Pledged-Revenue Coverage .......................................................................... 100 
Demographic and Economic Statistics ............................................................. 102 . . Pnncrpal Employers ................................................................................. -103 
FTE City Employees by Functioflrogra rn ........................................................ 104 
Operating Indicators by FunctiodProgram ......................................................... 105 
Capital Asset Statistics by FunctionIPrograrn ...................................................... 106 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S mPORT 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Eagle Mountain, Utah 

December 3,201 0 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business- 
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Eagle Mountain 
City, Utah as of and for the year ended June 30, 201 0, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of Eagle Mountain City's management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on 
these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perfom the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in thc financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
fmmcial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis far our 
opinions. 

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Eagle Mountain City as of June 30, 
2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated December 3, 
2010 on our consideration of EagIe Mountain City's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our test of its compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stundurds and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audit. 



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information listed in the table of 
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the pwpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Eagle Mountain City's financial statements as a whole. The introductory 
section, combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, budgetary comparison 
schedules, capital asset schedules, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual non- 
major fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules, and capital assets schedules are 
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America h our opinion, the information is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical 
sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

GILBERT & STEWART 
Cert@'eri Public Accountants 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of Eagle Mountain City, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
20 10. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. 

Financial Highlights 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $6,446,874, Of this amount, $1,065,240 is reserved and must only 
be spent on projects for which the money is reserved. The remaining $5,381,634 is divided 
as follows: $1,030,020 is unreserved in the General Fund, $1,120,288 is unreserved in the 
General Fund Capital Projects Fund and $3,231,324 is unreserved in the Special Revenue 
(Special Assessment) and Non-major Governmental Funds. 

The total net assets of $101,070,787 are made up of $75,898,999 in capital assets net of 
related debt and $25,171,788 in other net assets. Total net assets increased by $5,162,036 
from the prior year. 

In the Enterprise (Proprietary) Funds operating revenues decreased $1,857,728 (1 3.4%). 
Corresponding operating expenses increased by $548,805 (12.7%). 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial 
statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: I )  government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the City's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is 
improving or deteriorating. However, other non-financial factors also need to be considered. 

The staternem of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as 
the underlying event diving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flaws in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but 
unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general 
government, public safety, streets, storm water, economic development, and parks and recreation. 
The business-type activities of the City include water, sewer, electric, gas, and solid waste. 



The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report. 

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds: 

A fund is grouping of related accounts, used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other states and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, All 
of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds- These funds are used to account for the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. These find statements 
focus on how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that 
are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called 
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and other financial assets that can be 
readily converted to cash, The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term 
view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. 
Governmental fund information helps users determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. We 
describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a 
reconciliation included with the fund financial statements. 

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-30 of this report. 

The major governmental funds (as determined by generally accepted accounting principles) are the 
General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds. The balance of the governmental funds is 
determined to be non-major and is included in the combined statements within this report. 

Proprietary Funds. Eagle Mountain City maintains one type of proprietary funds. 
Enterprise fun& aw used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. Eagle Mountain City uses enterprise funds to 
account for its Water Utility, Sewer Utility, Gas Utility, and Electric Utility. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 3 1-33 of this report. 

Additionally the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Fund accounts for the fleet management services provided to other 
departments of the government, on a cost reimbursement basis. 



Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of Eagle Mountain City, assets exceed liability by $101,070,787. 

One of the largest portion's of Eagle Mountain City's net assets (74%) reflects its investment in 
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure assets, and machinery and equipment), Iess any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets 
ta provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are available for future spending. 
Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted 
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities, 

The foliowing table summarizes the City's net assets. Comparative figures for Fiscal Years 2010 and 
2009 are shown below: 

Eagle Mountain City's Net Assets: 

Ciovun~nental Ac~ivilia Busine&wp Miv i t i r  Tomi 
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

C w n t  and othcr ass- $ 15,206,479 5 14,072,783 $ 16,91S,S23 S 20,3Qt,167 S 32,122,004 S 34,373,950 
Cqilal a*icls 90,936,429 47,380,737 71,627,229 61,867,313 122,563,658 109248950 

Told asselo aa,l42,908 6 1,453,520 88.542,754 82,168.480 154.685,662 143,621$00 

h p t c r m  debt outstanding 6,65 1,268 6,797,295 42,727,691 41,009,500 49,378,959 47,806,795 
Otha lisbilities 2,487,890 2,814,Sl l 1,748,026 2,488,298 4.235.916 5,302,809 

Tad liabili~ks 9,139.fS8 9.61 1.8M 44,475,717 43,497,798 53,614,875 53,109,604 

Wet met# 
Invested in capital %=Is, 
mt of related dFbt 44.41 8.052 40,748,737 31,48OSM7 26,114,762 75,898,999 66,863,499 

Reauicted 1,065,200 1,500,596 1,283.9?13 2,564,551 2,349,193 4,065.147 

U d c t e d  11 a0 458 9 2  t 11 02 137 9 991 369 22 822 595 19 583 750 
7ksl nrt ats & & b 7 i 6 8 2  

Changes in Net Assets: 

h r a r s :  
Program Revenues: 

Charges for m v ~  
Operating grants dr cmib. 
Capital $rants & conhib. 

General rmnues: 
Pmper tym 
Gencml sales &  us^ tw 
Franchise tax 
Other 
lnfercst mings 

Total rmnucs 



Changes in Net Assets Continued: 

Espen~f:  
Ocnd pvmnenl 
Public =few 
Righwaya t puMi wtko 
Cornunity ddapment  
Plming 
lntennt on long.twm deb1 
Water utility 
Smu utility 
Electric utiIity 
Oar aility 
Golf contse 
Nan-maj~r busii*ls 

Govcmnmd Activities 
2010 2009 

(hw) on sak of capital ascia (44.418) (44.928) 

Business-type Activities: Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by 
$5,396,357. As of the end of the current fiscal year, all of the City's business-type funds reported 
positive net assets. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing 
requirements. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances 
of $6,446,874. Of this total amount (89%) condtutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for 
spending at the government's discretion. The majority of this unreserved fund balance is in the 
Special Revenue Funds. The remainder of fund balances $1,065,240 is reserved to indicate that it is 
not available for new spending because it has already been committed. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $1,030,020 an increase of $457,295 from Fiscal 
Year 2009. Total fund balance is $1,340,050, an increase of $560,650 from the prior year. As a 
measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund baiance and 
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 11% of total 
general governmental fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 15% of that same 
amount. 

The City maintains enterprise funds to account for the business-type activities of the City. The 
information is found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 



Unrestricted net assets of the combined Enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to 
$1 1,302,137. The value of capital assets net of related debt in these same funds is $3 1,480,947. 

As mentioned in the financial highlights, operational revenues and expenditures in the Enterprise 
funds increased by $1,857,728 (13.4%) and $548,805 (12.7%), respectively. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

During the fiscal year, the General Fund's original budget was amended from an original budget 
expenditure total of $8,440,314 to a final budget of $9,215,370, an increase of $775,056. The 
increase reflects higher than anticipated expenditures within the General Fund. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. Eagle Mountain City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business-type activities as of June 30,2010, amounts to $122,563,658 (net of accumulated 
depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery 
and equipment, infrastructure and construction in progress. 

Eagle Mountain City's Capital Assets: 

Uwmmentel Activiri~s Busineso-typo Activitien Total 
2010 2009 20la 2009 20 10 aa09 

$ 5.65g.533 $ 5,658,533 S 6,720,472 S 4,720,472 S 12J79.WS S 19379,005 

Buildings 1,7~2.075 654,928 3.820,087 3,699,409 5,572,162 4,354,337 
Impmvemmts 117,103 4,216 1 17.103 4,216 
Equipmcrrt 1.0 12,437 I,l28,778 - 41,616,130 1,012,437 42,745.508 
InhStruEUItC 42.129.996 38.32 1.670 45.364410 87,494,406 38,321,670 
Conrvucth in progresp 266,285 1,612,612 15,722,260 1 1,830,702 15,988,545 13,443,314 
Total not esm $ 109,248 050 - 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in the footnotes to this financial 
report. 

Long-term debt, At the end of the current year, the City has total bonded debt outstanding of 
$48,650,000. Of'this amount $5,620,000 is from Special Assessment Bonds. The remaining 
$43,030,000 is secured solely by specific revenues sources (i.e., revenue bonds or excise tax road 
bond). 

Eagle Mountain City's Outstanding Debt (Bonded Debt): 

Governmental Aclivilics B u s h t y p e  Activilw Tolal 
2010 2 W  2010 2009 2010 2004 

Special m m e n t  bands 0 5,620BOO S 5,843,000 S - S - S 5,620,OM) S 5.843.000 
Excir w bonds 670,000 789,000 670,000 789,000 
Revenue bonds 

TnLll bonds 

The City's total outstanding debt increased by a net amount of $1,384,829 during Fiscal Year 2010. 
The City issued a bond to construct a waste water treatment plant expansion. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 4% of its 
total taxable value. The current limitations for the City are $29,226,968, which is significantly in 
excess of the City's outstanding general obligation debt, In addition, state statutes allow for an 
additional 4% to be used for water, sewer, or other projects thus resulting in a debt limit of 8% of 



total taxable value. Total limitation is $58,453,936, which again significantly exceeds the 
outstanding general obligation debt. 

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in note 9 on pages 55-57 of this 
report. 

The City issued just over 300 residential building permits in fiscal year 2010. This is an 
approximate 5.5% growth rate. Much of the growth in building permits issued can be 
attributed to the federal government stimulus package. The City anticipaes that growth 
in residential construction will slow during fiscal year 2011. 

The City continues to be very conservative in estimating budgeted revenues. In the 
general fund, budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2011 are up 6.5% from budgeted 
revenues in fiscal year 2010. During fiscal year 2010, the City received 10% more in 
sales tax revenue based on our original budget estimates. The City is working hard to 
maintain a balanced budget while still providing adequate service levels for the 
residents. 

In the Enterprise funds, the City has been able to keep the utility rates at  current levels. 
The only exception to this is where the City has had to raise sewer rates to reflect the 
increases from our sewer special service district. This increase affected the residents in 
the North Service Area who are sewiced by the Timpanogos Special Service District. 
The increase in fees will fund upgrades and expansion of the district. 

During the latter part of fiscal year 2009, the City adjusted the gas rate structure. Prior 
to this change, the City had two different rates: one for summer, one for winter. The 
City has been able to take advantage of more stable gas rates and therefore chose the 
lower of the two rates to use winter and summer. 

During fiscal year 2011, the City will complete a review of Its water and sewer utility 
rates. The review will focus on the long term utility rates to ensure that the rates are 
adequate to guarantee the continued viability and profitability of each utility, to 
maintain the existing infrastructure and to ensure that the rates are competitive with 
other utility companies. 

The City completed the expansion of the wastewater treatment plant in the South 
Service Area in fiscal year 2010. With the expansion, the wastewater treatment plant 
will now be able to serve approximately 5,000 homes, or an increase af approximately 
3,500 service connections. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Eagle Mountain's finances for 
everyone with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the 
Eagle Mountain City Finance Department, 1650 East Stagecoach Run, Eagle Mountain, Utah 84005. 
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30,2010 

ASsm 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Customers (net of allowance) 
Intergovernmental 
Assessments receivable 
T a s  receivable 

Prepaid expenses 
Internal baIances 
Deferred bond cost - net 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): 

Land 
Buildings 
hprovemnt~  
Equipment and system 
Xnfrustructure 
Construction in progress 

Total assets 

Primary Government 
Governmntal Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 707,551 1,166,528 1,874,079 
Deposits 720,736 414,109 1,134,845 
Deferred revenue 887,043 887,043 
Bond interest payable 172,560 167,389 339,949 
Long-term liabilities 
Due within one year 845,651 t ,068,269 1,913,920 
Due in mote than one year 5,805,617 41,659,422 47,465,039 _ 

Total Liabilities 9,139,158 44,475,717 53,614,875 

mASsm 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 44,418,052 3 1,480,947 75,898,999 
Restricted 

C Roads 330,030 330,030 
Impact fees 735,210 1,283,953 2,019,163 

Unrestricted 1 1,520,458 11,302,U7 22,822,595 
Total net assets $ 57,003,750 $ 44,067,037 $ 101,070,787 

See accomponying notes to financial statements. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Receivables (net): 

Accounts 
Taxes 
Intaqovemrnental 
Special assessmnts 
Other 

Total assets 

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30,2010 

Nonmajor Total 
General Capital Special Governmental Governmental 
Fund Projects Revenue 2000-1 Funds Funds 

LIABILlTIFS AM) FUW BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable & accrued liabilities $ 565,938 $ 133,610 $ 3,900 % - $ 703,448 
Deposits 537,106 183,630 720,736 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Fund balances reserved for: 

Roads 330,030 330,030 
Impact fees 735,210 735,210 

Unreserved, reported in: 
General fund 1,030,020 1,030,020 
b b t  service fund 4,624 4,624 
Capital projects fund 1,120,288 1,120,288 
Special revenue funds 1,679,518 1,547,184 3,226,702 
Total fund balances 1,360,050 1,120,288 1,679,s 18 2,287,018 pc16.874 

Total liabilities & fund balances , $ 3,563,132 $ 1,437,528 $ 5,898,916 $ 3,669,897 $ 14,569,473 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



EAGLZ M0mTAI.N CITY 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation to 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30,2010 

Total fund balances - governmental fund types: 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, 
are not reported in the funds. $ 50,936,429 

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, 
are deferred in the hds. $ 5,811,372 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. $ (6,331,816) 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet 
management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service 
funds are included in the governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 

Net assets of government activities 

See accompanying notes to 
financial statements. 



Rmmms 
Taxes 
Special assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Inteqovemmen tal 
Charges for scwices 
Impact fees 
Misceilanwus 

Total revenues 

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 
Stamnr ofRevemtes, Fxpendhrres, and Changes in F d  &Balances 

G o v e m t a l  Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30,2010 

EXPmmURES 
Cumnt: 

&en1 government 
Public safety 
PubE work 
Planning and zoning 
Community developinent 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Nmmajor Total 
General Capital Special Chvernmntal Governmental 
Fund Projects Revenue 200.1 Fund Funds 

Exess revenues over (under) 
expenditures (607,188) (665,57 I) 3 18,967 311,618 (642,174) 

Other financing soutces (user) 
Operating transfes in 2,506,726 2,060,073 150,137 4,716,936 
Operating transfers out (1,338,888) (277,129) (894,193) (2,519210) 
Total other financing sources and uses 1,167,838 2,060,073 (277,129) (744,056) 2,206,726 
Net change in fund balance 560,650 1,394,502 4 1,838 (432,438) 1,564,552 

Fund balances -beginning ~Fyesr 799,4CQ (274,214) 17637,680 2,719,456 4,882,322 
Fund balances - end of year S 1,360,050 % 1,120,288 S 1,679,518 % 2,287,018 $ 6,446,874 

See accompany in^ notes to 

financial statements. 



EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY 
Statement of Changes Reconciliation to 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30,2010 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental b d s  report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets k allmated over their estimated 
usefid lives and reported as depreciation expense, This is the amount by which 
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. $ (555,984.00) 

The net effect of various miscellaneous bansactiom involving capital assets 

(ie,, sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase (decrease) net assets. 
- Cwent year capital contributions from developers $4,174,105.00 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current fmncial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. $ (228,960.00) 

The issuance of long-term &I$ (e.g., bonds, leases) provide current fmncial 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of 
long-term debt consumes the current b n c i a l  resources of governmental funds, 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmeml 
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items 
when debt is frst issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortiad in 
the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in 
the treatment of bng-tern debt and related items. 

Internal service funds are used by management to ~harge the cost of the fleet 
management to the inWdual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal 
service firads is reported with govemental activities. $ (24,226.00) 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current fmncial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. $ (39,153.25) 

Change in net assets of governmental actEvlties $5,262,03575 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN 
NOTES TO THE FMANCiAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,20 10 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Eagle Mountain (the City) financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through 
its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). G o v ~ e n t s  are also required to 
follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued 
through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict the 
GASB pronouncements. The City applies FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, The mare significant accounting policies 
established by GAAP and used by the City are discussed below. 

A. Reporting: Entity 

Eagle Mountain City was incorporated December 1996, under laws of the State of 
Utah. Under the present form of govemment, administrative and legislative powers are 
vested UI a governing body, consisting of the Mayor and a five-member City Council. 
They are assisted by a City Administrator, who also is the City's budget officer. The 
treasurer is currently responsible for the financial matters of the City, including money 
management, accounts payable, financial statements, utility billing, and accounts 
receivable. The City provides the following services as mandated by law: Public 
Safety, Highways and Streets, Sanitation, Parks, Water, Public Improvements, Planning 
and Zoning, and General Administrative S~I-vices. 

The General Purpose Financial Statements of the City include the financial statements 
for all activities of the City based upon the criteria set forth in Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14. The primary criteria for including 
a board or agency in this report is financial accountability, which determines whether 
an entity is a component unit of the financial reporting entity. Blended component 
units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the government's 
operatians and therefore data from these units are combined wit11 data of the primary 
govemment. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in 
the combined financial statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the City. 
The City reports no component units. 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary 
activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Govemental 
activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovmentai revenues, arc: 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on 
fees and charges for support. 



CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,20 10 - -- 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
of particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the h d  financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting: and Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary find financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash 
flows, Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied. Grants and, 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been 
met. 

Governmental fund financial statements arc reported using the current financial 
resources measurement facus and the modified basis of accounting, Revenues are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e,, when they are "measurabie and 
available"). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and 
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be 
used to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues 
available if they are collected within 60 days after the year-end. Expenditures are 
recorded when the related Cnd liabiiity is incurred, except for unmahrred interest on 
general long-term debt as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims, 
and judgments, which are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and earned but unreimbursed state and 
federal grants associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue of the c m n t  fiscal. 
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when cash is received by the government. 



CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,20 10 
- -- 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {&tinut$) 

The government reports the following major governmental funds: 

The ,general+fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for 
all fmancial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Special Improvement Districts Special Revenue Fund, 2001-1, is used to 
account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts, 
or capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The water fund accounts for the activities of the City's water operations. 

The sewer fund accounts for the activities of the City's sewer operations. 

The electricfind accounts for the activities of the City's electric operations. 

The gas fund accounts for the activities of the City's gas operations. 

The golfcourse fund accounts for the activities of the golf course. 

Additionally the government reports the following fuad types: 

The internal service find accounts for the fleet management sewices provided to 
other dqartments of the government, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
govemment-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments to 
the general fund by the various enterprise b d s  for providing administrative services 
for such funds. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
revenue reported far the various h t i o n s  concerned. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations, 
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NOTE 1 - S U W Y  OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Cash and Investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition. 

The City's temporary cash investments consist of amounts deposited with Utah Public 
Treasurers' Investment Fund and money market funds. Investments are stated at cost, 
which approximates fair value. 

E. Interfund Transactions 

During the course of normal operations, the City has transactions between funds to 
distribute administrative costs and distribute grant proceeds. These transactions are 
generally reflected as operating transfers, which are transfers from a fund authorized to 
receive certain revenues to the fund through which the resources are to be expended. 
The General Fund billed the respective enterprise funds for administrative costs 
associated with billing and colftction of utility charges. These changes are reflected as 
revenues and expenses in the respective funds. 

F. Restricted As@ 

The City maintains cash balances as required by bond covenants. These amounts are 
reflected in the financial statements as restricted cash. It is the City's policy to use 
restricted assets first and then unrestricted assets, 

G. Cauital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial 
individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life 
in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets we recorded at 
estimated fair market value at the dare of donation. 

The costs of nomal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets' lives are nat capitalized. 



CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,20 10 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of 
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets 
constructed. 

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets - Years 
Buildings and structures 30-50 
Improvements other than buildings 20-50 
Infrastructure 30-50 
Machinery and equipment 5-10 
Funitwe and fixtures 5-10 

H. Cam~ensated Absences 

City employees accrue earned vacation, sick leave, long-term sick leave, and comp time 
throughout the year. They are allowed to carry forward into the next calendar year all 
accrued comp, long term sick Ieave, and up to 240 hours of vacation time, but are 
encouraged to take their vacation leave within the calendar year in which it is earned. 
Upon termination of employment, an employee will be compensated for up to 240 
hours of unused vacation leave, comp time, long-term sick leave but forfeits any 
accumulated sick leave, 

Vacation pay is accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a fund 
liability. Vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available 
financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the 
governmental fund that will pay it. 

I. Taxes 

In Utah, county governments assess, levy, collect and disburse two principal types of 
tax: (1) personal property tax, which is assessed on business assets other than real 
estate, and (2) tax on real estate and improvements. Business personal property and 
real estate taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are 
levied on all business personal property on January 1, and real estate and improvement 
taxes are levied on January 1 and are payable by November 30. The real property 
taxes, which are due in November, are reported as a receivable from property taxes on 
the financial statements. Because these taxes are not considered available to liquidate 
liabilities of the current period, they are offset by deferred revenue. 
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YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,20 10 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The City Council is authorized by state statute t~ levy a tax against all real and personal 
property located within its boundaries. The Council must set a tax rate by June 22 each 
year. 

The County Treasurer, acting as a tax collector, must settle and disburse all tax 
collections to all taxing entities on a routine basis. 

5, Long-Term Obli~ations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bands payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are 
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt, 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face 
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances 
are: reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the 
accrual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. Interest 
expense is not included in the functions of governmental activities. 

K. Fund Equitv 

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally 
segregated for a specific purpose. Reservations of net assets are limited to outside third 
party restrictions. Appropriations of net assets are amounts that are specifically set 
aside for a particular expense in the following year, Designations of fund balance 
represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

L. Use of Estimates 

Presenting fmancial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles requires management to make certain estimates concerning assets, liabilities, 
revenues, and expenses. Actual results may vary from these estimates. 
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NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANICAL 
STATEMENTS 

A. Ex~lanatiotI of certain differences between the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the government-wide statement of net asset$ 

The governmental hnd  balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund bulance - 
total governmental finds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide statement of net assets. 

This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of 
net assets versus the current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance 
sheets. 

1. Capital related items: 
When capital assets (property, plant, and equipment) that are to be used in 
governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets 
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the statement 
of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the city as a 
whole. 

Cost of capital assets $66,889,057 
Accumulated depreciation ( 15,952,628) 
Net adjustment to increa~e~find balance 

total governmen~a'alfinds to arrive at net- 
assets - goverwnental activities) $50.936.42.9 

2. Long-term assets: 
Long-term assets applicable to the City's governmental activities are not 
available to pay for expenditures of the current period and are, therefore, 
deferred in the governmental balance sheet. 

Special assessment revenue $5,599,106 
Delinquent property taxes 2 12.266 

Net adjustment to increasefind balance - 
total governmentalfinds to arrive at net 
assets - governwcental activities 

3. Long-term debt transactions: 
Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not 
d u ~  and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund 
liabilities in the fund statements. All liabilities (both cmmt and long-term) 
are reported in the statement of net assets. 
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YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,2010 
..- I,, 

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FXNANICAL 
STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Bonds payable ($6,290,000) 
Lease payable ( 153,497) 
Bond interest payable ( 172,560) 
Deferred bond costs 492,O 12 
Compensated absences 207.771) 

Net adjustment to reducefund balance - 
total governmental finds to arrive at 
net assets - governmental activities 

B. Ex~hnation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of 
pvenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide 
statement of activities 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures axld changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in ftknd balances - total governmental 
firnds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government- 
wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that 
"governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense." 

Capital outlay $1,246,675 
Depreciation expense 1 1.802.6591 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
balances - total governmental fin& to arrive lat 

changes in net assets of governmental activities ( 

Another element of that reconciliation states, "The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., 
bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the 
rqayrnent of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources 
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. 
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statement of activities." 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,20 10 

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANICAL, 
STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Debt issued: 
Bonds issuance cost amortization 

Principal payments: 
Principal paid on bonds and capital leases 342.000 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund 
balances - total governmental.finds to arrive 
at changes in net assets of governmental activities 

Another elanent of that reconciliation states that certain expenses reported in the 
statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and are, 
therefore, not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 

Accrued bond interest $ 3,323 
Compensated absences (42.476) 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in+ficnd 
balances - total governmentalfunds to arrive 
at changes in net assets ofgoventmental activities sJ2%u2? 

Rest ofpage is intentionalh left blank. 



CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,2010 

NOTE 3 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

Annual budgets are prepared and adopted in accordance with the Uniform Fiscal Procedures 
Act adopted by the State of Utah. Once a budget has been adopted, it remains in effect until 
it has been formally revised. Furthermore, in accordance with state law, all appropriations 
lapse at the end of the budget year. If any obligations are contracted for and are in excess of 
adopted budget, they are not a valid or enforceable claim against the City. Budgets are 
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
the financial statements: 

A, On or before the Eirst regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May, the City 
Administrator, authorized under state statute to be appointed budget officer, submits a 
proposed operating budget, The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and 
the means of financing them. 

B. A public hearing is held at which time the taxpayerskcmments are heard, Notice of 
the hearing is given in the local newspaper at least seven days prior to the hearing. 
Copies of the proposed budget are made available for public inspection ten days prior 
to the public hearing. 

C. On or before June 22, a final balanced budget must be adopted through passage of a 
resolution for the subsequent fiscal year beginning July 1. 

D. Control of budgeted expenditures is exercised, under state law, at the departmental 
level. The City Administrator, however, acting as budget officer, has the authority to 
transfer budget appropriations between line items within any department of any 
budgetary fund. The City Council, by resolution, has the authority to transfer budget 
appropriations between the individual departments of any budgetary fund. 

E. Budget appropriations for any department may be reduced by resolution. 

F. A public hexing, as required in (B) above, must be held to increase the total 
appropriations of any one governmental fund type; however, afier the original public 
hearing, operating and capital budgets of proprietary fund types may be increased by 
resolution without an additional hearing. 

G. Encumbrances lapse at year end. Encumbered amounts carry over to the following year 
and are subject to reappropriation. Therefore, no encumbrances are presented in the 
financial statements. 

During the budget year, the City modified the budget using the above procedures. 
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. At June 
30,2010 the City's cash balance consisted of the following: 

Total Cash From 
All Fund Types 

Cash, cash equivalents, and temporary cash investments $ 9,852,239 
Cash, and cash equivalents - restricted 9,927,986 

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 19,780,225 

While the City's carrying amount of deposits was $19,994,8 10, the 
balance in the Ci.ty's bank account and cash on hand was $19,780,225, with the difference 
being due to outstanding checks and deposits in transit. 

NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AMD INVESTlWENTS (Continued) 

A. Deposits 

Demsits - Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of a 
bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City follows the 
requirements of the Utah Money Management Act in handling its depository and 
investing transactions. The City considers the actions of the State Money 
Management Council to be necessary and sufficient for adequate protection of its 
uninsured bank deposits. City funds are deposited in qualified depositories as 
defined by the Act, The City does not have a deposit policy far custodial credit 
risk. As of June 30, 2010, the City's custodial credit risk for deposits were as 
follows: 

Custochl Credit Balance 
Depository Account Risk June 30,2010 

Checking and savings Insured and collateralized $ 350,000 
Checking a d  savings Uninsured and uwdhteralized 8 16,454 
Investment sweep Uninsured and uncoIlateralkd 4,140,070 

Total &posits $ 5,306,524 

The City's investments are managed through participation in the State Public 
Treasurers' Investment Fund and through a trust arrangement with a local bank. As 
of June 30,2010, the City had the following investments: 
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
Investment Maturities (in Yam) 

Less More than 
Investments Than 1 1-5 6-10 10 

Utah Public Treasurer's $ 5,353,813 $ - $ - $ 

Investment Fund 

First American Treasury 
Obligations 9,334,473 

Total investments $14,688286 $ - $ - $ 
----..1.---- & 

Investments - Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that 
limits investment maturities as a means of increasing interest managing its exposure to fair 
value losses arising from rates. However, interest rate risk is managed by compliance with 
the Utah Money Management Act, which provides guidance for handling depository and 
investing transactions in order to minimize interest rate risk. 

Investments - Credit Risk. The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money 
Management Act in handling its depository and investing transactions. The City funds are 
deposited in qualified depositories as defined by the Act. The Act also authorizes the City to 
invest in the Utah Public Treasurers Investment Fund (PTIF), certificates of deposit, US. 
Treasury obligations, U.S. agency issues, restricted mutual funds, and obligations of 
governmental entities within the State of Utah. The City's investments are invested in 
accordance with the Act. The State Money Management Council provides regulatory 
oversight for the investments, The degree of risk of the investments depends on the 
underlying portfolio. The Act and Council rules govern the financial reporting requirements 
of qualified depositories in which public h d s  may be deposited and prescribe the conditions 
under which the designation of a depository shall remain in effect. If a qualified depository 
should become ineligible to hold public funds, public treasurers are notified immediately. 
The City considers the actions of the Council to be necessary and sufficient for adequate 
protection of its investments. The City has no investment policy that would M e r  limit its 
investment choices. 
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Quality Ratings 
Fair More than 

Iilvestnlents Value AAA AA A Unrated 

Utah Public Treasurer's $ 5,353,813 $ - $ - $ - $5,353,813 
Investment Fund 

First American Treasury 9,334,473 9,334,473 
Obligations 

Total investments $14,688,286 $ 9,334,473 $ - $ - $5,353,813 
_ _ - - _ l _ r . l - - _ )  

Investments Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, 
in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value 
of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Of 
the City's $14,688,286 investment in a trust arrangement, and the Utah State Treasurers 
Investment Pool, the entire amount of underlying securities are held by the Investment's 
counterparty, not in the City's name and are nat insured. The City's illvestment 
arrangements primarily invest in Utah State Treasurers investment pool, obligations of the 
United States Treasury, agencies, or instrumentalities of the United States that meet the 
allowable investments of the Urah Money Management Act. The City does not have an 
investment policy for custodial credit risk. 



CITY OF EAGLE MOUNTAIN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,20 10 - ,,, --- , .  - 
NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of year end for the government's individual major and nonmajor funds, 
including the applicable allowances for urzcollectible accounts, are as follows: 

SJD Nonmajor Nonmajor 

General 200EI Wnur Sewer Ekctric 00s Enterprise Govt'l Total 

Rcccbablcr: 

AccounU $336,893 $ - 16 428,048 %400J73 $929,548 569l.108 S l40.465 S $2,926535 

Taxes t509.541 /509,541 

Special 

Aasessrnents 4,2!5,498 410,578 1382,879 6,008,955 

htergovemmontal 149,699 Map99 

trss:nlb\nrirnce 

focuncolkctiolc 

acc01111ts (8.56 I) (8.005) ( 18.04 1) (UP231 (2.809) (50,8391 

$1996.U3 $ 4 1  15.498 $4b.487 $392.268 $9 11507 $ SL088.263 $ U7.656 $ U82.879 S lO.543.691 

Rest of page is intentionally It$ blank 
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND TRANSFERS 

The internal balances for June 30, 2010 consist of a due to other funds of $35,107 from the 
garbage fwd, and a due from other funds of $35, 107 from the gas fund. 

The City transferred h d s  monies to support capital expenditures in the construction funds. 
The City also transferred proceeds from the sale of the telecom fund to the general fund4 

The operating transfers of the City consist of the folIowing: 

Capital SlD Nonmajor Business 
Transfer In: Ckneral Projects 2000-1 GovrnrntI. Type Total 

General $ - $  - $ - $ 300,000 $ 2,206,726 $ 2,506,726 
SID 2000-1 
Nonmajor govtl. 150,137 150,137 
Capital projects 1,338,888 277,129 444,056 - 2,060,073 
Business type 293,735 293,735 

Total transfer out $ 1,338,888 $ - $ 277,129 $ 894,193 $ 2,500,461 $ 5,010,671 
I........- --- 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that 
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental 
funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, 
but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred 
revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as fo1lows: 

Unavailable Unearned 
Property taxes receivable (general fwd) $ 887,771 
Property tax delinquent $ 212,267 
Special assessments (special revenue fund) 5,598,377 

Total $ 887,771 
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2010 was as follows: 

Primnry Gawrnment Beginning Ending 
Gowrnntcntal actiities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land % 5,658,533 $ $ - $ 5,658,533 
Construction in progress 1,612,612 266,285 1,612,612 266,285 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 7,271,145 266.285 1,612,612 5.9243 18 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 841,1I6 I,i  15,839 1,956,955 
Improvements 7,600 112,161 119,761 
Machinery and equipment 2,662,668 280,206 2,942,874 
Infrastructure 50,449,7 1 1 5,494,938 55,944,649 
Total capital assets being depreciated 53.96 1,095 7,003.144 60,964,239 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
h.fxastructure 
Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 
Governmntal activities capital assets, net 

Business-type actidties: 
Capita( assets not being depreciated: 
Construction in progress 
Land 
Totalcapital assets not being depreciated 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 4,608,496 255,500 4,863,996 
Equipment and system 57,994,745 6*2&4,5 18 64,279,263 
Totall capital assets being depreciated 62.603.24 1 6,540-0 18 69,143,259 

Less accumuIated depreciation for: 
Buildings 909,087 134,822 1,043,909 
Machinery and equipment 16,378,015 2.536,838 18,914,853 
Total accumulated depreciation 17,287,102 2,671.660 19,958,762 
Totalcapital assets, being depreciated, net 45,316,139 3,868,358 49.1 84.497 
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 61,867,313 $11,646,W $1,886,128, $ 71,627,229 
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
Governmental activities: 

Ckneral government % 28,768 
Public safety 62,037 
Public works 1,997,888 
Planning 5,390 
Community devslopment 7,042 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Bus iness-type activities: 
Water 
Sewer 
Electric 
as 
Golf course 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 

Total depreciation expense 

The City has various construction projects as of June 30,2010. The City's commitments 
with contractors are as follows: 

Remaining 
Project Co~llmhment 

Electric projects $ 5,475 
Road projects 2,728 
Parks & h i 1  projects 55,909 
Water projects 114,348 
Sewer projects 52,779 
Total $ 231,239 
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NOTE 8 - LEASE COMMITMENTS 

During 2010 the City executed a new lease in the internal service fund, in the amount of 
$236,037 payable in annual installments for 3 years, 

Assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 
Govemental 

Activities 
Asset: 

Machinery and equipment 
Less: Accumulated afllortizttion (35,405) 

Total $ 200,632 

Amortization of capital assets purchased under capital leases are included in depreciation. 

The present Euture minimum capital lease payments under this lease as on June 30,2010: 

Fiscal Year 
201 1 

Amount 
$ 82,540 

2012 82,540 
Total mhinum lease pyments E 165,080 
Less amounts representing Interest (1 1,583) 
Present value of miuimum lease: payments $ 153,497 

At JLW 30,2010 the City's caphi leases payable bahnce consisted of the fobwing: 

Capital bases payable 
Current portion capital lease payable 
Long-term capital bases payable 

Total Capital 
Leases Payable 
All Fund Types 
$ 153,497 

(74,880) 
$ 78,617 
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NOTE 9 - LONGTERM DEBT 

Bonds and notes payable at June 30,2010 are comprised of the following: 

I. %6,295,000 Eagle Mountain City Special Assessment Bonds Series 2005A (SID 
98-1) 

These bonds require annual installments of interest and principal due beginning May 
1 ,  2006 through May 1, 2013 bearing interest of 6.25%. The debt service 
requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 
201 1 $ 315,000 $ 87250 $ 402,250 
2012 518,000 67,564 585,564 
2013 
Total 

2. $8,840,000 Eagle Mountain City Special Assessment Bond 2006 (SID 2000-1) 
This bond was used to refund the original SID 2001-1 Bond. The refunding was 
undertaken b reduce future debt payments. This bond requires annual installments of 
interest and principal due beginning February 2007 through February 202 1 bearing an 
interest rate ranging from 8.25% to 8.35%. Debt service requirements are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
201 1 

2021 
Total 

Principal Interest Total 
$ 125,000 $ 354,008 $ 479,008 

3. $1,226,000 Eagle Mountain City Excise Tax Road Bonds Series 2005 

These bonds require semiannual payments of interest and annual payments of 
principal due September 1,2005 through September 1,2014, bearing interest ranging 
from 2.52% to 4.5%. The debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Fiscal Year Prixbcipal Interest Total 

201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
201 5 
Total 

4. $16,500,000 Eagle Mountain Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds Series 2007 

This bond was used to xhnd the original Water and Sewer Bond. The refunding was 
undertaken to reduce future debt payments. This bond requires annual installments of 
principal and interest due beginning November 2008 though November 2031, 
bearing an interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. The debt service requirements are 
as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
20 16-2020 
202 1-2025 
2026-2030 
203 1-2035 
Total 

Principal Interest Total 

6. Eagle Mountain City Electric and Gas Revenue Bonds Series 2006. 

This bond was issued to refund a prior revenue bond and to reduce restrictive 
covenants. This bond requires semi-annual payments of interest and principal 
beginning June 2006 through June 2026, bearing an interest rate ranging from 3.5% 
to 5.0 % Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
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Fkcal Year Principal Interest Total 

7. $6,665,000 Eagle Mountain City Sewer Water Quality Board Bond Series 2008. 

This bond was issued for the construction of a waste water treatment plant expansion. 
This bond requires annual payments of interest and principal beginning December 
2009 t~ougk  December 2028, bearing an interest rate of 1%. The bond is a 
reimbursement: bond. The total amount of the bond is $6,665,000. As of June 30, 
201 0 the City has drawn the entire amount, 

Fiscal Year 
201 1 

Principal Interest 
$ 78,000 $ 66,260 

lO5,OOO 63,345 
1 17,000 64,235 
130,000 63,000 
157,000 61,565 

1,228,000 276,340 
2,O 15,000 195,075 

Total 
$ 144,260 
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8. Totd debt service requirements of the City for all bonds and notes are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest 
$ 1,566,000 $ 2,201,295 

1,922,000 2,130,777 
2,109,aoo 2,040,491 
1,653,000 1,939,825 
1,802,000 1,867,635 
12,154,000 7,916,766 
13,883,OOO 4,547,957 
9,755,000 1,967,863 
3,806,000 289,000 

$ 48,650,000 $ 24,901,609 

Total 
$ 3,767,295 

4,052,777 
4,149,49 1 
3,592,825 
3,669,635 
20,070,766 
18,430,957 
1 1 ,722,863 
4,095,000 

$ 73,551,609 
A. 

July 1 June 30 Due in 
Governmental Activities: 2009 Additions Reductions 2010 One Yr 
Bonds Payable 

Excise tax road bonds % 789,000 $ - $ 119,000 % 670,000 % 123,000 
Special assessment band 2004A 98-1 1308,000 1 12,000 1,396,000 3 15,000 
Special assessment bond 2006 200- 1 4,335,000 1 1  l.000 4,224,000 125,000 

Total bonds payable 6,632,000 342,000 6J90,OOO 563,000 

Lcases payable 236,037 82,540 153.497 74,880 
~orn&sated absences 
GaJt activities long-term debt 

Business-Type Actlvl ties: 
Bonds payable: 

2008 mter and sewer refunding bond $16,115,000 $ $ 340,000 $15,775,000 $ 280,000 
Unamortized bond premium 351,017 15,659 335,358 

Less unamortized cost of refunding (425,372) (25,913) (399,459) 
Electric and ga refunding bund 20,500,000 580,000 19,920,000 645,000 
Unamortized bond premium 390,429 23,906 366,523 
2009 sewer remnue bond 4.018,17L 2,646,829 6,665,000 78,000 
Total bonds payable 40,949,245 2,646,829 933,652 42,662422 1,003,000 

Compensated absences 60.254 47,586 42,571 65.269 65,269 
Business type long-term debt $41,009,499 % 2,694,415 $ 976.223 % 42,727,691 S 1,068,269 
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NOTE 10 - RESERVED FUND BALANCES 
The City has reserved fund balances for unspent impact fees and unspent B&C road funds. 

NOTE 11 - LITIGATION 

The City is a defendant in certain legal actions and pending actions, or in process for 
miscellaneous claims. The ultimate liability that might result from the final resolution of the 
above matters is not presently determinable, City management is of the opinion that the final 
outcome of the cases will not have an adverse material affect on the City's financial 
statements. 

NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
City participates in the Utah Local Governments Trust (a public entity risk pool). All claims 
are submitted to the Utah Local Governments Trust, which acts as a commercial insurer. The 
Association is obligated to pay all claims covered by its plan. All claims are subject to a 
$5,000 deductible. The deductible is accrued as a current liability when the claim is incurred. 
The Utah Local Governments Trust covers claims up to $10,000,000. The City has not 
incurred a claim in excess of its coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. 

NQTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN 

Plan Description. Eagle Mountain City contributes to the b c a l  Governmental 
Noncontributory Retirement System, cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plans administered by the Utah Retirement Systems (Systems), Utah Retirement Systems 
provide refunds, retirement benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries in accordance with retirement statutes established and 
mended by the State Legislame. 

The Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of Chapter 49 of the 
Utah Code Annotated 1953 as amended. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Chapter 
49 provides for the administration of the Utah Retirement Systems and Plans under the 
direction of the Utah State Retirement Board (Board) whose members are appointed by the 
Governor. The Systems issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial. 
statements and required supp1ementary information for the Local Governmental Contributory 
Retirement System, Local Governmental Noncontributory Retirement System, and Public 
Safety Retirement System for employers with Social Security coverage. A copy of the report 
may be obtained by writing tu the Utah Retirement Systems, 540 East 200 South, Salt Lake 
City, UT 84102 or by calling 1-800-365-8772. 
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NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Conti~ued) 

Funding Policy. In the h c a l  Govanmental Noncontributory Retirement System, Eagle 
Mountain City is required to contribute 11.66% of their mual  covered salary. The City is 
required to contribute 9.68% to the firefighters. The contribution rates are the actuarially 
detemined rates. The contribution requirements of the Systems are approved by the Board. 

Eagle Mountain City contributions to the Noncontributory Retirement System for June 30, 
2010, 2009, and 2008, were $374,635, $368,797, and $355,338, respectively. The 
contributions were equal to the required contributions for each year, 

Eagle Mountain City contributions to the Firefighters Retirement System for June 30, 2010 
and 2009 and 2008 were $37,701, $35,3 10, and $19,547, respectively, Eagle Mountain City 
contributions to the 457 Contribution System for June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were 
$171,756, $1 66,736, and $140,543, respectively. 

NOTE 14 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The City has entered into agreements with various developers to donate infrastructure that 
will benefit Euture development within the city. These developers will be repaid with the 
impact fees collected from those future developments. Because of the fluctuations in the: 
building market within the City and due to the uncertainty of new developments actually 
being built, the amounts are not reflected as liabilities on the financial statements. They will 
be recorded as expenses as the future impact fees are received. The amount of outstanding 
impact fee reimbursement agreements as of the balance sheet date is $7,795,671. 

NOTE 15 - GOLF COURSE 

The City created a new enterprise fund during the 2010 fiscal year. The Golf course fund 
was created to account for the activities of the golf course within the City. The golf course 
was contributed to the city by the previous owners. The contribution included the land, 
buildings, equipment, lease rights and cash. The total contribution to the City was 
$3,992,654. The City has leased the course including the land, buildings, and equipment to 
an outside management company. The lease is a 10 year lease with the lease payments at $1 
mually year. The management company has the option to purchase the course from the 
City at that time. The City as agreed with the management company to pay operating costs 
in excess of revenues of the course up to the amount of the cash contributed by the original 
owners. 
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NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In preparing these fmancial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through December 10, 2010, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

Rest of this page intentionally left blank. 



APPENDIX B 

EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 

The following contains extracts of certain provisions and definitions contained in the Indenture and is not 
to be considered as a full statement thereof. Reference is made to the Indenture for full details of the Indenture, 
terms of the Series 201 1 Bonds and the security provisions appertaining thereto. 

Definitions 

"Accreted Amount" means, with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds of any Series and as of the date of 
calculation, the amount representing the initial public offering price, plus the accumulated and compounded interest 
on such Bonds, as established pursuant to the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Capital Appreciation Bonds. 

"Acquisition/Construction Fund" means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah Gas and Electric Revenue 
Acquisition/Construction Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the Trustee. 

"Act" means the Local Government Bonding Act, Title 11, Chapter 14, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as 
amended and/or the Utah Refunding Bond Act, Title 11,  Chapter 27, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, each 
to the extent applicable. 

"Additional Bonds" means all Bonds issued under the Indenture other than the Initial Bonds. 

"Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement" means the total Debt Service (including any Repayment 
Obligations) for any one Bond Fund Year (or other specific period) on all Series of Bonds Outstanding or any 
specified portion thereof. 

"Authorized Amount" means, with respect to a Commercial Paper Program, the maximum Principal 
amount of commercial paper which is then authorized by the Issuer to be outstanding at any one time pursuant to 
such Commercial Paper Program. 

"Authorized Representatives" means the Mayor, Finance Director/Treasurer, or any other officer of the 
Issuer so designated in writing by the Issuer to the Trustee. 

"Average Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement'' means the total of all Aggregate Annual Debt 
Service Requirements divided by the total Bond Fund Years of the Bonds Outstanding or any specified portion 
thereof. 

"Balloon Bonds" means Bonds (andlor Security Instrument Repayment Obligations relating thereto), other 
than Bonds which mature within one year of the date of issuance thereof, 25% or more of the Principal Installments 
on which (a) are due or, (b) at the option of the Owner thereof may be redeemed, during any period of twelve 
consecutive months. 

"Bond Anticipation Notes" means notes issued pursuant to the Indenture in anticipation of the issuance of a 
Series of Bonds. 

"Bond Fund" means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah Gas and Electric Revenue Bond Fund created in the 
Indenture to be held by the Trustee. 

"Bond Fund Year" means the 12-month period beginning July 1 of each year and ending on the next 
succeeding June 30, except that the first Bond Fund Year shall begin on the date of delivery of the Initial Bonds and 
shall end on the next succeeding June 30. 

"Bondholder," "Bondowner," "Registered Owner," or "Owner" means the registered owner of any Bonds 
authorized by the Indenture according to the registration books of the Issuer maintained by the Trustee as Registrar. 



L L B ~ n d ~ "  means bonds, notes, commercial paper, or other obligations (other than Repayment Obligations) 
authorized by and at any time Outstanding pursuant to the Indenture, including the Initial Bonds and any Additional 
Bonds. 

"Business Day" means any day (i) (a) on which banking business is transacted, but not including any day 
on which banks are authorized to be closed in New York City or in the city in which the Trustee has its Principal 
Corporate Trust Office or, with respect to a related Series of Bonds, in the city in which any Security Instrument 
Issuer has its principal office for purposes of such Security Instrument and (b) on which the New York Stock 
Exchange is open; or (ii) as otherwise provided in a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Capital Appreciation Bonds" means Bonds the interest on which (i) is compounded and accumulated at 
the rates and on the dates set forth in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of such Bonds and 
designating them as Capital Appreciation Bonds, and (ii) is payable upon maturity or prior redemption of such 
Bonds. 

"City Recorder" means the City Recorder of the Issuer or any successor to the duties of such office and any 
deputy to the City Recorder. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Commercial Paper Program" means commercial paper obligations with maturities of not more than two 
hundred seventy (270) days from the dates of issuance thereof which are issued and reissued by the Issuer from time 
to time pursuant to the Indenture and are outstanding up to an Authorized Amount. 

"Construction Bonds" means Bonds issued pursuant to the Indenture to complete a Project or to acquire or 
construct a new Project. 

"Cost" or "Costs" or "Costs of Construction" or "Cost of Completion," or any phrase of similar import, in 
connection with a Project or with the refunding of any bonds, means all costs and expenses which are properly 
chargeable thereto under generally accepted accounting principles or which are incidental to the financing, 
acquisition and construction of a Project or with the refunding of any bonds, including, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing: 

(a) amounts payable to contractors and costs incident to the award of contracts; 

(b) cost of labor, facilities and services furnished by the Issuer and its employees or others, materials 
and supplies purchased by the Issuer or others and permits and licenses obtained by the lssuer or others; 

(c) engineering, architectural, legal, planning, underwriting, accounting, and other professional and 
advisory fees; 

(d) premiums for contract bonds and insurance during construction and costs on account of personal 
injuries and property damage in the course of construction and insurance against the same; 

(e) interest expenses, including interest on the Series of Bonds relating to a Project; 

(0 printing, engraving, and other expenses of financing, fees of financial rating services, and costs of 
issuing the Series of Bonds (including costs of interest rate caps and costs related to Interest Rate Swaps (or the 
elimination thereof)); 

(g) costs, fees, and expenses in connection with the acquisition of real and personal property or rights 
therein, including premiums for title insurance; 

(h) costs of furniture, fixtures, and equipment purchased by the Issuer and necessary to construct a 
Project; 



(i) amounts required to repay temporary or bond anticipation loans or notes made to finance the costs 
of a Project; 

(j) cost of site improvements performed by the lssuer in anticipation of a Project; 

(k) moneys necessary to fund the funds created under the Indenture; 

(1) costs of the capitalization with proceeds of a Series of Bonds issued under the Indenture of any 
operation and maintenance expenses and other working capital appertaining to any facilities to be acquired for a 
Project and of any interest on a Series of Bonds for any period not exceeding the period estimated by the Issuer to 
effect the construction of a Project plus one year, as the Indenture provides, of any discount on bonds or other 
securities, and of any reserves for the payment of the principal of and interest on a Series of Bonds, of any 
replacement expenses and of any other cost of issuance of a Series of Bonds or other securities, Security Instrument 
Costs and Reserve Instrument Costs; 

(m) costs of amending any indenture or other instrument authorizing the issuance of or otherwise 
appertaining to a Series of Bonds; 

(n) all other expenses necessary or desirable and appertaining to a Project, as estimated or otherwise 
ascertained by the Issuer, including costs of contingencies for a Project; and 

(0) payment to the Issuer of such amounts, if any, as shall be necessary to reimburse the lssuer in full 
for advances and payments theretofore made or costs theretofore incurred by the Issuer for any item of Costs. 

In the case of refunding or redeeming any bonds or other obligations, "Cost" includes, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the items listed in (c), (e), (f), (i), (k), (I), (m) and (0) above, advertising and other 
expenses related to the redemption of such bonds to be redeemed and the redemption price of such bonds (and the 
accrued interest payable on redemption to the extent not otherwise provided for). 

"Cross-over Date" means with respect to Cross-over Refunding Bonds the date on which the Principal 
portion of the related Cross-over Refunded Bonds is to be paid or redeemed from the proceeds of such Cross-over 
Refunding Bonds. 

"Cross-over Refunded Bonds" means Bonds or other obligations refunded by Cross-over Refunding Bonds. 

"Cross-over Refunding Bonds" means Bonds issued for the purpose of refunding Bonds or other 
obligations if the proceeds of such Cross-over Refunding Bonds are irrevocably deposited in escrow in satisfaction 
of the requirements of Section 11-27-3, Utah Code, to secure the payment on an applicable redemption date or 
maturity date of the Cross-over Refunded Bonds (subject to possible use to pay Principal of the Cross-over 
Refunding Bonds under certain circumstances) and the earnings on such escrow deposit are required to be applied to 
pay interest on the Cross-over Refunding Bonds until the Cross-over Date. 

"Current Interest Bonds" means all Bonds other than Capital Appreciation Bonds. lnterest on Current 
Interest Bonds shall be payable periodically on the Interest Payment Dates provided therefor in a Supplemental 
Indenture. 

"Debt Service" means, for any particular Bond Fund Year and for any Series of Bonds and any Repayment 
Obligations, an amount equal to the sum of (i) all interest payable during such Bond Fund Year on such Series of 
Bonds plus (ii) the Principal Installments payable during such Bond Fund Year on (a) such Bonds Outstanding, 
calculated on the assumption that Bonds Outstanding on the day of calculation cease to be Outstanding by reason of, 
but only by reason of, payment either upon maturity or application of any Sinking Fund Installments required by the 
Indenture, and (b) such Repayment Obligations then outstanding; 

provided, however, for purposes of Special Provisions for the Issuance of Construction  bond^ as provided 
in the Indenture, 



( 1 )  when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year for any Series of Variable Rate 
Bonds or Repayment Obligations bearing interest at a variable rate which cannot be ascertained for any particular 
Bond Fund Year, it shall be assumed that such Series of Variable Rate Bonds or related Repayment Obligations will 
bear interest at such market rate of interest applicable to such Series of Variable Rate Bonds or related Repayment 
Obligations as shall be established for this purpose in the opinion of the Issuer's financial advisor, underwriter or 
similar agent (which market rate of interest may be based upon a recognized comparable market index, an average 
of interest rates for prior years or otherwise); 

(2) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year for any Series of Variable Rate 
Bonds which are issued with a floating rate and with respect to which an Interest Rate Swap is in effect in which the 
Issuer has agreed to pay a fixed interest rate, such Series of Variable Rate Bonds shall be deemed to bear interest at 
the effective fixed annual rate thereon as a result of such lnterest Rate Swap; provided that such effective fixed 
annual rate may be utilized only if such Interest Rate Swap does not result in a reduction or withdrawal of any rating 
then in effect with respect to the Bonds and so long as such lnterest Rate Swap is contracted to remain in full force 
and effect; 

(3) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year for any Series of Bonds which are 
issued with a fixed interest rate and with respect to which an Interest Rate Swap is in effect in which the lssuer has 
agreed to pay a floating amount, Debt Service shall include the interest payable on such Series of Bonds, less fixed 
amounts to be received by the lssuer under such Interest Rate Swap plus the amount of the floating payments (using 
the market rate in a manner similar to that described in ( I )  above, unless another method of estimation is more 
appropriate, in the opinion of the Issuer's financial advisor, underwriter or similar agent with the approval of each 
Rating Agency, for such floating payments) to be made by the lssuer under the Interest Rate Swap; provided that the 
above described calculation of Debt Service may be utilized only if such Interest Rate Swap does not result in a 
reduction or withdrawal of any rating then in effect with respect to the Bonds and so long as such lnterest Rate Swap 
is contracted to remain in full force and effect; 

(4) when calculating interest payable during such Bond Fund Year with respect to any Commercial 
Paper Program, Debt Service shall include an amount equal to the sum of all principal and interest payments that 
would be payable during such Bond Fund Year assuming that the Authorized Amount of such Commercial Paper 
Program is amortized on a level debt service basis over a period of 30 years beginning on the date of calculation or, 
if later, the last day of the period during which obligations can be issued under such Commercial Paper Program, 
and bearing interest at such market rate of interest applicable to such Commercial Paper Program as shall be 
established for this purpose in the opinion of the Issuer's financial advisor, underwriter or similar agent (which 
market rate of interest may be based upon a recognized comparable market index, an average of interest rates for 
prior years or otherwise); 

(5) when calculating interest payable on Bonds that are Paired Obligations, the interest rate on such 
Bonds shall be the resulting linked rate or effective fixed interest rate to be paid by the Issuer with respect to such 
Paired Obligations; 

and further provided, that there shall be excluded from Debt Service (x) interest on Bonds (including Cross-over 
Refunding Bonds or Cross-over Refunded Bonds) to the extent that Escrowed lnterest or capitalized interest is 
available to pay such interest, (y) Principal on Cross-over Refunded Bonds to the extent that the proceeds of Cross- 
over Refunding Bonds are on deposit in an irrevocable escrow in satisfaction of the requirements of Section 1 1-27- 
3, Utah Code, as amended, and such proceeds or the earnings thereon are required to be applied to pay such 
Principal (subject to the possible use to pay the Principal of the Cross-over Refunding Bonds under certain 
circumstances) and such amounts so required to be applied are suficient to pay such Principal, and (z) Repayment 
Obligations to the extent that payments on Pledged Bonds relating to such Repayment Obligations satisfy the 
Issuer's obligation to pay such Repayment Obligations. 

(6)  Amortization of Balloon Bonds may be assumed on a level debt service basis over a twenty-year 
period at the interest rate based on the Revenue Bond Index as last published in The Bond Buyer, provided that the 
full amount of Balloon Bonds shall be included in the calculation if the calculation is made within twelve (12) 
months of the actual maturity of such Balloon Bonds and no credit facility exists. 



"Debt Service Reserve Fund" means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah, Revenue Debt Service Reserve Fund 
created in the Indenture. 

"Debt Service Reserve Requirement" means with respect to each Series of Bonds issued pursuant to the 
Indenture, unless otherwise provided in the related Supplemental Indenture, an amount equal to the least of (i) 10% 
of the proceeds of such Series of Bonds determined on the basis of original principal amount (unless original issue 
premium or original issue discount exceeds 2% of original principal, then determined on the basis of initial purchase 
price to the public), (ii) the maximum annual Debt Service during any Bond Fund Year for such Series of Bonds, 
and (iii) 125% of the average annual Debt Service for such Series of Bonds; provided, however, that in the event any 
Series of Additional Bonds is issued to refund only a portion and not all of the then Outstanding Bonds of any other 
Series of Bonds issued pursuant to the lndenture (the "Prior Bonds"), then the portion of such Series of Prior Bonds 
that remain Outstanding immediately after the issuance of such Additional Bonds and the portion of such Additional 
Bonds that is allocable to the refunding of such Series of Prior Bonds may be combined and treated as a single 
Series for purpose of determining the Debt Service Reserve Requirement relating to such combined Series and the 
resulting requirement shall be allocated among the two Series pro rata based upon the total principal amount 
remaining Outstanding for each Series. The Debt Service Reserve Requirement may be funded by a Reserve 
Instrument as provided for in the Indenture, and if provided in the related Supplemental Indenture, may be 
accumulated over time. Each Account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall only be used with respect to the 
related Series of Bonds. 

"Direct Obligations" means noncallable Government Obligations. 

"Escrowed Interest" means amounts irrevocably deposited in escrow in accordance with the requirements 
of Section 11-27-3, Utah Code, in connection with the issuance of Refunding Bonds or Cross-over Refunding Bonds 
secured by such amounts or earnings on such amounts which are required to be applied to pay interest on such 
Cross-over Refunding Bonds or the related Cross-over Rehnded Bonds. 

"Event of Default" means with respect to any default or event of default under the lndenture any 
occurrence or event specified in and defined by the Indenture. 

"Fitch" means Fitch Ratings. 

"Governing Body" means the Municipal Council of the Issuer. 

"Government Obligations" means solely one or more of the following: 

(a) State and Local Government Series issued by the United States Treasury ("SLGS"); 

(b) United States Treasury bills, notes and bonds, as traded on the open market; 

(c) Zero Coupon United States Treasury Bonds; and 

(d) Any other direct obligations of or obligations unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of 
America (including, without limitation, obligations commonly referred to as "REFCORP strips"). 

"lndenture" means the General lndenture of Trust as from time to time amended or supplemented by 
Supplemental Indentures in accordance with the terms of the Indenture. 

"Initial Bonds" means the first Series of Bonds issued under the Indenture. 

"Interest Payment Date" means the stated payment date of an installment of interest on the Bonds. 

"Interest Rate Swap" means an agreement between the Issuer or the Trustee and a Swap Counterpariy 
related to a Series of Bonds whereby a variable rate cash flow (which may be subject to any interest rate cap) on a 
principal or notional amount is exchanged for a fixed rate of return on an equal principal or notional amount. If the 



Issuer or the Trustee enters into more than one Interest Rate Swap with respect to a Series of Bonds, each Interest 
Rate Swap shall specify the same payment dates. 

"Issuer" means Eagle Mountain City, Utah, and its successors. 

"Mayor" means the duly elected mayor of the lssuer or any successor to the duties of such oftice. Such 
term shall also include the Deputy Mayor except as the Deputy Mayor's powers may be limited by written 
declaration of the duly elected Mayor. 

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc. 

"Net Revenues" means the Revenues after provision has been made for the payment therefrom of 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses. 

"Operation and Maintenance Expenses" means all expenses reasonably incurred in connection with the 
operation and maintenance of the System, whether incurred by the Issuer or paid to any other entity pursuant to 
contract or otherwise, necessary to keep the System in efficient operating condition, including cost of audits required 
by the Indenture, payment of promotional and marketing expenses and real estate brokerage fees, payment of 
premiums for the insurance required by the Indenture, and, generally all expenses, exclusive of depreciation 
(including depreciation related expenses of any joint venture) and, any in-lieu of tax transfers to lssuer funds and 
interest expense for interfund loans from Issuer funds, which under generally accepted accounting practices are 
properly allocable to operation and maintenance; however, only such expenses as are reasonably and properly 
necessary to the efficient operation and maintenance of the System shall be included. 

"Outstanding" or "Bonds Outstanding" means at any date all Bonds which have not been canceled which 
have been or are being authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the Indenture, except: 

(a) Any Bond or portion thereof which at the time has been paid or deemed paid pursuant to the 
Indenture; and 

(b) Any Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which a new Bond shall have been authenticated and 
delivered under the Indenture, unless proof satisfactory to the Trustee is presented that such Bond is held by a bona 
fide holder in due course. 

"Paired Obligations" means any Series (or portion thereof) of Bonds designated as Paired Obligations in 
the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance or incurrence thereof, which are simultaneously issued or 
incurred (i) the Principal of which is of equal amount maturing and to be redeemed (or cancelled after acquisition 
thereof) on the same dates and in the same amounts, and (ii) the interest rates of which, when taken together, result 
in an irrevocably fixed interest rate obligation of the lssuer for the terms of such Bonds. 

"Paying Agent" means the Trustee, appointed as the initial paying agent for the Bonds pursuant to the 
Indenture, and any additional or successor paying agent appointed pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Pledged Bonds" means any Bonds that have been (i) pledged or in which any interest has otherwise been 
granted to a Security Instrument lssuer as collateral security for Security Instrument Repayment Obligations or (ii) 
purchased and held by a Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument. 

"Principal" means, (i) with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the Accreted Amount thereof (the 
difference between the stated amount to be paid at maturity and the Accreted Amount being deemed unearned 
interest), except as used in connection with the authorization and issuance of Bonds and with the order of priority of 
payment of Bonds afier an Event of Default, in which case "Principal" means the initial public offering price of a 
Capital Appreciation Bond (the difference between the Accreted Amount and the initial public offering price being 
deemed interest); and (ii) with respect to any Current Interest Bond, the principal amount of such Bond payable at 
maturity. 



"Principal Corporate Trust Ofice" means, with respect to the Trustee, the office of the Trustee at 170 
South Main Street, Suite 200, Salt Lake City, Utah, or such other or additional offices as may be specified by the 
Trustee. 

"Principal Installment" means, as of any date of calculation, (i) with respect to any Series of Bonds, so long 
as any Bonds thereof are Outstanding, (a) the Principal amount of Bonds of such Series due on a certain future date 
for which no Sinking Fund Installments have been established, or (b) the unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund 
Installment due on a certain future date for Bonds of such Series, plus the amount of the sinking fund redemption 
premiums, if any, which would be applicable upon redemption of such Bonds on such future date in a Principal 
amount equal to such unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Tnstallment and (ii) with respect to any Repayment 
Obligations, the principal amount of such Repayment Obligations due on a certain future date. 

"Project" means the acquisition, construction, andlor renovation of the System, or the acquisition of 
improvements and equipment (with an expected life beyond a current Fiscal Year) for use in the System. 

"Put Bond" means any Bond which is part of a Series of Bonds which is subject to purchase by the Issuer, 
its agent or a third party from the Owner of the Bond pursuant to provisions of the Supplemental Indenture 
authorizing the issuance of the Bond and designating it as a "Put Bond." 

"Qualified Engineer" means any registered or licensed engineer or architect or engineer or firm of such 
engineers or architects and engineers generally recognized to be qualified in engineering matters relating to 
construction and maintenance of municipal gas and electric systems, appointed and paid by the Issuer, who shall not 
have any substantial interest, direct or indirect (other than employment), with the Issuer, but who may be regularly 
retained to make annual or other periodic reports of the Issuer. "Qualified Engineer" may include any registered or 
licensed engineer employed by the Issuer. 

"Qualified Investments" means any of the following securities: 

(a) Government Obligations; 

(b) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations represent full faith and 
credit obligations of the United States of America including: the Export-Import Bank of the United States; the 
Government National Mortgage Association; the Federal Financing Bank; the Farmer's Home Administration; the 
Federal Housing Administration; the Maritime Administration: General Services Administration; Small Business 
Administration; or the Department of Housing and Urban Development (PHA's); 

(c) S.E.C. registered money market mutual funds conforming to Rule 2a-7 of the Investment 
Company Act of 1940 that invest primarily in direct obligations issued by the U.S. Treasury and repurchase 
agreements backed by those obligations, including funds for which the Trustee or an affiliate of the Trustee acts as 
an advisor, and rated in the highest category by Standard & Poor's Corporation and Moody's Investors Service, Inc.; 

(d) Investments in (i) senior obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, (ii) participation 
certificates or senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, (iii) mortgage-backed 
securities and senior debt obligations (excluding stripped mortgage securities that are valued greater than par on the 
portion of unpaid principal) of the Federal National Mortgage Association, or (iv) senior debt obligations of the 
Student Loan Marketing Association; 

(e) Repurchase agreements with primary dealers andlor banks rated, at all times, AA and AA2 or 
better by Standard & Poor's Corporation and Moody's Investors Service, Inc., respectively, collateralized with the 
obligations described in (a) or (b) above, held by a third party custodian, at the levels set forth below, which 
repurchase agreements have been approved by the Security Instrument Issuer; 

( f )  Certificates of deposit of any bank (including the Trustee), trust company or savings and loan 
association whose short term obligations are rated, at all times, A-1 or better by Standard & Poor's Corporation and 
P-1 by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. provided that such certificates of deposit are fully secured by the obligations 



described in (a) or (b) above, at the levels set forth below, the Trustee has a perfected first security interest in the 
obligations securing the certificates and the Trustee holds (or shall have the option to appoint a bank, trust company 
or savings and loan association as its agent to hold) the obligations securing the certificates; 

(g) Certificates of deposit of any bank (including the Trustee), trust company, or savings and loan 
association which certificates are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation; 

(h) Obligations of, or obligations fully guaranteed by, any state of the United States of America or any 
political subdivision thereof which obligations, at all times, are rated by Standard & Poor's Corporation and 
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. in the highest rating categories (without regard to any refinement or graduation of 
rating category by numerical modifier or otherwise) and without regard to credit enhancement assigned by such 
rating agencies to obligations of that nature; 

(i) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single highest classification, P-1 by 
Moody's or A-1 + by S&P, and which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; 

(j) Bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness rated "AAA by S&P and "Aaa" by Moody's 
issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with 
remaining maturities not exceeding three years; 

(k) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and banker's acceptances with domestic 
commercial banks, including the Trustee and its affiliates, which have a rating on their short term certificates of 
deposit on the date or purchase of "A-I" or "A-l+" by S&P and "P-1" by Moody's and maturing no more than 360 
days after the date of purchase (ratings on holding companies are not considered as the rating of the bank); 

(1) The fund held by the Treasurer for the State of Utah and commonly known as the Utah State 
Public Treasurer's Investment Fund; and 

(m) Any other investments or securities permitted for investment of public funds under the State 
Money Management Act of 1974, Title 51, Chapter 7, Utah Code, including investments contracts permitted by 
Section 5 1-7-17(2)(d) thereof, with the prior written consent of the Security Instrument Issuer, if applicable. 

"Rating Agency" means Fitch, Moody's or S&P and their successors and assigns, but only to the extent 
such rating agency is then providing a rating on a Series of Bonds issued under the Indenture at the request of the 
Issuer. If either such Rating Agency ceases to act as a securities rating agency, the Issuer may designate any 
nationally recognized securities rating agency as a replacement. 

"Rating Category" or "Rating Categories" mean one or more of the generic rating categories of a Rating 
Agency, without regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating category or categories by a numerical modifier 
or otherwise. 

"Rebatable Arbitrage" means with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest thereon is intended to 
be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the amount (determinable as of each Rebate 
Calculation Date) of rebatable arbitrage payable to the United States at the times and in the amounts specified in 
Section 148(f)(3) of the Code and Section 1 . I  48-3 of the Regulations. 

"Rebate Calculation Date" means, with respect to any Series of Bonds where the interest thereon is 
intended to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the Interest Payment Date next 
preceding the fifth anniversary of the issue date of such Series of Bonds, each fifth anniversary of the initial Rebate 
Calculation Date for such Series of Bonds, and the date of retirement of the last Bond for such Series. 

"Rebate F u n d  means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah Gas and Electric Revenue Rebate Fund created in the 
Indenture to be held by the Trustee. 

"Register" means the record of ownership of the Bonds maintained by the Registrar. 



"Registrar" means the Trustee (or other party designated as Registrar by Supplemental Indenture), 
appointed as the registrar for the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, and any additional or successor registrar 
appointed pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Regular Record Date" means unless otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture for a Series of Bonds, 
the fifteenth day immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date. 

"Regulations," and all references thereto shall mean and include applicable final, proposed and temporary 
United States Treasury Regulations promulgated with respect to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code, 
including all amendments thereto made hereafter. 

"Remarketing Agent" means a remarketing agent or commercial paper dealer appointed by the Issuer 
pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture. 

"Repair and Replacement Fund" means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah Gas and Electric Revenue Repair 
and Replacement Fund created in the lndenture to be held by the Issuer. 

"Repair and Replacement Reserve Requirement" means the amount or amounts from time to time required 
under each Supplemental Indenture to be on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund. 

"Repayment Obligations" means, collectively, all outstanding Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
and Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations. 

"Reserve Instrument" means a device or instrument issued by a Reserve Instrument Provider to satisfy all 
or any portion of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement applicable to a Series of Bonds. In the event a Series of 
Bonds is insured by a Security Instrument Issuer, the Reserve lnstrument shall comply in form and substance with 
such Security Instrument Issuer's requirements. The term "Reserve Instrument" includes, by way of example and 
not of limitation, letters of credit, bond insurance policies, surety bonds, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of 
credit and other devices. 

"Reserve Instrument Agreement" means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a Reserve Instrument 
Provider pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable portions of a Supplemental Indenture) and 
providing for the issuance by such Reserve lnstrument Provider of a Reserve Instrument. 

"Reserve lnstrument Costs" means all fees, premiums, expenses, and similar costs, other than Reserve 
Instrument Repayment Obligations, required to be paid to a Reserve Instrument Provider pursuant to a Reserve 
Instrument Agreement. Each Reserve Instrument Agreement shall specify the fees, premiums, expenses, and costs 
constituting Reserve lnstrument Costs. 

"Reserve Instrument Coverage" means, as of any date of calculation, the aggregate amount available to be 
paid to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture under all Reserve Instruments. 

"Reserve lnstrument Fund" means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah Gas and Electric Revenue and Refunding 
Reserve Instrument Fund created in the lndenture to be held by the Trustee. 

"Reserve Instrument Limit" means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any Reserve 
Instrument, the maximum aggregate amount available to be paid under such Reserve Instrument into the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund assuming for purposes of such calculation that the amount initially available under each 
Reserve Instrument has not been reduced or that the amount initially available under each Reserve Instrument has 
only been reduced as a result of the payment of principal of the applicable Series of Bonds. 

"Reserve lnstrument Provider" means any bank, savings and loan association, savings bank, thrift 
institution, credit union, insurance company, surety company, or other institution issuing a Reserve Instrument. 



"Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations" means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any 
Reserve lnstrument Agreement, those outstanding amounts payable by the Issuer under such Reserve Instrument 
Agreement to repay the Reserve Instrument Provider for payments previously made by it pursuant to a Reserve 
Instrument. There shall not be included in the calculation of Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations any 
Reserve Instrument Costs. 

"Revenue Fund" means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah Gas and Electric Revenue Fund created in the 
lndenture to be held by the Issuer. 

"Revenues" means all revenues, fees (including impact fees to the extent such impact fees can legally be 
used for the purposes financed under the Indenture), income, rents and receipts received or earned by the Issuer from 
or attributable to the ownership and operation of the System (including proceeds of business interruption insurance), 
together with all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of investments in the related funds thereof. 

"S&P7' means Standard & Poor's Rating Services. 

"Security Instrument" means an instrument or other device issued by a Security lnstrument Issuer to pay, or 
to provide security or liquidity for, a Series of Bonds. The term "Security Instrument" includes, by way of example 
and not of limitation, letters of credit, bond insurance policies, standby bond purchase agreements, lines of credit 
and other security instruments and credit enhancement or liquidity devices (but does not include a Reserve 
Instrument); provided, however, that no such device or instrument shall be a "Security Instrument" for purposes of 
the lndenture unless specifically so designated in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of such device or 
instrument. 

"Security Instrument Agreement" means any agreement entered into by the Issuer and a Security 
lnstrument Issuer pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture (including the applicable portions of a Supplemental 
Indenture) providing for the issuance by such Security Instrument Issuer of a Security Instrument. 

"Security Instrument Costs" means, with respect to any Security Instrument, all fees, premiums, expenses 
and similar costs, other than Security Instrument Repayment Obligations, required to be paid to a Security 
Instrument Issuer pursuant to a Security Instrument Agreement or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of 
such Security Instrument. Such Security Instrument Agreement or Supplemental Indenture shall specify any fees, 
premiums, expenses, and costs constituting Security Instrument Costs. 

"Security Instrument Issuer" means any bank or other financial institution, insurance company, surety 
company, or other institution issuing a Security Instrument. 

"Security lnstrument Repayment Obligations" means, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any 
Security Instrument Agreement, any outstanding amounts payable by the Issuer under the Security Instrument 
Agreement or the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the use of such Security Instrument to repay the Security 
Instrument Issuer for payments previously or concurrently made by the Security Instrument Issuer pursuant to a 
Security Instrument. There shall not be included in the calculation of the amount of Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligations any Security Instrument Costs. 

"Series" means all of the Bonds authenticated and delivered on original issuance and identified pursuant to 
the Supplemental lndenture authorizing such Bonds as a separate Series of Bonds, and any Bonds thereafter 
authenticated and delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution therefor. 

"Sinking Fund Account" means the Eagle Mountain City, Utah Gas and Electric Revenue and Refunding 
Sinking Fund Account of the Bond Fund created in the Indenture to be held by the Trustee. 

"Sinking Fund Installment" means the amount of money which is required to be deposited into the Sinking 
Fund Account in each Bond Fund Year for the retirement of Term Bonds as specified in the Supplemental Indenture 
authorizing said Term Bonds (whether at maturity or by redemption), and including the redemption premium, if any. 



"Special Record Date" means such date as may be fixed for the payment of defaulted interest on the Bonds 
in accordance with the Indenture. 

"State" means the State of Utah. 

"Supplemental Indenture" means any indenture between the Issuer and the Trustee entered into pursuant to 
and in compliance with the Indenture. 

"Swap Counterparty" means a member of the International Swap Dealers Association rated in one of the 
three top Rating Categories by at least one of the Rating Agencies and meeting the requirements of applicable laws 
of the State. 

"Swap Payments" means as of each payment date specified in an Interest Rate Swap, the amount, if any, 
payable to the Swap Counterparty by the Issuer. Swap Payments do not include any Termination Payments. 

"Swap Receipts" means as of each payment date specified in an lnterest Rate Swap, the amount, if any, 
payable for the account of the lssuer by the Swap Counterparty. Swap Receipts do not include amounts received 
with respect to the early termination or modification of an Interest Rate Swap. 

"System" means, collectively, the Issuer's gas and electric utility, together with any additions, repairs, 
renewals, replacements, expansions, extensions and improvements to said System, or any part thereof, hereafter 
acquired or constructed, and together with all lands, easements, interests in land, licenses and rights of way of the 
Issuer and all other works, property, structures, equipment of the lssuer and contract rights and other tangible and 
intangible assets of the Issuer now or hereafter owned or used in connection with, or related to said System. 

"Term Bonds" means the Bonds which shall be subject to retirement by operation of mandatory sinking 
fund redemptions from the Sinking Fund Account. 

"Termination Payments" means the amount payable to the Swap Counterparty by the Issuer with respect to 
the early termination or modification of an Interest Rate Swap. Termination Payments may only be payable from 
and secured by Revenues after payment of all amounts then due pursuant to the Indenture. 

"Trustee" means U.S. Bank National Association, 170 South Main Street, Suite 200, Salt Lake City, Utah 
84101, or any successor corporation resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger to which it or its 
successors may be a party and any successor trustee at any time serving as successor trustee under the Indenture. 

"Utah Code" means Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. 

"Variable Rate Bonds" means, as of any date of calculation, Bonds, the interest on which for any future 
period of time, is to be calculated at a rate which is not susceptible to a precise determination. 

"Year" means any twelve consecutive month period. 

The Bonds 

Limited Obligation 

The Bonds, together with interest thereon, and all Repayment Obligations shall be limited obligations of the 
lssuer payable solely from the Net Revenues (except to the extent paid out of moneys attributable to the Bond 
proceeds or other funds created under the Indenture and held by the Trustee (except the Rebate Fund) or the income 
from the temporary investment thereof). The Bonds shall be a valid claim of the Registered Owners thereof only 
against the Net Revenues and other moneys in funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the Indenture (except 
the Rebate Fund) and the lssuer pledges and assigns the same for the equal and ratable payment of the Bonds and all 
Repayment Obligations, and the Net Revenues shall be used for no other purpose than to pay the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and to pay the Repayment Obligations, except as may be otherwise 



expressly authorized in the Indenture or by Supplemental Indenture. The issuance of the Bonds and delivery of any 
Security lnstrument Agreement or Reserve lnstrument Agreement shall not, directly, indirectly or contingently, 
obligate the lssuer or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof to levy any form of taxation 
therefor or to make any appropriation for their payment. 

indenture to Constitute Contract 

In consideration of the purchase and acceptance from time to time of any and all of the Bonds authorized to 
be issued under the Indenture by the Registered Owners thereof, the issuance from time to time of any and all 
Security Instruments by Security Instrument Issuers, and the issuance from time to time of any and all Reserve 
Instruments by Reserve Instrument Providers pursuant to the Indenture, the Indenture shall be deemed to be and 
shall constitute a contract between the Issuer and the Owners from time to time of the Bonds, the Security 
lnstrument Issuers and the Reserve Instrument Providers; and the pledge made in the Indenture and the covenants 
and agreements in the Indenture set forth to be performed by or on behalf of the lssuer shall be, FIRST, for the equal 
benefit, protection and security of the Owners of any and all of the Bonds and the Security Instrument Issuers of any 
and all of the Security Instruments all of which, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, delivery, maturity 
or expiration, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any of the Bonds or Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligations over any others, except as expressly provided in or permitted by the Indenture, 
and SECOND, for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Reserve lnstrument Providers of any and all of 
the Reserve Instruments which, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, delivery or termination, shall be of 
equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any Reserve lnstrument over any other thereof. 

Covenant against Creating or Permitting Liens 

Except for the pledge of Net Revenues to secure payment of the Bonds and Repayment Obligations under 
the Indenture, the Net Revenues are and shall be free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance thereon 
or with respect thereto; provided, however, that nothing contained in the Indenture shall prevent the lssuer from 
issuing, if and to the extent permitted by the Indenture and applicable law, indebtedness having a lien on Net 
Revenues subordinate to that of the Bonds and Repayment Obligations. 

Additional Bonds 

Special Provisions for the Issuance of Additional Construction Bonds 

(a) One or more Series of Bonds may be authenticated and delivered upon original issuance from time 
to time in such principal amounts for each such Series as may be determined by the lssuer for the purpose of paying 
or providing for the payment of all or a portion of (1) the Cost of Construction of a Project, (2) principal and 
redemption price of and interest on Bond Anticipation Notes, or (3) any combination of (1) and (2). 

(b) Each Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Construction Bonds: 

(i) Shall speci@ the Project for which the proceeds of such Series of Bonds will be applied; 
and 

(ii) May require the Issuer to deposit a specified amount of money from the proceeds of the 
sale of such Series of Bonds or from other legally available sources into the applicable Project account 
sufficient to pay when due all or a portion of the interest on such Series of Bonds accrued and to accrue to 
the estimated completion date of the Project as set forth in the Written Certificate of the lssuer delivered 
pursuant to paragraph (c) below, plus interest to accrue on such Series of Bonds after the estimated 
completion date for up to one Year (or such different period as may then be permitted by law). 

(c) Each Series of Construction Bonds shall be authenticated and delivered by the Trustee only upon 
receipt by the Trustee (in addition to the other documents required by the Indenture) of a written certificate of the 
Issuer, dated as of the date of such delivery, that contains the following: 



(i) The then estimated completion date and the then estimated Cost of Construction of the 
Project being financed by such Series of Bonds; 

(ii) A statement that, upon the authentication and delivery of the Bonds of such Series, no 
Event of Default has occurred and is then continuing under the Indenture and no event has or will have 
occurred which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would give rise to an Event of 
Default under the Indenture; 

(iii) Verification that the Net Revenues for the most recent Bond Fund Years for which an 
audit is available immediately preceding were not less than 125% of the sum of the Aggregate Annual Debt 
Service Requirement on all Bonds Outstanding for said year, plus the Construction Bonds proposed to be 
issued. 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, and in the event any Series of Bonds is insured by a 
Security Instrument Issuer, with such Security Instrument Issuer's prior written consent, if required, the provisions 
of (c)(iii) above shall apply: 

(i) to any Series of Construction Bonds, all of the proceeds of which are to be applied to pay 
the Cost of Construction of a Project necessary, as expressed in an Engineer's Certificate delivered to the 
Trustee, to keep the System or any component thereof in good operating condition or to prevent a loss of 
Revenues, or to comply with requirements of any governmental agency having jurisdiction over the lssuer 
or the System; or 

(ii) to any Series of Bonds issued to pay the Cost of Construction necessary to complete any 
Project for which Construction Bonds have previously been issued, provided that the Trustee shall have 
received: 

(A) an Engineer's Certificate to the effect that (i) the nature and purpose of such 
Project has not materially changed since the initial written certificate of the lssuer was filed 
pursuant to (c) above, and (ii) the then estimated Costs of Construction of the Project as contained 
in the written certificate of the Issuer delivered pursuant to (c) above exceeds the sum of the Costs 
of Construction already paid plus moneys available in the Acquisition/Construction Fund 
established for the Project (including unspent proceeds of Bonds previously issued for such 
purpose) plus other legally available moneys in the Revenue Fund; and 

(B) a written certificate of the lssuer to the effect that (i) all of the proceeds 
(including investment earnings) of Construction Bonds (or Bond Anticipation Notes) previously 
issued to finance such Project have been or will be used to pay Costs of Construction of the 
Project; (ii) the issuance of such Series of Bonds is necessary to provide funds to pay Costs of 
Construction necessary for the Project; and (iii) the principal amount of such Series of Bonds does 
not exceed twenty-five percent of the principal amount of all Construction Bonds previously 
issued to finance such Project. 

Special Provisions for the Issuance of Refunding Bonds 

One or more Series of Refunding Bonds may be issued in accordance with the Indenture in such principal 
amount which, when taken together with other legally available funds, will provide the Issuer with funds sufficient 
to accomplish the refunding of all or a part of the Outstanding Bonds of one or more Series, including in each case, 
the payment of all expenses in connection with such refunding. 

Conditions for Issuance of Bond Anticipation Notes 

(a) One or more Series of Bond Anticipation Notes may be authenticated and delivered upon original 
issuance from time to time in such principal amount for each such Series as may be determined by the Issuer for the 



purpose of paying or providing for the payment of all or a portion of the Cost of Construction of any Project, or the 
refunding of Bond Anticipation Notes, or a combination of such purposes. 

(b) (i) Each Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of a Series of Bond Anticipation 
Notes (i) shall specify the Project to which the proceeds of such Series of Bond Anticipation Notes will be 
applied; and (ii) may provide for the deposit of a specified amount of money from the proceeds of the sale 
of such Series of Bond Anticipation Notes into a Project account in the Acquisition/Construction Fund to 
pay when due all or a portion of the interest on such Series of Bond Application Notes accrued and to 
accrue to the estimated completion date set forth in the written certificate of the Issuer delivered with 
respect to such Series of Band Anticipation Notes pursuant to paragraph (c) below, plus interest to accrue 
on such Series of Bond Anticipation Notes after the estimated completion date for up to one Year (or such 
different period as may then be permitted by law). 

(ii) The payment of the interest on Bond Anticipation Notes shall be on a parity with the lien 
and charge created herein for the payment of the Bonds. The payment of the principal on Bond 
Anticipation Notes shall be payable solely from the proceeds of Bonds or amounts on deposit in a fund 
which is subordinate to the Bond Fund and the Supplemental Indenture pursuant to which any Series of 
Bond Anticipation Notes is issued shall so provide. Each Bond Anticipation Note shall state on its face that 
the payment of principal thereof is so subordinated. 

(iii) No Bond Anticipation Note shall mature later than five years from its date, including all 
refundings thereof by Bond Anticipation Notes (whether such refundings occur by reason of exchanges of 
Bond Anticipation Notes or by reason of payment of such Bond Anticipation Notes from refunding Bond 
Anticipation Notes, or otherwise). 

(c) Each Series of Bond Anticipation Notes shall be authorized and delivered by the Trustee only 
upon receipt by the Trustee (in addition to the other documents required by the Indenture) a written certificate of the 
Issuer, dated as of the date of such delivery, that contains the following: 

(i) The then estimated completion date and the then estimated Cost of Construction of the 
Project being financed by such Series of Bond Anticipation Notes; 

(ii) A statement that, upon the authentication and delivery of the Bond Anticipation Notes of 
such Series, no Event of Default has occurred and is then continuing under the lndenture and no event has 
or will have occurred which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would give rise to an 
Event of Default under the Indenture; and 

(iii) A statement that the issuance of such Series of Bond Anticipation Notes complies with 
the requirements of the Indenture, including (c)(iii) under "Special Provisions for the Issuance of 
Additional Construction Bonds'" above. 

Use of Funds 

Use of Acquisition/Construction Fund 

(a) So long as an Event of Default shall not have occurred and be continuing and except as otherwise 
provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys deposited in the appropriate account in the Acquisition/Construction 
Fund shall be disbursed by the Trustee to pay the Costs of a Project, in each case within three Business Days (or 
within such longer period as is reasonably required to liquidate investments in the Acquisition~Construction Fund if 
required to make such payment) after the receipt by the Trustee of a written requisition approved by an Authorized 
Representative of the Issuer in substantially the form attached to the Indenture, stating that the Trustee shall disburse 
sums in the manner specified by and at the direction of the Issuer to the person or entity designated in such written 
requisition, and that the amount set forth in the lndenture is justly due and owing and constitutes a Cost of a Project 
based upon audited, itemized claims substantiated in support thereof. 



(b) Upon receipt of such requisition, the Trustee shall pay the obligation set forth in such requisition 
out of moneys in the applicable account in the Acquisition~Construction Fund. In making such payments the 
Trustee may rely upon the information submitted in such requisition. Such payments shall be presumed to be made 
properly and the Trustee shall not be required to verify the application of any payments from the 
Acquisition/Construction Fund or to inquire into the purposes for which disbursements are being made from the 
Acquisition/Construction Fund. 

(c) The lssuer shall deliver to the Trustee, within 90 days after the completion of a Project, a 
certificate executed by an Authorized Representative of the lssuer stating: 

(i) that such Project has been fully completed in accordance with the plans and 
specifications therefor, as amended from time to time, and stating the date of completion for such Project; and 

(ii) that the Project has been fully paid for and no claim or claims exist against the lssuer or 
against such Project out of which a lien based on furnishing labor or material exists or might ripen; provided, 
however, there may be excepted from the foregoing certification any claim or claims out of which a lien exists or 
might ripen in the event the Issuer intends to contest such claim or claims, in which event such claim or claims shall 
be described to the Trustee. 

(d) In the event the certificate filed with the Trustee pursuant to paragraph (c) above shall state that 
there is a claim or claims in controversy which create or might ripen into a lien, an Authorized Representative of the 
Issuer shall file a similar certificate with the Trustee when and as such claim or claims shall have been fully paid or 
otherwise discharged. 

(e) The Trustee and the lssuer shall keep and maintain adequate records pertaining to each account 
within the AcquisitionlConstruction Fund and all disbursements therefrom. 

( f )  Unless otherwise specified in a Supplemental Indenture, upon completion of a Project and 
payment of all costs and expenses incident thereto and the filing with the Trustee of documents required by this 
section, any balance remaining in the applicable account in the Acquisition/Construction Fund relating to such 
Project shall, as directed by an Authorized Representative of the Issuer, be deposited in the Bond Fund, to be 
applied, (i) toward the redemption of the Series of Bonds issued to finance such Project or (ii) to pay principal 
and/or interest next falling due with respect to such Series of Bonds. 

(g) The Trustee shall, to the extent there are no other available funds held under the Indenture, use the 
remaining funds in the Acquisition/Construction Fund to pay principal and interest on the Bonds at any time in the 
event of a payment default under the Indenture. 

Use of Bond Fund 

The lssuer may direct the Trustee, pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture, to create an account within the 
Bond Fund for a separate Series of Bonds under the Indenture. 

(a) The Trustee shall make deposits to the Bond Fund, as and when received, as follows: 

(i) accrued interest received upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds; 

(ii) all moneys payable by the Issuer as specified in the Indenture; 

(iii) any amount in the Acquisition/Construction Fund to the extent required by or directed 
pursuant to paragraph (fj in "Use of Acquisition/Construction Fund" upon completion of a Project; 

(iv) all moneys transferred from the Debt Service Reserve Fund or from a Reserve Instrument 
or Instruments then in effect as described under the heading "Use of Debt Service Reserve Fund," and 



(v) all other moneys received by the Trustee under the lndenture when accompanied by 
directions from the person depositing such moneys that such moneys are to be paid into the Bond Fund. 

(b) Except as provided in "EVENTS OF DEFAULT-Application of Moneys" and as provided in this 
heading and except as otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture, moneys in the Bond Fund shall be expended 
solely for the following purposes and in the following order of priority: 

(i) on or before each Interest Payment Date for each Series of Bonds, the amount required to 
pay the interest due on such date; 

(ii) on or before each Principal Installment due date, the amount required to pay the Principal 
Installment due on such due date; and 

(iii) on or before each redemption date for each Series of Bonds, the amount required to pay 
the redemption price of and accrued interest on such Bonds then to be redeemed. 

Such amounts shall be applied by the Paying Agent to pay Principal Installments and redemption price of, 
and interest on the related Series of Bonds. 

The Trustee shall pay out of the Bond Fund to the Security lnstrurnent Issuer, if any, that has issued a 
Security lnstrument with respect to such Series of Bonds an amount equal to any Security Instrument Repayment 
Obligation then due and payable to such Security Instrument Issuer. Except as otherwise specified in a related 
Supplemental Indenture all such Security lnstrument Repayment Obligations shall be paid on a parity with the 
payments to be made with respect to principal and interest on the Bonds; provided that amounts paid under a 
Security lnstrument shall be applied only to pay the related Series of Bonds. If payment is so made on Pledged 
Bonds held for the benefit of the Security Instrument Issuer, a corresponding payment on the Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligation shall be deemed to have been made (without requiring an additional payment by the Issuer) 
and the Trustee shall keep its records accordingly. 

The Issuer authorizes and directs the Trustee to withdraw sufficient funds from the Bond Fund to pay 
principal of and interest on the Bonds and on Security Instrument Repayment Obligations as the same become due 
and payable and to make said funds so withdrawn available to the Trustee and any Paying Agent for the purpose of 
paying said Principal and interest. 

(c) After payment in full of the Principal of and interest on (1) all Bonds issued under the lndenture 
(or after provision has been made for the payment thereof as provided in the Indenture so that such Bonds are no 
longer Outstanding); (2) all agreements relating to all outstanding Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and 
Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations in accordance with their respective terms; and (3) the fees, charges and 
expenses of the Trustee, the Paying Agent and any other amounts required to be paid under the Indenture or under 
any Supplemental lndenture and under any Security Instrument Agreement and under any Reserve Instrument 
Agreement; all amounts remaining in the Bond Fund shall be paid to the Issuer. 

Use of Sinking Fund Account 

(a) The Trustee shall apply moneys in the Sinking Fund Account to the retirement of any Term Bonds 
required to be retired by operation of the Sinking Fund Account under the provisions of and in accordance with the 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance of such Term Bonds, either by redemption in accordance with such 
Supplemental Indenture or, at the direction of the Issuer, purchase of such Term Bonds in the open market prior to 
the date on which notice of the redemption of such Term Bonds is given pursuant to the lndenture, at a price not to 
exceed the redemption price of such Term Bonds (plus accrued interest which will be paid from moneys in the Bond 
Fund other than those in the Sinking Fund Account). 

(b) On the maturity date of any Term Bonds, the Trustee shall apply the moneys on hand in the 
Sinking Fund Account for the payment of the principal of such Term Bonds. 



Use of Debt Service Reserve Fund 

Except as otherwise provided in this section and subject to the immediately following sentence, moneys in 
each account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall at all times be maintained in an amount not less than the 
applicable Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any. In calculating the amount on deposit in each account in the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, the amount of any Reserve Instrument Coverage will be treated as an amount on deposit 
in such account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund. Each Supplemental lndenture authorizing the issuance of a 
Series of Bonds shall specify the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, if any, applicable to such Series which amount 
shall either be (i) deposited immediately upon the issuance and delivery of such Series from (a) proceeds from the 
sale thereof or from any other legally available source, or (b) by a Reserve lnstrument or Instruments, or (c) any 
combination thereof, (ii) deposited from available Net Revenues over the period of time specified, or (iii) deposited 
from any combination of (i) and (ii) above; provided however, the foregoing provisions shall be subject to the 
requirements of any Security Instrument Issuer set forth in any Supplemental Indenture. If at any time the amount 
on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the minimum amount to be maintained in 
the lndenture under this section, the Issuer is required, pursuant to the Indenture and the provisions of any 
Supplemental Indenture, to make payments totaling the amount of any such deficiency directly to the Trustee for 
deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

In the event funds on deposit in an account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund are needed to make up any 
deficiencies in the Bond Fund as aforementioned, and there is insufficient cash available in such account of the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund to make up such deficiency and Reserve Instruments applicable to such Series are in effect, 
the Trustee shall immediately make a demand for payment on such Reserve Instruments, to the maximum extent 
authorized by such Reserve Instruments, in the amount necessary to make up such deficiency, and immediately 
deposit such payment upon receipt thereof into the Bond Fund. Thereafter, the lssuer shall be obligated to reinstate 
the Reserve lnstrument as provided in the Indenture. 

No Reserve Instrument shall be allowed to expire or terminate while the related Series of Bonds are 
Outstanding unless and until cash has been deposited into the related account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, or a 
new Reserve Instrument has been issued in place of the expiring or terminating Reserve Instrument, or any 
combination thereof in an amount or to provide coverage, as the case may be, at least equal to the amount required 
to be maintained in the related account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Moneys at any time on deposit in the account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund in excess of the amount 
required to be maintained therein (taking into account the amount of related Reserve lnstrument Coverage) shall be 
transferred by the Trustee to the Bond Fund at least once each year. 

Moneys on deposit in any account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be used to make up any 
deficiencies in the Bond Fund only for the Series of Bonds secured by said account and any Reserve Instrument 
shall only be drawn upon with respect to the Series of Bonds for which such Reserve lnstrument was obtained. 

The lssuer may, upon obtaining approving opinion of bond counsel to the effect that such transaction will 
not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of any outstanding Bonds, replace any amounts required to be on deposit 
in the Debt Service Reserve Fund with a Reserve Instrument. 

Use of Reserve Instrument Fund 

There shall be paid into the Reserve lnstrument Fund the amounts required by the lndenture and by a 
Supplemental Indenture to be so paid. The amounts in the Reserve Instrument Fund shall, from time to time, be 
applied by the Trustee on behalf of the lssuer to pay the Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligations which are due 
and payable to any Reserve Instrument Provider under any applicable Reserve Instrument Agreement. The lssuer 
may, with the approving opinion of bond counsel that such transaction will not adversely affect the tax-exempt 
status of any outstanding Bonds, replace any amounts required to be on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
with a Reserve Instrument. 



Use of Repair and Replacement Fund 

All moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund may be drawn on and used by the Issuer for the purpose 
of (a) paying the cost of unusual or extraordinary maintenance or repairs of the System; (b) paying the costs of any 
renewals, renovation, improvements, expansion or replacements to the System; and (c) paying the cost of any 
replacement of buildings, lines, equipment and other related facilities, to the extent the same are not paid as part of 
the ordinary and normal expense of the operation of the System. 

Funds shall be deposited monthly from available Net Revenues in such amounts as may be required from 
time to time by each Supplemental lndenture until the Repair and Replacement Fund has an amount equivalent to 
the Repair and Replacement Requirement. Any deficiencies below the Repair and Replacement Requirement shall 
be made up from Net Revenues of the System available for such purposes. Funds at any time on deposit in the 
Repair and Replacement Fund in excess of the amount required to be maintained in the Indenture may, at any time, 
be used by the Issuer for any lawful purpose. 

Investment of Funds 

Any moneys in the Bond Fund, the Acquisition/Construction Fund, the Reserve Instrument Fund, the 
Rebate Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall, at the discretion and authorization of the Issuer, be invested by 
the Trustee in Qualified Investments; provided, however, that moneys on deposit in the Bond Fund, the Reserve 
Instrument Fund, and Debt Service Reserve Fund may only be invested in Qualified Investments described in (a), 
(b), or (c) of the definition thereof having a maturity date of one year or less. If no written authorization is given to 
the Trustee, moneys shall be held uninvested. Such investments shall be held by the Trustee, and when the Trustee 
determines it necessary to use the moneys in the Funds for the purposes for which the Funds were created, it shall 
liquidate at prevailing market prices as much of the investments as may be necessary and apply the proceeds to such 
purposes. All income derived from the investment of the Acquisition/Construction Fund, the Bond Fund, the 
Reserve Instrument Fund and the Rebate Fund shall be maintained in said respective Funds and disbursed along with 
the other moneys on deposit therein as provided in the Indenture. All income derived from the investment of the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be disbursed in accordance with "Use of Debt Service Reserve Fund." All moneys 
in the Revenue Fund may, at the discretion of the Issuer, be invested by the lssuer in Qualified Investments. 

The Trustee shall have no liability or responsibility for any loss resulting from any investment made in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section. The Trustee shall be entitled to assume that any investment, which at 
the time of purchase is a Qualified Investment, remains a Qualified Investment thereafter, absent receipt of written 
notice or information to the contrary. 

The Trustee may, to the extent permitted by the State Money Management Act of 1974, Title 5 1, Chapter 7, 
Utah Code, make any and all investments permitted by the provisions of the lndenture through its own or any of its 
affiliate's investment departments. 

The Issuer acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the comptroller of the currency or any other 
regulatory entity grant the lssuer the right to receive brokerage confirmations of the security transactions as they 
occur, the Issuer specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to the extent permitted by law. The Trustee will 
furnish the lssuer periodic cash transaction statements which include the detail for all investment transactions made 
by the Trustee under the Indenture. 

The lssuer may invest the amounts on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund as permitted by 
applicable law. 

In the event the lssuer shall be advised by nationally recognized municipal bond counsel that it is necessary 
to restrict or limit the yield on the investment of any moneys paid to or held by the Trustee in order to avoid the 
Bonds, or any Series thereof, being considered "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of the Code or the Treasury 
Regulations proposed or promulgated thereunder, or to otherwise preserve the exclusion of interest payable or paid 
on any Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the Issuer may require in writing the Trustee to 
take such steps as it may be advised by such counsel are necessary so to restrict or limit the yield on such 



investment, irrespective of whether the Trustee shares such opinion, and the Trustee agrees that it will take all such 
steps as the Issuer may require. 

Trust Funds 

All moneys and securities received by the Trustee under the provisions of the Indenture shall be trust funds 
under the terms hereof and shall not be subject to lien or attachment of any creditor of the State or any political 
subdivision, body, agency, or instrumentality thereof or of the lssuer and shall not be subject to appropriation by any 
legislative body or otherwise. Such moneys and securities shall be held in trust and applied in accordance with the 
provisions of the Indenture. Except as provided otherwise in the Indenture, unless and until disbursed pursuant to 
the terms of the Indenture, all such moneys and securities (and the income therefrom) shall be held by the Trustee as 
security for payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of the 
Trustee payable under the Indenture. 

Method of Valuation and Freauency of Valuation 

In computing the amount in any fund or account, Qualified Investments shall be valued at market, 
exclusive of accrued interest. With respect to all funds and accounts, valuation shall occur quarterly, except in the 
event of a withdrawal from the Debt Service Reserve Fund, whereupon securities shall be valued immediately after 
such withdrawal. 

General Covenants 

General Covenants 

The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees with each and every Registered Owner of the Bonds issued under 
the Indenture, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider as follows: 

(a) While any of the principal of and interest on the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, or any 
Repayment Obligations are outstanding, any resolution or other enactment of the Governing Body of the Issuer, 
applying the Net Revenues for the payment of the Bonds and the Repayment Obligations shall be irrevocable until 
the Bonds and/or any Repayment Obligations have been paid in full as to both principal and interest, and is not 
subject to amendment in any manner which would impair the rights of the holders of those Bonds or the Repayment 
Obligations which would in any way jeopardize the timely payment of principal or interest when due. Furthermore, 
the rates including connection fees, for all services supplied by the System to the Issuer and to its inhabitants and to 
all customers within or without the boundaries of the Issuer, shall be sufficient to pay the Operation and 
Maintenance Expenses for the System, and to provide Net Revenues for each Bond Fund Year of not less than 125% 
of the Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement for such Year, plus an amount sufficient to fund the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund in the time, rate and manner specified in the Indenture, provided, however, that such rates 
must be reasonable rates for the type, kind and character of the service rendered. There shall be no free gas or 
electric service, and such rates shall be charged against all users of the System, including the Issuer. The Issuer 
agrees that should its annual financial statement made in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (d) below 
disclose that during the period covered by such financial statement the Net Revenues and Other Available Funds 
were not at least equal to the above requirement, the Issuer shall request that a Qualified Engineer make 
recommendations as to the revision of the rates, charges and fees and that the Issuer on the basis of such 
recommendations will revise the schedule of rates, charges and fees insofar as is practicable and further revise 
Operation and Maintenance Costs so as to produce the necessary Net Revenues as required in the Indenture. 

(b) The Issuer will maintain the System in good condition and operate the same in an efficient 
manner. 

(c) Each Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider shall have a 
right, in addition to all other rights afforded it by the laws of the State, to apply to and obtain from any court of 
competent jurisdiction such decree or order as may be necessary to require the Issuer to charge or collect reasonable 



rates for services supplied by the System sufficient to meet all requirements of the Indenture and of any applicable 
Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

(d) So long as any principal and interest payments of the Bonds are Outstanding, or any Repayment 
Obligations are outstanding, proper books of record and account will be kept by the Issuer separate and apart from 
all other records and accounts, showing complete and correct entries of all transactions relating to the System. Each 
Registered Owner, Security Instrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider, or any duly authorized agent or 
agents thereof shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all records, accounts and data relating thereto 
and to inspect the System. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, the Issuer further agrees that it will within 
one hundred eighty (180) days following the close of each Bond Fund Year cause an audit of such books and 
accounts to be made by an independent firm of certified public accountants, showing the receipts and disbursements 
for account of the Net Revenues and the System, and that such audit will be available for inspection by each 
Registered Owner, Security lnstrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider. 

All expenses incurred in compiling the information required by this Section shall be regarded and paid as 
an Operation and Maintenance Expense. 

First Lien Bonds; Eaualitv of Liens 

The Bonds and any Security lnstrument Repayment Obligations constitute an irrevocable first lien upon the 
Net Revenues. The lssuer covenants that the Bonds and Security Instrument Repayment Obligations hereaRer 
authorized to be issued and from time to time outstanding are equitably and ratably secured by a first lien on the Net 
Revenues and shall not be entitled to any priority one over the other in the application of the Net Revenues 
regardless of the time or times of the issuance of the Bonds or delivery of Security Instruments, it being the intention 
of the Issuer that there shall be no priority among the Bonds or the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations 
regardless of the fact that they may be actually issued and/or delivered at different times. 

Any assignment or pledge from the Issuer to a Reserve Instrument Provider of (i) proceeds of the issuance 
and sale of Bonds, (ii) Net Revenues, or (iii) Funds established by the Indenture, including investments, if any, 
thereof, is and shall be subordinate to the assignment and pledge effected hereby to the Registered Owners of the 
Bonds and to the Security lnstrument Issuers. 

Pavment of Principal and Interest 

The Issuer covenants that it will punctually pay or cause to be paid the Principal of and interest on every 
Bond issued under the Indenture, any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and any Reserve Instrument 
Repayment Obligations, in strict conformity with the terms of the Bonds, the Indenture, any Security Instrument 
Agreement and any Reserve Instrument Agreement, according to the true intent and meaning of the Indenture. The 
Principal of and interest on the Bonds, any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations and any Reserve Instrument 
Repayment Obligations are payable solely from the Net Revenues (except to the extent paid out of moneys 
attributable to Bond proceeds or other funds created under the Indenture or the income from the temporary 
investment thereof), which Net Revenues are specifically pledged and assigned to the payment thereof in the manner 
and to the extent specified in the Indenture, and nothing in the Bonds, the Indenture, any Security Instrument 
Agreement or any Reserve Instrument Agreement should be considered as pledging any other funds or assets of the 
Issuer for the payment thereof. 

Expeditious Construction 

The Issuer shall complete the acquisition and construction of each Project with all practical dispatch and 
will cause all construction to be effected in a sound and economical manner. 

Management of Svstem 

The Issuer, in order to assure the efficient management and operation of the System and to assure each 
Registered Owner, Security lnstrument Issuer and Reserve Instrument Provider from time to time that the System 



will be operated on sound business principles, will employ competent and experienced management for the System, 
will use its best efforts to see that the System is at all times operated and maintained in first-class repair and 
condition and in such manner that the operating efficiency thereof shall be of the highest character. 

Use of Leaallv Available Monevs 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Indenture, nothing in the Indenture shall be construed to 
prevent the Issuer from (i) paying all or any part of the Operation and Maintenance Expenses from any funds 
available to the lssuer for such purpose, (ii) depositing any funds available to the Issuer for such purpose in any 
account in the Bond Fund for the payment of the interest on, premium, if any, or the principal of any Bonds issued 
under provisions of the Indenture or for the redemption of any such Bonds, or (iii) depositing any funds available to 
the lssuer for such purpose in the Reserve Instrument Fund for the payment of any amounts payable under any 
applicable Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

Pavment of Taxes and Other Charges 

The lssuer covenants that all taxes and assessments or other municipal or governmental charges lawfully 
levied or assessed upon the System or upon any part thereof or upon any income therefrom will be paid when the 
same shall become due, that no lien or charge upon the System or any part thereof or upon any Revenues thereof, 
except for the lien and charge thereon created under the Indenture and securing the Bonds, will be created or 
permitted to be created ranking equally with or prior to the Bonds (except for the parity lien thereon of Additional 
Bonds issued from time to time under the Indenture and under Supplemental Indentures to the Indenture), and that 
all lawful claims and demands for labor, materials, supplies or other objects which, if unpaid, might by law become 
a lien upon the System or any part thereof or upon the Revenues thereof will be paid or discharged, or adequate 
provision will be made for the payment or discharge of such claims and demands within 60 days after the same shall 
accrue; provided, however, that nothing in this Section shall require any such lien or charge to be paid or discharged 
or provision made therefor so long as the validity of such lien or charge shall be contested in good faith and by 
appropriate legal proceedings. 

Insurance 

The Issuer, in its operation of the System, will self-insure or carry insurance, including, but not limited to, 
workmen's compensation insurance and public liability insurance, in such amounts and to such extent as is normally 
carried by others operating public utilities of the same type. The cost of such insurance shall be considered an 
Operation and Maintenance Expense of the System. In the event of loss or damage, insurance proceeds shall be 
used first for the purpose of restoring or replacing the property lost or damaged. Any remainder shall be paid into 
the Bond Fund. The lssuer shall obtain the consent of the Security Instrument Issuer insuring a particular Series of 
Bonds prior to obtaining self-insurance under this Section. 

Covenant Not to Sell 

The lssuer will not sell, lease, mortgage, encumber, or in any manner dispose of the System or any 
substantial part thereof, including any and all extensions and additions that may be made thereto, until all principal 
of and interest on the Bonds, and all Repayment Obligations, have been paid in full, and, if required, until the 
Security instrument Issuer's prior consent has been obtained, except as follows: 

(a) The Issuer may sell any portion of said property (i) which shall have been replaced by other 
property of at least equal value, (ii) which shall cease to be necessary for the efficient operation of the System and 
the disposition of which will not, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, result in a material reduction in 
Net Revenues in any year; or (iii) the value, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, of the property to be 
sold, leased, abandoned, mortgaged, or otherwise disposed of (together with any other property similarly disposed of 
within the 12 calendar months preceding the proposed disposition) does not exceed 5% of the value of the System 
assets, as determined by the governing body of the Issuer, provided, however, that in the event of any sale as 
aforesaid, the proceeds of such sale not needed to acquire other System property shall be paid into the Bond Fund. 



(b) The Issuer may lease or make contracts or grant licenses for the operation of, or make 
arrangements for the use of, or grant easements or other rights with respect to, any part of the System, provided that 
any such lease, contract, license, arrangement, easement or right does not impede the operation of the System; and 
any payment received by the Issuer under or in connection with any such lease, contract, license, arrangement, 
easement or right in respect of the System or any part thereof shall constitute Revenues. 

Billing Procedure 

The Issuer shall submit a monthly billing for services rendered to persons who are liable for the payment of 
charges for such services, and shall require that each such bill be paid in full as a unit, and refuse to permit payment 
of a portion without payment of the remainder. Any bill not paid within thirty (30) days from the date it is mailed to 
the customer shall be deemed delinquent. The lssuer agrees that if any bill remains delinquent for more than sixty 
(60) days, it will initiate proceedings to cause all electric services to the user concerned to be cut off immediately. 

Events Of Default; Remedies 

Events of Default 

Each of the following events is an "Event of Default" under the Indenture: 

(a) if payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made by or on behalf of 
the lssuer when the same shall become due and payable, or 

(b) if payment of the principal of or the redemption premium, if any, on any of the Bonds shall not be 
made by or on behalf of the Issuer when the same shall become due and payable, either at maturity or by 
proceedings for redemption in advance of maturity or through failure to fulfill any payment to any fund under the 
Indenture or otherwise; or 

(c) if the lssuer shall for any reason be rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations under the 
Indenture; or 

(d) if an order or decree shall be entered, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, appointing a 
receiver or custodian for any of the Revenues of the Issuer, or approving a petition filed against the lssuer seeking 
reorganization of the Issuer under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other similar law or statute of the United States 
of America or any state thereof, or if any such order or decree, having been entered without the consent or 
acquiescence of the Issuer shall not be vacated or discharged or stayed on appeal within 30 days after the entry 
thereof; or 

(e) if any proceeding shall be instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the Issuer, for the 
purpose of effecting a composition between the lssuer and its creditors or for the purpose of adjusting the claims of 
such creditors pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter enacted, if the claims of such creditors are or 
may be under any circumstances payable from Revenues; or 

(f) if (i) the Issuer is adjudged insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) an order, 
judgment or decree be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction appointing, without the consent of the Issuer, a 
receiver, trustee or custodian of the lssuer or of the whole or any part of the Issuer's property and any of the 
aforesaid adjudications, orders, judgments or decrees shall not be vacated or set aside or stayed within 60 days from 
the date of entry thereof; or 

(g) if the lssuer shall file a petition or answer seeking reorganization, relief or any arrangement under 
the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law or statute of the United States of America or any state 
thereof; or 

(h) if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of competent 
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Issuer or of the whole or any substantial part of the property of the 



Issuer, and such custody or control shall not be terminated within 30 days from the date of assumption of such 
custody or control; or 

(i) if the Issuer shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, 
conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds, or in the Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture of 
the lndenture on the part of the Issuer to be performed, other than as set forth above in this Section, and such Default 
shall continue for 30 days after written notice specifying such Event of Default and requiring the same to be 
remedied shall have been given to the Issuer by the Trustee, which may give such notice in its discretion and shall 
give such notice at the written request of the Registered Owners of not less than 25% in aggregate Principal amount 
of the Bonds then Outstanding under the Indenture; or 

6) any event specified in a Supplemental Indenture as constituting an Event of Default. 

Remedies: R i h t s  of Registered Owners 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee, upon being indemnified pursuant to the Indenture, 
may pursue any available remedy by suit at law or in equity to enforce the payment of the principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Bonds then Outstanding or to enforce any obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture. 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred, and if requested so to do by (i) Registered Owners of not less 
than 25% in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, (ii) Security Instrument Issuers at that time 
providing Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and not in default on any payment obligation and 
which secure not less than 25% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, or (iii) any 
combination of Registered Owners and Security Instrument Issuers described in (i) and (ii) above representing not 
less than 25% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, and indemnified as provided in the 
Indenture, the Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more of the rights and powers conferred by this 
Section as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most expedient in the interest of the Registered Owners 
and the Security Instrument Issuers. 

No remedy by the terms of the Indenture conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee (or to the Registered 
Owners or to the Security Instrument Issuers) is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every 
such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given to the Trustee, the Registered 
Owners or the Security Instrument Issuers or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any 
such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any Event of Default or acquiescence therein; and every 
such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

No waiver of any Event of Default under the Indenture, whether by the Trustee or by the Registered 
Owners or the Security Instrument Issuers, shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or shall 
impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon. 

Right of Registered Owners to Direct Proceedings 

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, unless a Supplemental Indenture provides 
otherwise, either (i) the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then 
Outstanding, (ii) the Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full force 
and effect and not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 50% in aggregate Principal 
amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding, or (iii) any combination of Registered Owners and Security lnstrument 
Issuers described in (i) and (ii) above representing not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the 
time Outstanding, shall have the right, at any time, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed and 
delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in connection 
with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of the Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or any other 
proceedings under the Indenture; provided, that such direction shall not be otherwise than in accordance with the 
provisions of law and of the Indenture. 



Application of Moneys 

All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken under the provisions of this 
Section shall, after payment of Trustee's fees and expenses including the fees and expenses of its counsel for the 
proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the expenses and liabilities and advances incurred or 
made by the Trustee, be deposited in the Bond Fund and all moneys so deposited in the Bond Fund shall be applied 
in the following order: 

(a) To the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest then due and payable on the 
Bonds and the Security Instrument Repayment Obligations as follows: 

(i) Unless the Principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such moneys 
shall be applied: 

FIRST-To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then 
due on the Bonds and the interest component of any Security lnstrument Repayment Obligations then due, in the 
order of the maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in 
full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts due on such installment, to the 
persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or privilege; and 

SECOND-To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid Principal of and 
premium, if any, on the Bonds which shall have become due (other than Bonds called for redemption for the 
payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture), in the order of their due dates, and 
the Principal component of any Security Instrument Repayment Obligations then due, and, if the amount available 
shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds and the Principal component of any Security lnstrument 
Repayment Obligations due on any particular date, then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of Principal 
due on such date, to the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

(ii) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such moneys 
shall be applied to the payment of the Principal and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds and Security 
lnstrument Repayment Obligations, without preference or priority of Principal over interest or of interest over 
Principal, or of any installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond or Security 
Instrument Repayment Obligation over any other Bond or Security Instrument Repayment Obligation, ratably, 
according to the amounts due respectively for Principal and interest, to the persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or privilege. 

(iii) To the payment of all obligations owed to all Reserve lnstrument Providers, ratably, 
according to the amounts due without any discrimination or preference under any applicable agreement related to 
any Reserve Instrument Agreement. 

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of this Section, such moneys shall be 
applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine, having due regard to the amounts of 
such moneys available for such application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such 
application in the future. Whenever the Trustee shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date (which shall be an 
Interest Payment Date unless it shall deem another date more suitable) upon which such application is to be made 
and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal paid on such dates shall cease to accrue. 

Remedies Vested in Trustee 

All rights of action (including the right to file proof of claims) under the Indenture or under any of the 
Bonds may be enforced by the Trustee without the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any 
trial or other proceedings related thereto and any such suit or proceedings instituted by the Trustee shall be brought 
in its name as Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any Registered Owners of the 
Bonds, and any recovery of judgment shall be for the equal benefit of the Registered Owners of the Outstanding 
Bonds. 



Rights and Remedies of Registered Owners 

Except as provided in the last sentence of this Section, no Registered Owner of any Bond or Security 
Instrument Issuer shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the 
enforcement of the Indenture or for the execution of any trust thereof or for the appointment of a receiver or any 
other remedy under the Indenture, unless an Event of Default has occurred of which the Trustee has been notified or 
it is deemed to have notice, nor unless also Registered Owners of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full force 
and effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 25% in aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have made written request to the Trustee and shall have 
offered reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise the powers granted in the Indenture or to institute such 
action, suit or proceeding in its own name, nor unless also they have offered to the Trustee indemnity as provided in 
the Indenture nor unless the Trustee shall thereafier fail or refuse to exercise the powers granted in the Indenture, or 
to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name or names. Such notification, request and offer of 
indemnity are declared by the Indenture in every case at the option of the Trustee to be conditions precedent to the 
execution of the powers and trust of the Indenture, and to any action or cause of action for the enforcement of the 
Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy under the Indenture; it being understood and 
intended that no one or more Registered Owner of the Bonds or Security Instrument Issuer shall have any right in 
any manner whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of the lndenture by its action or to enforce any right 
under the lndenture except in the manner provided in the Indenture, and that all proceedings at law or in equity shall 
be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal benefit of the Registered 
Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding and all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security 
Instruments. Nothing contained in the Indenture shall, however, affect or impair the right of any Registered Owner 
or Security Instrument Issuer to enforce the covenants of the Issuer to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on each of the Bonds issued under the Indenture held by such Registered Owner and Security Instrument 
Repayment Obligations at the time, place, from the source and in the manner in said Bonds or Security lnstrument 
Repayment Obligations expressed. 

Termination of Proceedings 

In case the Trustee, any Registered Owner or any Security Instrument Issuer shall have proceeded to 
enforce any right under the lndenture by the appointment of a receiver, or otherwise, and such proceedings shall 
have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, the 
Registered Owner, or Security Instrument Issuer, then and in every such case the Issuer and the Trustee shall be 
restored to their former positions and rights under the Indenture, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee 
shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken. 

Waivers of Events of Default 

Subject to "THE TRUSTEE-Notice," the Trustee may in its discretion, and with the prior written consent 
of all Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments, waive any Event of Default under the 
Indenture and its consequences and shall do so upon the written request of the Registered Owners of (a) a majority 
in aggregate Principal amount of all the Bonds then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing 
Security Instruments which are in full force and effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which 
secure not less than 50% in aggregate Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding in respect of which an 
Event of Default in the payment of principal and interest exist, or (b) a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds then Outstanding or Security Instrument Issuers at the time providing Security Instruments which are in full 
force and effect and are not in default on any payment obligation and which secure not less than 50% in aggregate 
Principal amount of Bonds at the time Outstanding in the case of any other Event of Default; provided, however, 
that there shall not be waived (i) any default in the payment of the principal of any Bonds at the date that a Principal 
Installment is due, or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the interest on any such Bonds, unless prior to 
such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, with interest (to the extent permitted by law) at the rate borne by the 
Bonds in respect of which such Event of Default shall have occurred on overdue installments of interest and all 
arrears of payments of principal and premium, if any, when due and all expenses of the Trustee, in connection with 
such Event of Default shall have been paid or provided for, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case 
any proceeding taken by the Trustee on account of any such Event of Default shall have been discontinued or 



abandoned or determined adversely, then and in every such case the Issuer, the Trustee, the Registered Owners and 
the Security Instrument Issuers shall be restored to their former positions and rights under the Indenture, 
respectively, but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default, or impair 
any right consequent thereon. 

The Trustee 

Notice 

The Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have notice of any Event of Default under 
the Indenture, except an Event of Default described in paragraphs (a) and (b) under the heading "EVENTS OF 
DEFAULT; REMEDlES-Events of Default," unless the Trustee shall be specifically notified in writing of such 
Default by the Issuer, a Security Instrument Issuer or by the Registered Owners of at least 25% in the aggregate 
principal amount of any Series of the Bonds then Outstanding and all notices or other instruments required to be 
delivered to the Trustee must, in order to be effective, be delivered at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the 
Trustee, and in the absence of such notice so delivered, the Trustee may conclusively assume there is no Event of 
Default except as aforesaid. 

Tndemnitv 

The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it by the 
Indenture at the request, order or direction of any of the Registered Owners, Security Instrument Issuers or Reserve 
Instrument Providers, pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture, unless such Registered Owners, Security 
Instrument Issuers or Reserve Instrument Providen shall have offered to the Trustee reasonable security or 
indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities which may be incurred therein or thereby. 

Fees. Charges and Ex~enses of Trustee 

The Trustee shall be entitled to payment andlor reimbursement for reasonable fees for its services rendered 
as Trustee under the Indenture and all advances, counsel fees, and other expenses reasonably and necessarily made 
or incurred by the Trustee in connection with such services. The Trustee shall be entitled to payment and 
reimbursement for the reasonable fees and charges of the Trustee as Paying Agent and Registrar for the Bonds as 
provided in the Indenture. Upon an Event of Default, but only upon an Event of Default, the Trustee shall have a 
right of payment prior to payment on account of interest or principal of, or premium, if any, on any Bond for the 
foregoing advances, fees, costs and expenses incurred. The Trustee's rights under this Section will not terminate 
upon its resignation or removal or upon payment of the Bonds and discharge of the Indenture. 

Notice to Registered Owners if Event of Default Occurs 

If an Event of Default occurs of which the Trustee is required to take notice or if notice of an Event of 
Default be given to the Trustee as provided in the Indenture, then the Trustee shall give written notice thereof by 
registered or certified mail to all Security Instrument Issuers or to Registered Owners of all Bonds then Outstanding 
shown on the registration books of the Bonds kept by the Trustee as Registrar for the Bonds. 

Removal of the Trustee 

The Trustee may be removed at any time, by an instrument or concurrent instruments (i) in writing 
delivered to the Trustee, and signed by the Issuer, unless there exists any Event of Default, or (ii) in writing 
delivered to the Trustee and the Issuer, and signed by the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate Principal 
amount of Bonds then Outstanding if an Event of Default exists; provided that such instrument or instruments 
concurrently appoint a successor Trustee meeting the qualifications set forth in the Indenture. 



Appointment of Successor Trustee; Temporary Trustee 

In case the Trustee under the Indenture shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in course of 
dissolution or liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting under the Indenture, or in case it shall be taken 
under the control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor may be 
appointed by the Issuer (or, if an Event of Default exists, by the Registered Owners of a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed by such 
Owners, or by their attorneys in fact, duly authorized; provided, nevertheless, that in case of such vacancy the Issuer 
by an instrument executed by an Authorized Representative under its seal, may appoint a temporary Trustee to fill 
such vacancy until a successor Trustee shall be appointed by the Registered Owners in the manner above provided; 
and any such temporary Trustee so appointed by the Issuer shall immediately and without further act be superseded 
by the Trustee so appointed by such Registered Owners). Every successor Trustee appointed pursuant to the 
provisions of this Section or otherwise shall be a trust company or bank in good standing having a reported capital 
and surplus of not less than $50,000,000. 

Annual Accounting 

The Trustee shall prepare an annual accounting for each Bond Fund Year by the end of the month 
following each such Bond Fund Year showing in reasonable detail all financial transactions relating to the funds and 
accounts held by the Trustee under the Indenture during the accounting period and the balance in any funds or 
accounts created by the Indenture as of the beginning and close of such accounting period, and shall mail the same 
to the Issuer, and to each Reserve lnstrument Provider requesting the same. The Trustee shall also make available 
for inspection by any Registered Owner a copy of said annual accounting (with the names and addresses of 
Registered Owners receiving payment of debt service on the Bonds deleted therefrom) and shall mail the same if 
requested in writing to do so by Registered Owners of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of Bonds then 
Outstanding to the designee of said Owners specified in said written request at the address designated in the 
Indenture. On or before the end of the month following each Bond Fund Year, the Trustee shall, upon written 
request, provide to the lssuer and the Issuer's independent auditor representations as to the accuracy of the facts 
contained in the financial reports concerning the transactions described in the Indenture that were delivered by the 
Trustee during the Bond Fund Year just ended. 

Trustee's Right to Own and Deal in Bonds 

The bank or trust company acting as Trustee under the Indenture, and its directors, officers, employees or 
agents, may in good faith buy, sell, own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds issued under and secured by the 
Indenture, and may join in any action which any Bondholder may be entitled to take with like effect as if such bank 
or trust company were not the Trustee under the Indenture. 

Supplemental Indentures 

Supplemental Indentures Not Requirin~ Consent of Registered Owners. Securitv Instrument Issuers and Reserve 
Instrument Providers 

The Issuer and the Trustee may, without the consent of, or notice to, any of the Registered Owners, Reserve 
Instrument Providers or Security Instrument Issuers, enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the 
Indenture, as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of the Indenture, for any one or more of the 
following purposes: 

(a) To provide for the issuance of Additional Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the 
Indenture; 

(b) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Indenture; 

(c) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Registered Owners, any Security 
Instrument Issuers and any Reserve Instrument Providers any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that 



may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Registered Owners or any of them which shall not adversely affect 
the interests of any Reserve Instrument Providers or Security Instrument Issuers without its consent; 

(d) To subject to the Indenture additional Revenues or other revenues, properties, collateral or 
security; 

(e) To provide for the issuance of the Bonds pursuant to a book-entry system or as uncertificated 
registered public obligations pursuant to the provisions of the Registered Public Obligations Act, Title 15, Chapter 7 
of the Utah Code, or any successor provisions of law; 

( 0  To make any change which shall not materially adversely affect the rights or interests of the 
Owners of any Outstanding Bonds, any Security Instrument Issuers or any Reserve Instrument Provider, requested 
or approved by a Rating Agency in order to obtain or maintain any rating on the Bonds or requested or approved by 
a Security Instrument Issuer or Reserve Instrument Provider in order to insure or provide other security for any 
Bonds; 

(g) To make any change necessary (A) to establish or maintain the exclusion from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes of interest on any Series of Bonds as a result of any modifications or amendments to 
Section 148 of the Code or interpretations by the Internal Revenue Service of Section 148 of the Code or of 
regulations proposed or promulgated thereunder, or (B) to comply with the provisions of Section 148(f) of the Code, 
including provisions for the payment of all or a portion of the investment earnings of any of the Funds established 
under the lndenture to the United States of America; 

(h) If the Bonds affected by any change are rated by a Rating Agency, to make any change which 
does not result in a reduction of the rating applicable to any of the Bonds so affected, provided that if any of the 
Bonds so affected are secured by a Security Instrument, such change must be approved in writing by the related 
Security Instrument Issuer; 

(i) If the Bonds affected by any change are secured by a Security Instrument, to make any additional 
change approved in writing by the related Security Instrument Issuer, provided that if any of the Bonds so affected 
are rated by a Rating Agency, such change shall not result in a reduction of the rating applicable to any of the Bonds 
so affected; 

Cj) Unless otherwise provided by a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a Series of Bonds, the 
designation of the facilities to constitute a Project by such Supplemental Indenture may be modified or amended if 
the Issuer delivers to the Trustee (i) a Supplemental lndenture designating the facilities to comprise the Project, (ii) 
an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such amendment will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status (if 
applicable) or validity of the Bonds and (iii) a certificate of the Issuer to the effect that such amendment will not 
adversely affect the Issuer's ability to comply with the provisions of the Indenture; and 

(k) To correct any references contained in the lndenture to provisions of the Act, the Code or other 
applicable provisions of law that have been amended so that the references in the lndenture are correct. 

Suvvlemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Registered Owners and Reserve Instrument Providers: Waivers and 
Consents by Registered Owners 

Exclusive of Supplemental Indentures covered above and subject to the terms and provisions contained in 
this Section, and not otherwise, the Registered Owners of 66 213% in aggregate Principal amount of the Bonds then 
Outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, anything contained in the lndenture to the contrary 
notwithstanding, to (i) consent to and approve the execution by the Issuer and the Trustee of such other indenture or 
indentures supplemental to the Indenture as shall be deemed necessary and desirable by the Issuer for the purpose of 
modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in 
the Indenture or in any Supplemental Indenture, or (ii) waive or consent to the taking by the Issuer of any action 
prohibited, or the omission by the Issuer of the taking of any action required, by any of the provisions of the 
lndenture or of any indenture supplemental to the lndenture; provided, however, that nothing in this section 



contained shall permit or be construed as permitting (a) an extension of the date that a Principal Installment is due at 
maturity or mandatory redemption or reduction in the principal amount of, or reduction in the rate of or extension of 
the time of paying of interest on, or reduction of any premium payable on the redemption of, any Bond, without the 
consent of the Registered Owner of such Bond, or (b) a reduction in the amount or extension of the time of any 
payment required by any Fund established under the Indenture applicable to any Bonds without the consent of the 
Registered Owners of all the Bonds which would be affected by the action to be taken, or (c) a reduction in the 
aforesaid aggregate principal amount of Bonds, the Registered Owners of which are required to consent to any such 
waiver or Supplemental Indenture, or (d) affect the rights of the Registered Owners of less than all Bonds then 
outstanding, without the consent of the Registered Owners of all the Bonds at the time Outstanding which would be 
affected by the action to be taken. In addition, no supplement to the lndenture shall modify the rights, duties, or 
immunities of the Trustee, without the written consent of the Trustee. If a Security Instrument or a Reserve 
Instrument is in effect with respect to any Series of Bonds Outstanding and if a proposed modification or 
amendment would affect such Series of Bonds, then, except as provided in the immediately preceding paragraph, 
neither the Indenture nor any Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Series of Bonds shall be modified or 
amended at any time without the prior written consent of the related Security Instrument Issuer or Reserve 
Instrument Provider, as applicable. 

Discharge Of Indenture 

If the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall be otherwise paid or provision for payment made, 
to or for the Registered Owners of the Bonds, the principal of and interest due or to become due thereon at the times 
and in the manner stipulated in the Indenture, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee all sums of moneys 
due or to become due according to the provisions of the Indenture, and to all Security lnstrument Issuers and all 
Reserve lnstrument Providers all sums of money due or to become due according to the provisions of any Security 
Instrument Agreements, Reserve Instrument Agreements, as applicable, then these presents and the estate and rights 
hereby granted shall cease, terminate and be void, whereupon the Trustee shall cancel and discharge the lien of the 
Indenture, and release, assign and deliver unto the Issuer any and all the estate, right, title and interest in and to any 
and all rights assigned or pledged to the Trustee, held by the Trustee, or otherwise subject to the lien of the 
Indenture, except moneys or securities held by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, the payment of amounts pursuant to any Security Instrument Agreements or the payment of amounts 
pursuant to any Reserve lnstrument Agreements. 

Any Bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of the Indenture when payment of the principal of 
such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity or upon 
redemption as provided in the Indenture, or otherwise), either (a) shall have been made or caused to have been made 
in accordance with the terms thereof, or (b) shall have been provided by irrevocably depositing with or for the 
benefit of the Trustee, in trust and irrevocably setting aside exclusively for such payment, (i) moneys suficient to 
make such payment, or (ii) Direct Obligations, maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and at such 
times as will insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment, and all necessary and proper fees, 
compensation and expenses of the Trustee and any paying agent pertaining to the Bond with respect to which such 
deposit is made shall have been paid or the payment thereof provided for to the satisfaction of the Trustee. At such 
times as a Bond shall be deemed to be paid under the Indenture, as aforesaid, it shall no longer be secured by or 
entitled to the benefits of the Indenture, except for the purposes of any such payment from such moneys or Direct 
Obligations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of Bonds, which by their terms may be redeemed prior to their 
stated maturity, no deposit under the immediately preceding paragraph shall be deemed a payment of such Bonds as 
aforesaid until the Issuer shall have given the Trustee, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable instructions: 

(a) stating the date when the principal of each such Bond is to be paid, whether at maturity or on a 
redemption date (which shall be any redemption date permitted by the Indenture); 

(b) directing the Trustee to call for redemption pursuant to the lndenture any Bonds to be redeemed 
prior to maturity pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture; and 



(c) if the Bonds to be redeemed will not be redeemed within 90 days of such deposit, directing the 
Trustee to mail, as soon as practicable, in the manner prescribed by the Indenture, a notice to the Registered Owners 
of such Bonds and to each related Security Instrument Issuer that the deposit required by the lndenture has been 
made with the Trustee and that such Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with the lndenture and 
stating the maturity or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal or 
redemption price, if applicable, on said Bonds as specified in subparagraph (a) above. 

Any moneys so deposited with the Trustee as provided in the Indenture may at the direction of the Issuer 
also be invested and reinvested in Direct Obligations, maturing in the amounts and times as set forth above, and all 
income from all Direct Obligations in the hands of the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture which is not required for 
the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon with respect to which such moneys shall have been so deposited, shall 
be deposited in the Bond Fund as and when realized and collected for use and application as are other moneys 
deposited in that fund; provided, however, that before any excess moneys shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, the 
Trustee shall first obtain a written verification from a certified public accountant that the moneys remaining on 
deposit with the Trustee and invested in Direct Obligations after such transfer to the Bond Fund shall be sufficient in 
amount to pay principal and interest on the Bonds when due and payable. 

No such deposit under the lndenture shall be made or accepted under the Indenture and no use made of any 
such deposit unless the Trustee shall have received an opinion of nationally recognized municipal bond counsel to 
the effect that such deposit and use would not cause any tax-exempt Bonds to be treated as arbitrage bonds within 
the meaning of Sections 148 of the Code. 

Notwithstanding any provision of the Indenture which may be contrary to the provisions relating to 
discharge of the Indenture, all moneys or Direct Obligations set aside and held in trust pursuant to the provisions of 
the lndenture for the payment of Bonds (including interest thereon) shall be applied to and used solely for the 
payment of the particular Bonds (including interest thereon) with respect to which such moneys or Direct 
Obligations have been so set aside in trust. 

Anything in the Indenture relating to events of default and remedies to the contrary notwithstanding, if 
moneys or Direct Obligations have been deposited or set aside with the Trustee pursuant to the lndenture for the 
payment of Bonds and such Bonds shall not have in fact been actually paid in full, no amendment to the provisions 
of the lndenture shall be made without the consent of the Registered Owner of each Bond affected thereby. 



APPENDIX C 

GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY AND UTAH COUNTY 

THE CITY 

Population 

Year - 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 
2000 

% Increase 
4.74% 
3.06 

1 1.78 
14.37 
40.66 
41.14 
12.15 
20.69 
26.60 
71.77 

n/a 

(Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Population Division (estimates as of July 1 of the years indicated), except for 2010 
figure which is a City estimate.) 

Construction Activity 

Calendar Year 
New Dwelling Units 

New Residential Value ($000) 24,868.9 24,217.6 15,218.1 109,875.0 146,760.3 
New Nonresidential Value ($000) 342.5 3,419.7 7,042.7 4,595.1 1,523.8 
Additions/Alterations/Repairs, Residential ($000) 376.4 272.2 321.7 86.7 0.0 
Additions/Alterations/Repairs, Nonresidential ($000) - 0.0 - 25.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 68.7 
Total Construction ($000) 25,587.8 27,934.5 22,582.5 114,556.8 148,352.8 

(Source: University of Utah Bureau of Economic and Business Research; Utah Construction Information Database.) 

Principal Employers in the City (2010) 

Emplover 
Alpine School District 
Eagle Mountain City 
Ranches Academy 
Rockwell High School 
Direct Communications 
Village Pizza 
Ranches Golf Course 
Great Clips 
Wasatch Deli 
Maverick 

Total 

Employees 
313 
122 
50 
40 
24 
20 
18 
14 
13 
12 - 

h2h 

(Source: The City .) 



Property Tax Levied and Collections 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30, 

2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date 

Tax Levied 
for the 

Fiscal Year 

$937,823 
915,972 
879,503 
708,636 
588,828 
482,423 
422,954 
362,350 
180,740 
133,000 

Amount 

$974,287 
865,294 
863,906 
749,459 
590,986 
5 18,289 
293,064 
201,542 
142,366 
107,926 

Percentage 
of Levy 

103.9% 
94.5 
98.2 

105.8 
100.4 
107.4 
69.3 
55.6 
78.8 
81.1 

Collections in 
Subsequent 

n/a 
$8,45 1 
3,014 
7,548 
1,621 

39,199 
52,999 

123,196 
43,188 
16,375 

Amount 

$974,287 
873,745 
866,920 
757,007 
592,607 
557,408 
346,063 
324,738 
185,554 
124,301 

Percentage 
of Levv 

1 03.9% 
95.4 
98.6 

106.8 
100.6 
115.5 
81.8 
89.6 

102.7 
93.5 

(Source: The City.) 

Assessed Taxable Value and Estimated Fair Market Value of Taxable Property in the City 

Total Taxable 
Assessed Value 
$694,890,145 
675,079,3 13 
768,130,898 
649,359,060 
347,865,64 1 
283,657,906 
243,181,871 
21 1,181,562 
187,3 19,s 3 0 
145,058,105 

Estimated 
Fair Market Value 
$1,263,436,626 

1,227,416,933 
1,396,601,633 
1,180,652,836 

632,482,984 
515,741,647 
442,148,856 
383,966,476 
340,58 1,473 

$263,742,009 

Percentage 
Chanae 

2.93% 
(12.11) 
18.29 
86.67 
22.64 
16.64 
15.15 
12.74 
29.13 

nla 

( I )  20 10 figures are estimates. 
(Source: The City.) 



UTAH COUNTY 

General 

The Utah County (the "County") is situated in the north central portion of the State. Incorporated in 1850, 
the County is bordered on the north by Salt Lake County and encompasses approximately 2,000 square miles of 
land. 

Population 

Year - 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 
2001 
2000 

Countv 

558,219 
544,538 
529,344 
513,006 
48 1,994 
454,913 
434,114 
408,185 
397,345 
387,589 
371,606 

% Increase 

2.51% 
2.87 
3.18 
6.43 
5.95 
4.79 
6.35 
2.73 
2.52 
4.30 

n/a 

State of Utah 

2,830,753 
2,780,871 
2,724,685 
2,662,908 
2,582,234 
2,498,863 
2,438,195 
2,378,255 
2,334,425 
2,290,966 
2,244,207 

(Source: U.S. Census Bureau estimates as of July 1 of the years indicated.) 

Rate of Unemployment-Annual Average 

Year - 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 

Countv 

7.2% 
6.2 
3.7 
2.5 
2.9 
4.0 
4.8 
5.3 
5.8 

State of Utah 

7.7% 
6.6 
3.7 
2.8 
3.0 
4.1 
5.1 
5.7 
5.8 

United States 

9.6% 
9.3 
5.8 
4.6 
4.6 
5.1 
5.5 
6.0 
5.8 

(Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services, and U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.) 



Business And Industry 

The following is a list of the largest employers in the County based on 2009 annual averages. 

Comwany 

Brigharn Young University 

Alpine School District 
Utah Valley Regional Medical Center 

Nebo School District 

State of Utah 
Utah Valley University 

Wal-Mart 

Utah Office Supply 

ESG Administration 

1M Flash Technologies 

Nestles USA 

Provo High School 

Utah County 

Bullen and Harris 

Provo City 

Novel1 

Macey7s 

Orem City 

Smith's 

APX Alarm Security Solutions 

Central Utah Medical Clinic 

Payday Benefits 

Pay America of Utah 
Omniture 

My Family.Com 

Industry 

Higher Education (Private) 

Public Education 
Health Care 

Public Education 

State Government 

Higher Education 

Discount Department Store 

Office Supplies 

Service 

Electronic Product Mfg 
Manufacturing 

Public Education 

Local Government 

Office Administrative Services 

Local Government 

Software Publisher 

Grocery Store 

Local Government 

Grocery Store 

Electrical Contractors 

Health Care 

Employment Services 

Employment Services 

Data Processing & Hosting 

Internet & Web Services 

Employment Range 

15,000- 19,999 
5,000-6,999 
4,000-4,999 
3,000-3,999 
3,000-3,999 

3,000-3,999 
2,000-3,999 

1,000- 1,999 
1,000- 1,999 

1,000- 1,999 
1,000-1,999 

1,000- 1,999 
1,000- 1,999 
1,000- 1,999 
1,000- 1,999 
1,000- 1,999 

500-999 

500-999 
500-999 

500-999 
500-999 
500-999 
500-999 
500-999 

500-999 

(Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services; last updated June 2010, based on 2009 average annual 
employment.) 



Economic Indicators of the County 

LABOR FORCE 
Labor Force 

Employed 
Unemployed 

Kate 

Non-Farm Jobs 
% Change Prior Year 

Mining 
Construction 
Manufacturing 
TradeITransportationlUtilities 
Information 
Financial Activities 
ProfessionalIBusiness Services 
Education/Health/ Social Services 
LeisureIHospitality 
Other Services 
Government 

Total Establishments 
Total Wages ($Millions) 

INCOME AND WAGES 2009'~) 2008 2007 
Total Personal Income ($Millions) $12,231 $12,610.00 $11,121.30 

Per Capita Income 22,430 23,803 2 1,668 

Avg. Family Income from IRS Returns nla 59,701 60881 

Average Monthly Nonfarm Wage 2,844 2,836 2,721 

SALES AND BUILDING 2009' P' 2008 2007 
Gross Taxable Sales ($000~) 6,769,759 7,155,220 6,847,708 

Permit Authorized Construction ($000) 509,509 757,504 1,499,277 

New Residential Building Permits 1,448 1,415 4,970 

Residential Build Permit Values ($000) 277,676 284,796 1,037,687 

(P) Preliminary. 
(Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services; last updated August 2010.) 



APPENDIX D 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Upon the issuance of the Series 201 1 Bonds, Ballard Spahr LLP, Bond Counsel to the City, proposes to 
issue its approving opinion in substantially the following form: 

We have acted as bond counsel for Eagle Mountain City, Utah (the "lssuer") in connection with the 
issuance by the Issuer of its $11,085,000 Gas and Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 201 1 (the "Series 201 1 Bonds"). 
The Series 201 1 Bonds are being issued pursuant to (i) the Local Government Bonding Act, Title 11,  Chapter 14, 
Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended; (ii) resolutions of the Issuer adopted May 3, 201 1 and August 2, 201 1 
(together, the "Resolution"); and (iii) a General Indenture of Trust dated as of September 1, 2005, as heretofore 
amended and supplemented (the "General Indenture"), and as further supplemented by a Second Supplemental 
Indenture of Trust dated as of August 1, 201 1 (the "Second Supplemental Indenture" and together with the General 
Indenture, the "Indenture") between the Issuer and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. The Series 201 1 
Bonds are being issued to (i) finance the costs of improvements to the Issuer's gas and electric system, (ii) acquire a 
reserve fund surety for deposit to a debt service reserve fund, and (iii) pay costs of issuance of the Series 201 1 
Bonds. 

Our services as bond counsel have been limited to the preparation of the legal proceedings and supporting 
certificates authorizing the issuance of the Series 201 1 Bonds under the applicable laws of the State of Utah and to a 
review of the transcript of such proceedings and certificates. As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we 
have relied upon certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us without undertaking 
to verify the same by independent investigation. Our examination has been limited to the foregoing as they exist or 
are in effect as of the date hereof. Our opinion is limited to the matters expressly set forth herein, and we express no 
opinion concerning any other matters. 

Based on our examination and the foregoing, we are of the opinion as of the date hereof and under existing 
law, as follows: 

1. The Issuer is a political subdivision and body politic of the State of Utah created and validly 
existing under the laws of the State of Utah. 

2. The Indenture has been authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer and constitutes a valid 
and binding obligation of the lssuer enforceable upon the Issuer. 

3. The Indenture creates a valid lien on the Net Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) and other 
amounts pledged for the security of the Series 201 1 Bonds. 

4. The Series 201 1 Bonds are valid and binding special obligations of the Issuer payable solely from 
the Net Revenues and other amounts pledged therefor in the Indenture, and the Series 201 1 Bonds do not constitute 
a general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer within the meaning of any State of Utah constitutional provision or 
statutory limitation, or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the Issuer. 

5. Interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds is excludable from gross income for purposes of federal income 
tax under existing laws as enacted and construed on the date of initial delivery of the Series 201 1 Bonds, assuming 
the accuracy of the certifications of the lssuer and continuing compliance by the Issuer with the requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"). Interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds is not an item of tax preference for 
purposes of either individual or corporate federal alternative minimum tax ("AMY); however, interest on Series 
2011 Bonds held by a corporation (other than an S corporation, regulated investment company, or real estate 
investment trust) may be indirectly subject to federal AMT because of its inclusion in the adjusted current earnings 
of a corporate holder. 

6 .  Interest on the Series 201 1 Bonds is exempt from State of Utah individual income taxes. 



In rendering our opinion, we wish to advise you that: 

(a) The rights of the holders of the Series 201 1 Bonds and the enforceability thereof and of 
the documents identified in this opinion may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights 
heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, and their enforcement may also be 
subject to the application of equitable principles and the exercise ofjudicial discretion in appropriate cases; 

(b) We express no opinion herein as to the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the 
Official Statement or any other offering material relating to the Series 201 1 Bonds; and 

(c) Except as set forth above, we express no opinion regarding any other tax consequences 
relating to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series 201 1 Bonds. 

Respectfully submitted, 



APPENDIX E 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the "~ndekaking") is executed and delivered by Eagle Mountain 
City, Utah (the "City") in connection with the issuance by the City of its $ll,O85,000 Gas and Electric Revenue 
Bonds, Series 201 1 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to (i) the Local Government Bonding Act, 
Title I I ,  Chapter 14, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended; (ii) a General lndenture of Trust, dated as of 
September 1,2005, as heretofore amended and supplemented (the "General Indenture"), and as further amended and 
supplemented by a Second Supplemental lndenture of Trust dated as of August 1, 201 1 (the "Second Supplemental 
Indenture" and together with the General Indenture, the "Indenture"), each between the City and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), (iii) resolutions adopted on May 3, 201 1 and August 2, 201 1, by the City 
Council of the City authorizing the Bonds and the Indenture, and (iv) other applicable provisions of law. 

The Bonds are being issued for the purposes of (i) financing the costs of improvements to the City's gas 
and electric facilities, (ii) acquiring a reserve fund surety for deposit to a debt service reserve fund, and (iii) paying 
certain issuance expenses to be incurred in connection with the issuance and sale of the Series 201 1 Bonds. The 
City covenants and agrees as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement. This Disclosure Agreement is being executed and 
delivered by the City for the benefit of the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist 
the Participating Underwriter in complying with the Rule (each as defined below). 

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture or parenthetically 
defined herein, which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined in 
this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

"Annual Report of the City" means the Annual Report of the City provided by the City pursuant to, and as 
described in Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent 
with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through nominees, 
depositories or other intermediaries). 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the City, acting in its capacity as Dissemination Agent hereunder, or any 
of its successors or assigns. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, the address of which is currently 1900 
Duke Street, Suite 600, Alexandria, VA 223 14; Telephone (703) 797-6600; Fax (703) 797-6700. 

"Official Statement" shall mean the Official Statement of the City dated August 12, 201 1, relating to the 
Bonds. 

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean George K. Baum & Company, as the original underwriter of the 
Bonds. 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

"Tax-exempt" shall mean that interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, whether or not such interest is includable as an item of tax preference or otherwise includable directly or 
indirectly for purposes of calculating any other tax liability, including any alternative minimum tax or environmental 
tax. 



Section 3. 

(a) The City shall prepare an Annual Report of the City and shall, or shall cause the Dissemination 
Agent to, not later than one hundred eighty ( 1  80) days after the end of each fiscal year of the City (presently 
June 30), commencing with the fiscal year ended June 30,201 1, provide or cause to be provided to the MSRB, the 
Annual Report of the City which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. Not 
later than fiReen (15) Business Days prior to said date, the City shall provide the Annual Report of the City to the 
Dissemination Agent. In each case, the Annual Report of the City may be submitted as a single document or as 
separate documents comprising a package, and may include by reference other information as provided in Section 4 
of this Disclosure Agreement; provided that the audited financial statements of the City may be submitted separately 
from the balance of the Annual Report, and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if 
they are not available by that date. If the City's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same 
manner as for Listed Event under Section 5(f). 

(b) If by fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date specified in Section 3(a) for providing the 
Annual Report of the City to the MSRB, the Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual Report of 
the City, the Dissemination Agent shall contact the City to determine if the City is in compliance with Section 3(a). 

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that the Annual Report of the City has been 
provided to the MSRB by the dates required in Sections 3(a) and 3(b), the Dissemination Agent shall, in a timely 
manner, send a notice to the MSRB. 

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall: 

(i) determine each year prior to the dates for providing the Annual Report of the City, the 
website address to which the MSRB directs the Annual Report to be submitted; and 

(ii) file reports with the City, as appropriate, certifying that their its Annual Report has been 
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was provided and listing the website 
address to which it was provided. 

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Annual Report of the City shall contain or incorporate 
by reference the following: 

(a) A copy of its annual financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and audited by a certified public accountant or a firm of certified public accounts. If the 
City's audited annual financial statements are not available by the time specified in Section 3(a) above, unaudited 
financial statements will be provided as part of the Annual Report of the City and audited financial statements will 
be provided when and if available. 

(b) An update of the financial and operating information in the Official Statement relating to the City 
of the type contained in the tables under the headings: "THE SYSTEMaeneral," "-The Electric System," "-The 
Gas System," "-Existing and Future Demand of the System," "-Rates," "-Comparable Rates," "-Impact Fees," "- 
Licenses, Permits and Approvals," "Historical and Pro Forma Debt Service Coverage" (as the same becomes 
historically available), "-Management's Discussion and Analysis of Revenues," and "FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION--Outstanding Obligations of the City." 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, including 
official statements of debt issues of the City, as appropriate or related public entities, which have been submitted to 
the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document included by reference is a final official 
statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The City, as appropriate, shall clearly identify each such other 
document so incorporated by the reference. 



Section 5. Re~orting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the City shall give or cause to be given, notice of the 
occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner but not more than ten 
(1 0) Business Days after the event: 

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(v) Adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds; 

(vi) Defeasances; 

(vii) Tender offers; 

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar proceedings; or 

(ix) Rating changes. 

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the City shall give or cause to be given, notice of the 
occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten 
( 1  0) Business Days after the Listed Event, if material: 

(i) Mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of 
the obligated persons or their termination; 

(ii) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the namc of a trustee; 

(iii) Non-payment related defaults; 

(iv) Modifications to the rights of the owners of the Bonds; 

(v) Bond calls; or 

(vi) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds. 

(c) Whenever the City obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under 5(b), whether 
because of a notice from the Trustee or otherwise, the City shall as soon as possible determine if such event would 
be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

(d) If the City has determined that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 5(b) would be 
material under applicable federal securities laws, the City shall promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in writing. 
Such notice shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (f). 

(e) If the City determines that a Listed Event under 5(b) would not be material under applicable 
federal securities laws, the City shall so notify the Dissemination Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination 
Agent not to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (0. 



(0 If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the City to report the occurrence of a Listed 
Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB in a timely manner but in no 
case not more than ten (1 0) Business Days after the Listed Event. 

Section 6. Termination of Reportinn Obligation. The City's obligations under this Disclosure 
Agreement shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If 
such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the City shall give notice of such termination in the 
same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(f). 

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The City hereby appoints itself as Dissemination Agent under this 
Disclosure Agreement. 

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Agreement, the City may amend this Disclosure Agreement and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be 
waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it may only be 
made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, 
or change in the identity, nature or status of an "obligated person" (as defined in the Rule) with respect to the Bonds, 
or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the original 
issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any 
change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Holders of the Bonds in the same manner 
as provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of Holders, or (ii) does not, in the 
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners 
of the Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the City shall 
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report of the City, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative 
explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of 
accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the City, as 
applicable. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial 
statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(f), and 
(ii) the Annual Disclosure Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative 
form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new 
accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. 

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to 
prevent the City from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this 
Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual 
Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement. 
If the City chooses to include any information in any Annual Disclosure Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed 
Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the City shall have no 
obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or 
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the City or the Dissemination Agent to comply with 
any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, any Bondholder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such 
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to 
cause the City or Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure 
Agreement. A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an "event of default" under the 



Indenture, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of any failure of the City or the 
Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to compel performance. 

Section 11. Duties immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent 
shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, and the City agrees to 
indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any 
loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and 
duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of 
liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or willful misconduct. The 
obligations of the City under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and 
payment of the Bonds. 

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the City, the 
Dissemination Agent, the Participating Purchaser and the Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the 
Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

Section 13. Counter~arts. This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

Date: ,2011. 

EAGLE MOUNTAW CITY, UTAH 
(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

City Recorder 

Mayor 



APPENDIX F 

PROVISIONS REGARDING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Series 201 1 Bonds. The Series 201 1 Bonds will be issued as 
fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for 
each maturity of the Series 2011 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be 
deposited with DTC or its agent. 

DTC and its Participants. DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York 
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New 
York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of section 17A of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. 
and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 
countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through 
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the 
need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for 
DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered 
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and 
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly 
or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its 
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found 
at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Series 201 1 Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Series 201 1 Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Bond ("Beneficial Owner7')is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' 
records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners 
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic 
statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into 
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 201 1 Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made 
on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not 
receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Series 201 1 Bonds, except in the event that use of the 
book-entry system for the Series 20 1 1 Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 201 1 Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Series 201 1 Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of 
Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge 
of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 201 1 Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct 
Participants to whose accounts such Series 2011 Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial 
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on 
behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
Beneficial Owners of Series 201 1 Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of 
notices of significant events with respect to the Series 2011 Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and 
proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Series 201 1 Bonds may wish to 



ascertain that the nominee holding the Series 201 1 Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices 
to Beneficial Owners. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Series 201 1 Bonds within an issue are 
being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such 
issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Series 
201 1 Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus 
Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Series 201 1 
Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Series 201 1 Bonds will be made to Cede 
& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to 
credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the 
Issuer or the Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. 
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, 
as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and 
will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, or the Issuer, subject to any 
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, 
distributions, and interest payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Issuer or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to 
Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners 
will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Series 201 1 Bonds at any 
time by giving reasonable notice to the Issuer or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from 
sources that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 



APPENDIX G 

SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY 



MUNICIPAL 

ISSUER: 

BONDS: $ in aggregate principal amount of 

MUNICIPAL BOND 
INSURANCE POLICY 

#@cy No: -N 

~ f f l i e  Date: 
i 

ASSURED GUARANTY MUNICIPAL CORP. (" 
UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVOCABLY agrees to pay to 
"Paying Agent") (as set forth in the documentation providing fo 
the Bonds, for the benefit of the Owners or, at the election of 
the terms of this Policy (which includes each endorsement 
interest on the Bonds that shall become Due for Payment but 
the Issuer. 

On the later of the day ue for Payment or the 
Business Day next following the Notice of Nonpayment, 

on the Bond that is then Due fo 

next Business Day. If any Notice of 
deemed not to have been received by AGM for 
omptly so advise the Trustee, Paying Agent or 
Notice of Nonpayment. Upon disbursement in 
and, any appurtenant coupon to the Bond or right 
d and shall be fully subrogated to the rights of the 

o remain closed. "Due for Payment" 
tated maturity date thereof or the date 
fund redemption and does not refer to 
ption (other than by mandatory sinking 
unless AGM shall elect, in its sole 

r with any accrued interest to the date 
of acceleiation and (b) when referring to interest on a Bond, payable on the stated date for payment of 
interest. "Nonpayment" means, in respect of a Bond, the failure of the lssuer to have provided sufficient 
funds to the Trustee or, if there is no Trustee, to the Paying Agent for payment in full of all principal and 
interest that is Due for Payment on such Bond. "Nonpayment" shall also include, in respect of a Bond, any 
payment of principal or interest that is Due for Payment made to an Owner by or on behalf of the Issuer 
which has been recovered from such Owner pursuant to the 
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Policy No. -N 

United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with a final, nonappealable order 
of a court having competent jurisdiction. "Notice" means telephonic or telecopied notice, subsequently 
confirmed in a signed writing, or written notice by registered or certified mail, from an Owner, the Trustee or 
the Paying Agent to AGM which notice shall specify (a) the person or entity making the claim, (b) the Policy 
Number, (c) the claimed amount and (d) the date such claimed amount became Due for Payment. "Owner" 
means, in respect of a Bond, the person or entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is entitled under the 
terms of such Bond to payment thereof, except that "Owner" shall not include the Issuer gr any person or 
entity whose direct or indirect obligation constitutes the underlying security for the Bonds.&' 

$$;<:?'$,. 

AGM may appoint a fiscal agent (the "Insurer's Fiscal Agent") 
giving written notice to the Trustee and the Paying Agent specifying the n 
Insurer's Fiscal Agent. From and after the date of receipt of such notice 
Agent, (a) copies of all notices required to be delivered to AGM 

under this Policy. 

To the fullest extent permitted by a 

obligations under this Policy in accordance 

the extent expressly m ium paid in respect of this Policy is 
nonrefundable for any ion being made for payment, of the 
Bonds prior to maturi revoked. THIS POLICY IS NOT 
COVERED BY THE P FUND SPECIFIED IN ARTICLE 76 
OF THE NEW YORK I 

MUNICIPAL CORP. has caused this Policy to be 
executed on its be 

ASSURED GUARANTY MUNICIPAL CORP. 

Authorized Officer 

Form 500NY (5190) 
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